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Our Purpose:

To enable student success
through expertise,
software and services.

Our Vision:
To empower the world of education.

We strive to research, develop and deliver the products, services and
solutions needed by education institutes across the world to support
their primary goals of educating students, providing optimum learning
experiences and ultimately delivering successful outcomes.

Our Goal:

To be a pure-play Education Technology SaaS company,
expanding to a global reach as the market leader.

For more information see our website:
www.tribalgroup.com
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Financial and Operational Highlights

Financial Performance

20.5% 5.7p 51.5%

Adjusted Operating Margin (EBITDA)! Adjusted Earnings per Share! Gross Profit Margin
2020 208% 2020-41p 2020:53.1%

11.0% 3.4p

Statutory Operating Margin Statutory Earnings Per Share
2020:12 5% 2020:31p

Note cormparatives ars inconstant curroncy

1. Adjusted Operating Profit, Adjusted Uperating Margin and Adjusted Carnings per Share 18 in respect of continumg operations which excludes ‘Other [fems’ charges of £54m 2020
charge of £3 (Im),

Revenue Adjusted Operating Profit (EBITDA) Statutory Profit After Tax

£81.1m £16.6m £7.0m
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Operational Performance

£50.3m £172.5m

Annual Recurring Revenue® Commiitted Income (Order
2020: £470m Book)*
2020: €142 6m

104% £5.4m

Operating Cash Conversion? Free Cash Flow
2020.97% 2020 £54m

£100.1k

Revenue per Operational FTE®
2020 £99 .8k

£5.9m

Net Cash
2020-£95m

2 Opsrating Cash Conversions caloukated as net cash from operating sctivities betore tax from continuing operations.excluding the cash out flow of £1.7m on the Ventas

programme, as & proportion of adjusted operating profit (EBITOA)

w

Annual Recuriing Revenue is defined as the software related Support and Maintenance fees and recuning Cloud Services together with Subscnption License fees.

A. Commtred Income (Grder Book) refers to the Total Contiact Yalue of bonked sales orders which have not yet been delivered (including two years Support & Maintenance,

where it contracted on anarnual recurning basis)

b, RevenuefAverage Dperational FTF s the average FTE for the year excluding averags [ TL assocated with capitahsed Product Development. In 2021 126 1T TE were

capitaiised (2020 26 6)
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Chairman’s Statement

Evolution

and

progress

| am pleased to report another
year of significant progress

at Tribal. We are successfully
delivering on our transition to

an “as-a-service” provider of
cloud focussed software and
solutions to the global sducation
market, growing our engagements
with existing customers while
generating significant new wins,
both in the UK and internationally.

These suceesses are flowing through into
growlh in our Annual Recurring Revenue
(ARR) and provide the Board with confidence
to continue investment in our technology,
people and operations to ensure we are well-
positioned to capitalise on the continuing
evolution of the global education market.

During the year, we launched our new five-
year objectives for the business, targeting
a doubling of ARR, both arganically and
through select slrategic acquisitions,

an improving EBITDA margin, delivery of

all major Fdge modules, entry into new
geographies through the Edge offering,
and significant expansion of the customer
hase We have seen good progress inthe

year agamst these objectives and with
anincreasing frequency of new business
wins.

Durnng the vear Tribal acquired two
businesses; Semestry Ltd and Eveoh's "My
Timetable” for a combined consideration of
£6.8m. These businesses complement our
existing portfolio and form part of our Edge
offering to the Higher Education market.

We caontinue to invest in the development
of Edge and have made positive progress
on the Admissions module for which we
have four universities taking the product
as early adopters,



Financial Performance

Tribal has seenanother year of considerable
progress against our key performance
indicators.

Closing ARR commitied as al 31 December
2021 ingreased by 7% to arecord high

of £50.3m (2020 £47 Omconstant
currency, £47 5m reported). revenue for
the vear increased by 10.6% to £81.1m
(2020. £73.4m constant currency, £73.0m
reporled) and Adustod EBITDA ncreased by
9.2% of £16.6m (2020 £16 2m constant
currency, £14 Smreported). Our Cloud

and Edge products delivered substantial
organic revenue growth of 31% and H0%
respectively. Committed sales order book
as at 31 December 2021 amounted to
£1725m (2020 £142.6m constant
currency, £144 4mreported) Diluted
earnings per share tor the year grew to 3.2
pence per share compared to 3.1 pence per
share in 2020.

Tribal's Statutory Profit betore tax
remamned stable at £8.6m (2020 £8bm
reported).

The Group's cash balance remained strong
with net cash of £5.9m at year end (2020:
£9 5m}after net capitelised development
costs of £10.2m, the net payment of
£6.4monacquisitions and deferred
censideration payments and £2 5m of
dividends paid, with no debt drawn at the
end of the year.

Dividend

Tribalremains commitfed to a continuing
dividend policy and the Board is pleased to
propose a final dividend inrespect of the
year ended 31 December 2021 of 1.3p
whichis expected to be paid at the end of
July 2022.

Environment, Social and
Governance (ESG)

Tribalis committed to activities that
benefit the environment and society,
underpinned by good governance. As part
of our journey to continually improve our
approach and performance in these areas,
we formed an ESC Committee in 2020,
chaired by Non-Fxecutive Director, Nigel
Halkes. The ESG Committee identified six

priority focus arcas for the Group for 2021,

sachwith key initiatives and objectives
[or the year and appropriate ownership
fromacross our Executive Management
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Tearm. While we are still at the early stages
of the implementation of many of these
programmes, we are committed to ther
sustained delivery and will continue to build
onour activities in 2022 Youcanreada

full report on these priority areas within the
ESG section of the Annual Report,

People

The progress we have made s a tnbute

to our employess’ lalent, expertise and
belief in our proposition, and this year this
has never been more true Their energy

and commitment to providing world-class
education software and services throughout
the pandemic has not wavered and | would
like to thank all our staff across the globe

for their hard work As we move into what we
hope to be a post-pandemic environment our
prienty remains on ensuring the wellbeing of
each employee and we will continue to nvest
inour people, providing them with the tools,
training and support to allow them to realise
therr potential,

Janet Tomlinson, Head of Tribal Education
Services retired on 9 Decamber 2021, we
would like to thank her for her many years of
excellent service, and we wish her well for
the future.

Ukraine

Ihe Directors have considered the impact
of the ongoing situation In Ukraine and have
concluded there 15 curiently minimal risk

to business continuity as we do not have a
presence in the region. The group continues
to support all colleagues who ere directly
impacted by the conflict and will monitor the
situation closaly.

Outlook

The market appetite for our leading
solutions continues to be positive, and the
growing portfolio of Iribal products from
our core student management systems,
to Tribal Cloud and kdge is resaonating
well with both our existing and new
customers, We are focused on delivering
our newly launched & year plan, however,
as previously reperted, over the next two
years we are likely to experience lower
levels of growth as historic contracts
draw to a closc but we continue Lo see
opportunities to drive ARR growth.

Notwithstanding this, with a growing
number of now customer wing, contract
extensions, cross sell opportunities and
a cloar strategy and record sales pipeline,
the Board believes that the opportunities
for Tribal are significant and we view the
future positively.

R U

Richard Last
Chairman
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Edge Product Offerings

Robust

and adaptable

products
and services
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Te Whare Wananga o Awanuiarangi selects Tribal
to improve student experience from enquiry and
enrolment to graduation and alumni

Te Whare Wananga o Awanuiarangi is a publicly
owned tertiary education institution based

in Whakatane, New Zealand which provides
educationin a Maori cultural context to 6,000
studenrts. The organisation’s vision 15 to
pursue knowledge to the greatest depths and
its broadest horizons, and to empower the
descendants of Awanuiarangi and all Maori

to clam and develop their cultural herntage.

The Challenge:

»  Improve and personalise the studant
expenence fromenquiy, application and
enrolment through to graduation and alumni

» |mprove service delivery by managing
quality, reducing risk and cutting
turnaround trmes

s Create efficiencies for the organisation
by improving reporting and ines of
communication and reducing time
and cost caused by workarounds

Wirernu Doherty, CEQ, Awanuérang, said

"Our current SMIS platesued in its ability to
service the needs of our staff and students
We looked for areplacement system that
would imiprove the studont expenence from
therr first enguiry to graduation, increase our
accessibiity to information and enable us to
better manage our programs”

The Solution:

= Integrated sclution, combining our [dge
products with EBS

»  The core Student Management System
(SMS) wiil be based on Trihal's ebs, hosted
in the Tribal Cloud integrated with Tribal's
Student Marketing and Recrurtment, Fvent
Management and Alumni Management
Solutions.

= The solution provides a full 360-degree
view of the student from initial enguiry to
alurnni management.

Awanuigrang will also adopt Tribal's Student
Engage mobile app as a private social notwork
to connect the entire Wananga community.

It will engage students, staff, departments
and businesses and provide students with
asecure collaborative space to learmn and
support each cther.

The Benefits:

The Tribal suite of products will empower both
Te Whare Wananga o Awanuidiangi's staff
and students to receive a personalised view
of relevant information. Tauira (students) can
track ther study, including their enrolments,
finance, results. timetables and attendance.
while staff will be able to view relevant
information such as links to their timetables,
students and the courses they teach - all in
one place. The new reporting solution offers
avaluable data mining tool which will provide
contextualised information visually.

Steve Exley, Tribal's General Manager -
New Zesaland, said:

"We're delighted that Te Whare Wananga o
Awanuiarang: has chosen to adopt a full suite of
Tribal solutions to manage the student journey.
It 15 & significant win for Tribal being the frst
customer in New Zealand to adopt our Student
Marketing and Recrutment, Event Managernent
and Alumm Managorment Solutions as well as
the Student Engage App. We arc pleased to be
on the journey with Awanuidrang: and are fooking
forward to continung the refationship and
kicking of f the implementation”
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Our Markets

Geographic growth potential (Higher Education student numbers)

Europe

EU27: 17.5m

SE Asia

Rest of SE Asia: 7.4m
Philippines: 3.6m
Malaysia: 0.86m

North America

usA: 19.8m
Canada: 2.2mM

Current markets

UK
2.4m

Tribal Share
(Students): 50%

Australia
1.5m

Tribal Share

(Students): 23%

New Zealand
0.4m

Tribal Share
(Students): 36%

Opportunities

The three key goala within our Stralegy,
supported by Tribal's five-year
objectives enable us to maximise our
opportunity for growth,

Tribal Edge is revolutionising the Student
information Systems (SIS) market by
offenng modular, next-generation. cloud-
native solutions kach module provides
value and can be delivered to customers
rapidly to meet today's needs. Tribal
Fdge moves away from bespoke
development and unigue processes to
providing standard technologies that
encapsulate leading practice. Tnbal Edge
delivers simpler more efficient, and more
effective business solutions globaliy.

With significant numbers of untapped
nstitutions globally, our next-generation
cloud based product offenng enables

shorterimplementation cycles which
can be delivered remotely unlocking a
breadth of opportunity across the world
to both new and existing customers.




What is driving our business

5 University challenge
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University solution

Tribal opportunity

Legacy internal $MS unfit
for purpose

Public tender for cloud-based
commercial SMS

Sull existing products delivered
from Public Cloud

For more information
See pages 16 -17

Legacy complexity / lack of agility
| security concerns

Leverage Public Cloud and
managed services

Tribal:Cloud: providing SIS
asg-a-service through the
public cloud

For more information
Sae pages 16-17

Improve Student Experience
Improve internal efficiency

Digital transformation to deliver a
compelling student experience

Tribal Edge: Cloud-native
solutions adding value across
a wider solution set

For moreinfarmation
See pages 16-17
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Our Business Model

Market
leading
student

information
solutions

We provide market-leading, cloud-

based, student information software

and services to customers in target
markets across the world, using our
resources and expertise to create value
that is shared with our stakeholders. We
empower education institutes to educate
students, providing optimum learning
experiences and ultimately delivering
successful cutcomes.

Underpinning how we operate

Ourresources

Leading market share for
Student Information Systems

Trusted brand respected in
education worldwide

Education services capability
complementing student
information software

Market insight from long-
standing customer relationships

Experienced leadership bringing
clear business focus

Highly skilled people with
deep domain expertise

Cuiture that places customers at
the heart of what we do

Our values See page 37

How we maximise value creation

Our strategy for profitable growth is cutlined on page 16
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Tribal Group plc

Generating returns and added

Our software value for all of our stakeholders:

Our cloud-based and on-premise studsnt infarmation
solutions add value to education and business organisations
throughout the student life cycle. Our modules span

Customers pay for Software as a Service (3223);
cloud services, or for licenco, implementation,

Support and Maintenance.

Our Education Services

Our education services are offered internationally and cover
institutions from Early Years through te Higher Education, all
focused onimproving learning and student outcomes.

Risk management Sce page 26

Customers

Solutions to enable managers to enhance the
guahty of education and improve operational

performance, to attract, engage andretain
Marketing & Student students throughout therr learning journeys ina
Recrui g Support & Admissions Enrolment cost-effective and flexible manner.
ecruitment Wellbei
alibeing
Students
Business Learning & Graduation Assessments Supperting a student’s Iife-long learning
Engagement Studying & Alumni & journey. through enhanced wellbeing, enriched
Engagement 4 | Examinations experience beyond the academic curriculum,
and seamless interaction with different learning

channels (physical and virtual).

Shareholders

Shareholder value and returns from profitable,
cash-generative growthwith a high proportion
of recurring revenue and progressive dividends.

Employaes

Interesting and rewarding careers, with the
opportunity to work with the leading educational
Institutes across the globe.

Self Early Years Student
assessment Quality Mark 8 School Experience
& Review Inspections Barometer Government aganciesl
aducation funders
Independent gualty assurance services
inati supporting the development of top-class
School 3??_2::2;" Professional Operational N diU([)a tlong rovision P P
Improvement Surveys Learning Benchmarking provision.

Corporate responsibility Sce page 34
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Chief Executive’s Review

Evolution

and

2021 was a year of positive
strategic and financial progress,
in which we delivered against

key milestones in our transition

to a Saa$ business, while
maintaining our market leading
position in our core geographic
markets and supporting our
growing customer base.

With an increasing rate of new wins and
customer extensions, we are starting to see
the benefits of the investmants we have
made 1n the evolution and expansion of our
offenng, pesitioning Tribal at the forefiont
of the evolving educaticn industry and
praviding for an exciting future.

Our areas of focus in 20271 were to grow ARR,

secure more TribalCloud contracts, migrate
more customers to our cloud services,

and launch Cdge Admissions - all of which
have been achioved. We also continued to
benehit from strong customer retention and
cash generation, providing us with a robust
fimancial platform fromwhich to invest in
capturing our expanding opportunity.

Throughout the year we invested in our
people and operations to deliver on Tribal's

growing customer footprint across the globe:

we have evolved our operational model to
ensure service levels are maintained and
scalability for iong Lerm growth,

progress

Thig positive progress and the move of the
education sector towards the SaaS delivery
model, means we have entered the new
yearwith a record sales pipeling, retlecting
the continuing investrment by the education
sector and our expanded offering.

Market Drivers

The higher education market continues to
evolve as anticipated and the drivers of
Lhis evolution, heightened by the pandemic,
remain the same, providing a positive
backdrop for our evelving product offering.



The education sector is now becoming
increasingly competitive, efficient and
adaptable, with organisations needing to
compete for students. The expectations of
students are rising, perticularly in the areas
of wellbeing and mental health. Institutions
increasingly need to consider elements
such as blended learning and the remole
delivery of services. This emergence of
online and collaborative leaming has led

to the significant expansion of the higher
education market inrecent years, which has
ultimately provided greater opportunities
and offerings to students worldwide. As
such, it s now necessary for abusiness to
introduce its innovative solulions Lo market
at speedin order to capture the expanding
market opportunity.

The Tribal-Cloud and Edge family of modules
specifically address each of these 1ssues,
enabling education institutions to focus
less on maintaining legacy 1T hardware and
software. ang more time focusing on the
rocruitment, engagement and success of
their students.

2021 has demonstrated there 1s a clear
market appetite for our sclutions and the full
proposition of Trigal products is resonating
well with our customers. Through the
investment in the expansion of our offering,
Tribal is well placed to meet these evoelving
market needs and grow market share
globally.

Strategy

Qur chjective is to provide education
technology solutions to customers

globally, 2s-a-service, Transitioning to

the delivery of a broader set of solutions,

via the ‘as a service’ model will increase

our addressable market across a greater
number of geographies, drive revenue and
margin expansion, while cnabling universities
to focus on the delivery of excoptional
education to therr students.

As & demonstration of our ambition, in 2021,
we launched our new five-year objectives
ahown to the right.

Touchieve these ambitious targets, our
gtrategy has four growth pillars, Innovating with
our existing products, delivering our existing
products "as-a-service” in the Tribal Cloud:
developing a next-generation, modular cloud-
native product set, Edge; and complermenting
organic growth with sclective MBA.

Tribal Group plc
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Our Strategy

Al the end of last year | set out our strategy for the year with three key goals:

1. to continue to drive new sales through our portfolio of products in
existing and new geographies;
2. todeliver on the Edge strategy which provides a compelling vision

to new and existing customers to embrace our next-generation,
best-of-breed Student Information System (SIS) solutions; and

3. to support our new and existing customers in taking advantage
of cloud technologies by broadening the portfolio of value-add
solutions and services offered.

Our strategy has been refined and expanded upon during the year to build on this progress
and to form our new ‘Sustan and Grow’ strategy for the next three years. The focusis to
SUSTAIN our existing products and revenues. and GROW new products and revenues by
delivering kdge in the public cloud and moving our product offering to 'as-a-service'.

Tribal 2025: Five-year Objectives
1.Increase ARR

Double the Annual Recurring Revenue (being 15% Compound Annual Orowth Rate
“CAGR")

ARR atend 2020. £47.5m

Includes bolt-on acquisitions

Ramps up over b years

2. improve EBITDA
EBITDA margin at low-30s%

= [BITDA at ond 2020. 20%
= Multrtenantad, SaaS solution
= Edge fully rolled out will drive marging inmid-30s

3. Complete Edge

Deliver all major modules of Edge
= Broadly compiele ecosystem, incl bolt-on acquisitions

»  Conclude accelerated Product Development spend

4. Grow globally
Double # of Higher Education markets

»  10% of revenue from new addressable global markets

= Markets (2020): UK, Aus, NZ, Canada, Malaysia, Singapore

5. Build customer position
Doubls # of Higher Education customers & share-of-wallet

»  Allcustomers on Tribal Cloud andfor adopting Edge
s Increase share-of-wallet” Double Rev / Customer

For more information
Seepages 16-17
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Chief Executive’s Review continued

We have made positive progress m each of
these areas, ncluding the winning of further
SITS:Vision customers, our existing markat
leading softwere, the successful transition
of an additional two flagship customers
inLo the Tribal Cloud, the marketing launch
of Admissions, including the winning of four
Admissions customers, and the successful
acquisition of two additional cloud modules
to add to our Edge product family.

The growth in ARR was 7% in the year. We
are pleased with these positive signs of
potential and although it will take time for full
adoption of our sclutions by our customers
due to the annual cycle of the academic
year, we reman confident in the significant
long-term opportunities.

Geographic Expansion

We have leading market sheres in the
geographies in which we operate. In the

UK over 65% of all Higher Education
institutions use our student management
systems, in Australia we support one-third
of univarsities, and In New Zealand three
of the eight universities. In Southeast
Asia, we support the largest public and the
largest private universities in Malaysia, and
this yoar we have expanded further with
new customer wins iIncluding Middlesex
University in Dubai and Univorsiteit Leidenin
The Netherlands.

Wewill continue to focus on growth in these
geographies and we anticipate Edge will allow
us to expand further into new geographies
once the modules are released, due toits
more easly digestible modular approach.

Semestry and Eveoh Acquisitions

We were pleased to complete two small
acquisitions in the year,

In April 2021 we acquired Semestry, a
supplier of cloud based scheduling software
to the higher cducation market, expanding
the Group's Edge family of products and
taking the business into new geegraphies.
Semestry services over 20 customers
across five countries in Europe. Since
acquisition, Semestry has secured 8 new
customers, growing Semestry ARR by 37%,
representing an acceleration of its historic
growth rate.

The module was further enhanced in
November with tho acquisition of Lveoh's
"My Timetable™ The platform allows
institutions to publish persenalised student
and staff timetables, via tha web or their
mobile device and s currently In use at more
than forty institutions n Europe and the UK.

The products can be sold across Tribal's
extensive customer base, as universities seek
to Increase engagement with therr students
and offer more personalised expencnces.

We continue Lo explore investment
oppertunities to scale the business and
enler nto new geographies and expand our
Fdge family.

2021 Operational Review
People

Tribal relies on the talent and expertise

of its people. Our success a5 a growing
international business is a tribute to cur
people’s engrgy, commitment and know-
how. Their depth of domain knowledge in
the sector over three decades is unrivalied
and we have aninnate understanding of
the education market, developed thiough
working in partnership with our customers
and operating in senior roles for leading
education institutions. We continue to
invest inour people, providing them with
the tools and traning to support and allow
them torealise their potential, with clear
alignment to our Group objectives.

The key nitistives enabling our people to
develop ther true potential includes, our
bespoke competency framework, which
underpins a range of Carcer Pathways.
Through our framework, we aim to heip each
employee understand how they can develop
in their current role as well as plan for their
future growth and development.

We also runremote business development
piogrammes focusing on the expansion

of our Manager Academy. The Academy
broadens the akills and commercial
awareness of our leaders and future leaders
and supports our Digital Learning strategy.

As well as focusing on the performance,
development and success of our existing
people, a key part of cur people strategy
involves investing in early talent programmes
acrees the business, bringing in new recruits
who learn and work in some of our key job
farnilics including Product Development and
Customer Support. This iIncluded between

26 and 20 active or former apprentices who
have sacured formal qualifications whilst at
the same time establishing a solid foundation
of practical work experience fromwhich to
build their career with us and contribute to our
onNgeing success.

Communication with our people and
maintaining wellbeng is crucial, especially
as we continue to feel the impact of the
pandemic. We have focused on supporting
all aspects of our people’s health and
wellbeing providing ongoing and additional
support through our Employee Assistance
Programme.

We have now reopened our offices end
fulluwing consultation with our employees,
the teams are embracing the new form: of
hybrid working.

Student Infermation Systems (SIS)

Student Intormation Systems, our core
segment which targets the further and
higher education sectors through cur range
of software offerings, delivered a pesitive
performance in the yeer, growing customer
numbers, revenue, and profits, and has
entered the new financial year with a record
pipeline of opportunities. We continue towin
new customers for our existing on premise
offering, transition existing customers

into our cloud offerings, and sign the first
contracts for our Edge offerings.

Key new customers include Univarsity of
West London and Southampton Sclent
University in the UK, and internationally:

Te Whare Wananga o Awanuiarang! in New
Zealand, Middlesex University in Dubai and
Universiteit Leiden in The Netherlands.

We were delghted to close a number of
significant sales to existing customers,
transitioning their existing on-premise

Tribal SITS software, SITSVision, into the
Tribal Cloud, a managed cloud environment.
These Includs five-year contracts with the
University College London for £3m and

The University of Warwick for £35m. We
continue to have positive conversations
a0r10ss our extengive customer base as Lthey
explore the benefits a move to the cloud can
bring their organisation and are confident of
continued uptake.

Our largest SITS deal to date, worth
approximately £17m over sight years, with
Nanyang Technology University launched
inearly 2027 and project impiementation
will continue to progress throughout

2022 The partnership encompassing
SITS:Vision, Tribal Cloud and Edge products,
demonstrates the relevance of Tribal's broad
suite of offerings.

We aleo completed the first sales of
our nowly developed Cloud-based Edge
Admissions module, to Aberystwyth
University and the University for the



Creative Arts. The solution can be integrated
with the SITS Student Management System,
or any other SMS, providing the Group with a
significant addressable market. Sales of the
Dynamics based Ldge Student Recruitment
and Student Welfare modules have
developed and have a growing pipsline.

In December we concluded contract renewal
discussions with our Australian university
customers on the Callista Software
platform. Of the eleven universities, ning
have clected to rencw. The five-year
agreements provide an evolutionary path
towards the Edge, Cloud delivered Saa3
ecosystem and provide a strong foundation
of long-term visible revenue, with £6.8m
ARR. in the Australian market.

As the Group transitions to a SaaS delivery
model, we have introduced some additional
metrics to measure progress towards key
objectves.

2020

Constant  Change
£m 2021 currsncy To
Annual
Recurring
Revenue (ARR)* 50.3 470 7%
Monthly
Recurring
Revenue (MRR)® 4.3k 37k 16%
Gross Revenue
Retention
(GRRY 93% 92% 1%
Net Revenue
Retention
(NRR) 1067 103% 3%

1. Caloulated as the monthly recurmng revenue as at
31 December

2. Calculated asa percentage of recurnng revenue
retained from existing customers at 1 January
including contract expiry, cancellabions or
downgrades mthe year

3. Calculated as apercentage of recurnng revenue
ratained lrom existing customers at 1 January
including vpsells as well as rontract expiry.
cancellations or downgrades in the vear

4, ARRis a forward looking metnc represent ng
commilted evenues as at 31 December 2021
and includes Support & Mantenance tees paidon
allsoftware, | icense soldon & subscnption basig,
Cloud services and Fdga sales,

MRR has incroaged 16% to £4.3k (2020.
£3.7k). 20pp of the ncressea is driven by the
acquisitions of Semestry and Eveoh's "My
Timetable’, the remaining increase is organic
growth from significant new wins including
Manyang Technological University, Te Whare
Wanaga o Awaruiarangl, Solent University
and University of West London.
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GRR has increased 1pp to 93% (2020
92%).In 2071 and Y020, a third of the
movement relates to churn on Schoolfdge
customers. We have also seen a decline in
some of our other services as customers
move sway from our bespoke products.

NRR increased by 3pp to 106% (2020
103%). This growthis predominantly due

to cloud migrations sold to Kings College

I nndon, University of Warwick, University
College: | ondon and Universiti Teknologi
Petronas and Dynamics sales made to 8
existing customers. Annual inflationary
increases applied to customer renewals also
contribute to NRR growth.

Education Services (ES)

Education Services trading performance
remained stable throughout the year, despite
the impact of the engoing pandemic. The
tearn continued remote delivery of the key
assurancos, training, and ingpections in Lhe
LK, UUS and New Zealand. The business has
agood pipeline of opportunities for the new
financial year which will enable Education
Services to deliver new revenue in 2027

In the UK, the main contracts continued

to operate at consistent levels. Work on
the National Professional Quaifications
(NPQ) moderations, Advanced Mathematics
Suppost Programme (AMSP) and National
Centre for the Excellence of Teaching
Mathematics (NCETM}, professianal
development and training all continued to
be succeassfully delivered remotely with

the gradual return of some face-to-face
events in the second half of the year. These
contracts are subject to retender in 2022,

School closures in the US continued

to hamper business development.
opporlunities. The New York State Education
Department (NYSED) contract had a solid
performance as we worked closely with
NYSED to ensure continued delivery despite
the restrictions from the pandemic.

in the Middle Cast, the ADEK contract
resumed at a reduced levelin the final
quarter of 2021 compared to three
months full delivery in early 2020, No
further revenues are expected from the
ADFK contract as this has now come to
anend. The decrease in ADEK revenues
were offset with smaller contract wing in
Bahrain, however due to the flexible cost
model and varable cost bage our margin was
somewhat protected.

2022 Areas of Focus

We anticipate 2022 will be a pivotal year

for Tribal. as we see mementum building in
our pipeline and across our Industry as it
moves towards SaaS and cloud of ferings.
We will focus on transitioning more of our
existing customers to the Tribal-Cloud,

the sale of further Edge modules and the
delivery of our firgt carly sdopter Admissions
customers. We will alsn rontinue to develop
new customer relationships globally and
look for complementary partnerships and
acquisitions, to accelerate our expansion.

We are transitioning to a new target
operating model which will underpin the
structures and capabilities required

of & Saal business. This includes the
ntroduction of two new executive roles
focusing on Customer Success and Service
Delivery. The new target operating model will
be supported by the implementation of new
SaaS financial systems and processes.

2022 Outlook

We have a strong seles pipsline as we

enter the current financial year, giving us

the confidence to continue to invest in our
product expangion strategy to achieve our
long-term financial goals. The Group has
traded in line with Board expectations since
the start of the new financial year and ig
seeing continued positive sales momenturm.
We expect continuing revenue growth

in our strategic products with improving
margins aver time as we gain scale, but

this will be offset in the next couple of
vears by declining revenues from our higher
margin, historic Australian government
contracts and non-core schools systems
contracts. While cognisant of inflationary
cost prossures, the Board remains confident
in delivering results for 2022 in ine with
current expectations.

We beliave the education market globally
i5 becoming more attuned to the benefits
of SaaS and cloud offerings and presents a
supportive market backdrop, as we release
new offerings to the market and increase
our sales and marketing activities.

The Group remains focused on its koy
strategic prionties during 2022 and we
remain confident in our ambition and ability
to deliver on our growth strategy.

i

Mark Pickett
Chief Executive Officer
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Tribal's Growth Strategy

Our objective is to

rrovide @Jucation
technology

to customers globally,
as-a-service.

Kay benefits of our strategy:

An expanded, modular product offering will enabie us to increase the size of our addressable market. through
» ncreased revenue per customer

= increased number of customers

= sasier entry nto a greater number of geographies

» ability to target the customer base of competing solutions

= onable a partners programme

= |t willincrease our margins as we benefit from the scalability of the cloud

= Students will benefit from the increased digital and personaiised engagement with universities

= Universities will be able Lo focus on education provision and not 1T, delivering an enhanced, personalised service to therr students

Innovating with our existing products Key measures
= Wewill continue to nvest in our market-leading existing offerings, ensuring = CrowthinARR

they stay up to date and are relevant for our existing usecr base = New customer wins
s Wewill continue to sell our existing products to new customers, offered 'as- Progress in 2021

a-service' as standard, but available on-premise if dermanded . )
= Committed Annual Recurring

Revenue increased by 7% to
£50.3m(2020: £47.0m).

= New businass wins for all existing
products plus increased traction
of the successful migration of key
customers to TribakCloud.

= Newcustomers include University
of West London and Southampton
Solent University in the UK, Te Whare
Wananga o Awanuiarangi in New
Zealand, Middlesex University in
Dubaiand Universiteit Leiden in the
Netherland.
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Tribal Cloud: delivering our existing products 'as-a-service'

= Delver existing product suites as-a-service, and manage on behalf of our
clients including all of their ntegrations with other I products

» This will enable us to sell more to our existing customers, and help ensure
our customers are prepared for the long-term move to Fdge, our native
cloud ecosystem of education technology modules

Key measures

= ARR from Cloud services

= Number of Tnbal Cloud customers
Progress in 2021

=« Notable b-year contract wins with
University College London and The
University of Warwick.

Edge - a modular, next generation, cloud-native, Student
Information product set

» Create an expanded higher education ecosystem of next generation modules
tomeet all greas of student engagement with universities

= We have developed the Edge platform, on which module applications can be
built or acquired modules can be integrated through simple APl integrations.
This is now complete

= We are now developing modular applications that cover all the areas of
engagement between universities and students. These will be ‘best of breed’
products, able to be bought cither with the Edge platform and other madules,
or independently

= Universities no longer want to buy all therr requiremsnts from a single
vendor, m eng monolithic system. They want choice of medules and vendors.
The modules can therefore be sold both to existing Tribat customers and
customers of competing SIS vendors

= Thesewil be delivered entirely ‘as a service’, with no IT support required from

the universities, freeing them to focus on the delivery of education services
to their students

=« The modules will have the ability to be casily translated into multiple
languages. more quickly customisable to individual geographic needs and
able to be dalivered remotely - theretorz providing an easier means to onter
additional geographies

= Themodules wil be more appropriate for a partner model, as they will be
smaller, more digestible offerings

= The modifles will provide the opportuniLy for Increased upsell to existing
customers

= Themodules will enable more rapid adoption and faster mplementation times

Key measures
= Number of modules sold

Progress in 2021

= 11 new Dynamics deals inthe
UK and 3 in APAC highlights the
relevance of Edge products globally

= Positive progress on new modules
with the marketing launch of
Admissions, and the delivery of our
first Four early adopter customers

= Expansionof our Global Delivery
Centre In Malaysia to suppaort the
growing SE Asia business and Global
Delivery Model

Mergers and Acquisitions

»  Support geographic expansion, our organic growth will be complemented
through taclical acqusitions, of additional modular technology, to add to our
Edge ecosystem, or to enable cross-sell to the laige Tiibal customer base

= Ganmarket sharc to buld mass in our target geographies

Key measures

= Sales and ARR growth of acguired
businesses

Progressin 2021

»  The acquisition of Semestry Ltd and
Eveoh's "My Timctable” in the year
added cloud based scheduling to our
Edge product offering which enabled
expansion of the business into new
geographies.

= Wewon several new accounts and
cross sold into existing customers
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Financial Review
Results
Constant Chanfie Change

2020 Currency constant constant
m 201 Reported 2020° currency currency %
Revenue 81.1 73.0 734 77 10.6%
Student Information Systems 67.3 594 600 7.3 121%
Education Services 138 1356 134 04 35%
Gross Profit 418 386 389 29 7.4%
(Groes Profit Margin 51.5% 530% 53.1% - (1.5)pp
Adjusted Operating Profit (EBITDA)*2
(Before Central Overheads) 25.8 245 248 10 40%
Student Information Systems 23.6 223 229 0.7 3.1%
Education Services 22 21 19 D3 15.8%
Central Overheads® (9.2) (8.8) (8.8) (0.4) (4.0)%
Net foreign exchange gain/(fosses) 0.1 (0.8) 0.8} 09 112.5%
Adjusted Operating Profit (EBITDA) %2 16.6 149 162 14 9.2%
Adjusted Operating Margin {(EBITDA) »-2 20.5% 20.4% 208% - (0.3)pp
Statutory Profit bafore Tax B.6 85 85 01 0.7%
Statutory Profit after Tax 7.0 64 64 06 8.6%
Annual Recurring Revenue 50.3 475 47.0 33 70%

1. Adjusted Uperating Profit and Adjusted Operating Margin are in respect of continuing operations and excludes charges reported in“Other items” of £6 4m (2020 £€3.0m).

reterto note 6 in the Financial Statements.

2 EBITUA 15 caloulated by taking the Adjusted Operating Profit after the allocation of Central Overheads and excludes Interest, Tax, Depreciation and Amortisation.

2. 2020 results adusted ere updated for constant currency - the Group has appled 2021 forewn exchange rates to 2020 results to present a constant curency bams whenappled
to 2020 results Lhere s anincrease n Revenue of £0.4m anincrease to Adjustad Operating Profit (belore Centra Overbeads) of £0.3mand Adiusted Operating Profit of £0 3m.

4 Central Overheads are mado up of costs that are not directly attnbutable to either Student Information Systems or Educetron Services,

The financial review presents the reported
results for 2021 and 2020, and the 2020
results restated to "constant currency”
using 2021 rates to exclude foreign
currency impact. The change percentages
and comparatives are shown on the 2020
constant currency numbers. The presentation
disclosed as “constant currency” is an
alternative performance measure and nol

a statutory reporting measure preparedin
line with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) and disclosed as reported”.
The Group has chosen to present its results
onaconstant currency basis to reflect the
year-on-year performance and aceount for
the impact of foreign exchange movements
Inthe yoar,

Revenue

Revenue in the year incressed 10.6% to
£81.1m (2020 £73 4m constant currency,
adiusted for the impact of foreign exchange
of £0.4m; £730mas reported). Ona ke for
like basis, excluding Semestry revenue of
£1.2m (2020 £nil), the ncrease in total
revenue was 89%.

The Group's Student Information Systems
segment parformed well, increasing by
12.1% to £67.3m (2020: £60.0m constant
currency, €59 4mreported). 10.1pp of the
increase was driven by a strong performance
due to new customer wing across arange

of offerngs. the remaining 2 Opp was
attributable to Semestry revenue.

Education Services revenus ncreased by
35% to £13.8m (2020 £13.4m constant
currency; £13 5mreported) as a result of
projects gaming momentum as the impact of
the pandemic eased.

Approximately 40% of Trbal's revenug in

the year was generated outside the UK

and is therefore subject to foreign exchange
movement.

Gross Profit has increesed 7.4% to £41.8m
(2020: £39.1m constant currency, £38.6m
reported) whilst the margin percentage

has decreased to 51.5% (2020 53.3%
constant currency, 53.3% reported). The main
percentage decrease (s due to an increase In
salos of cur Edge products which have a lower

inital margin whilst we build scale and invest
nsales teams and due to low margins from

the Nanyang Technological University (NTU)

contract implementation phase.

Adjusted Operating Profit
(EBITDA)

The Adjusted Operating Profit (EBITDA)
increased £1.4m to £16.6m (2020
£15.2m constant currency; £14.9m
reported). The Adjusted Operating Margin
{EBITDA) decreased to 20.5% (2020

20 8% constant currency; 20.4% reported).

Central Overhaads, representing costs in
HR. [T, Finance, Marketing and Management
that aren't directly attributable to lines of
business increased by €0 4mto £9.2m
(2020: £8.8m constant currency, £8.8m
reported) The increase was primarily due to
additional property costs as offices gradually
re-opened n 2021 following the easing of
pandernic: restrictions and increased gicbal
insurance costs inline with market trends.
Margins will continue to be under pressure
next year due to the impact of inflation on



salaries and global inswence is expected to
continue torise in 20272,

We continue to focus on reducing overbead
costs and have continued to grow our Manila
office in the Philippines to support central
back office Tunclions, product development,
ebs and SeheolEdge product support

and other business services. The Group
continues to identify cost saving measures
and effertivaly manage its cost base.

Statutory Profit after Tax
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£1.7m, as noted on page 24, the urderlying
profit increase wag 35 9% The tax charge
reduced to £1.6m (2020- £2 1m reported)
due to the release of uncertain tax
provisions previously required. the effective
tax rate before these relcases was 19%
(2020 26%).

Segmental performance

The Group provides sottware and
non-software related services to the
international educational market. These

services are managed acioss two divisions,

As the Group's explicit strategy 1s to
trangition to a pure cloud-based SaaS
business, we have enhanced our segmental
revenue disclosure to highlight our Edge
and Cloud services. In addition, we now
differentiate "Other software and services”
which will continug to be supported but
where Turther investment will be limited
and mainly consists of historic Australian
Government contracts with bespoke
sottware and services.

The table on page 21 shows the changesin

The Statutory Profit after tax for the year Software Information Systems {SIS) and more detail.
increased by 8. 6% to £7.0m (2020 £6.4m Education Services.
reported). Excluding the costs of the Ventas
Programme, a onc-off project, in year of
Student Information Systems (SIS)
Constant Change Change
2020 Currency constant constant
£m 201 Reported 2020 currency currency 7
lourdation Support & Maintenance 26.0 252 266 05 1.9%
Foundation Software 54 44 45 0% 21.3%
Cloud Services 68 b2 52 16 315%
Edge 34 17 17 1.7 101.9%
Professional Services 127 9.2 83 34 36.8%
Core Revenue 54,2 45.7 46.0 8.2 17.8%
Other Software & Services 131 13.7 14.0 (09 (6.3)%
Total Revenue 673 59.4 60.0 7.3 12.2%
Adjusted Operating Profit 236 223 229 0.7 3.1%
Adjusted Operating Margin 35.0% 376% 381% - (31)pp

Student Information Systemns focusses on software related solutions
to the Higher Education, Further Education, Colleges and Employers
{referred to inAustralis as VET), and Schools sectors across the main
geographic markets being the UK, Australiz, New Zealand, Singapore,
Malaysia, Netherlands and Canada.

SIS revenue increased by 12.2% to £67 3m (2020: £60.0m
constant currency; £59.4m reported). We note that 2021 and
2020 reported numbers now include revenue and costs of Asset
Managernent, Software Solutions and Information Managed
Services, which were previcusly in Education Services, as it more
closely aligns to the Software segment. of which revenue was
2021:£2 7m, (2020-£2 6m constant currency and reported) and
associated operating marginwas 20271, €1 6m. (2020, £1.3m
constant currency and reported). Revenue generated from our core
product offerings mcreased 17 8% to £54.2m (2020: £46.0m
constant currency, £45.7m eported) however revenue from our
other software and services declined 6.3% to £13.1m (2020

£14 0m constant curiency, £13.7m reported) as discussed below,

The Group secured multiple new customer wins throughout the year
across Tnbal's range of software, reflecting the evolving product
suite, technology leadership and increasing actwvity levels within the
education sector globally.

Foundation Support & Maintenance feas in the period on our
Foundation products (SITS. Callista, ebs. Maytas. K2 and SID)
increased 1.9% in the period reflecting strong retention rates in our
customer base and now customers in the year.

Foundation Software includes the sale of new perpetual and
subscription seftware licenses on our Foundation products.
Revenue in the period ncreased 21.3% to £5.4m (2020: €4 bm
constant currency, £4.Am reported). Under IFR315 license
revenue ig recognised as the software is implemented ona
percentage complete basis, resulting in the revenue from larger
implementations taking more than two ycars to recognise. Key new
customers include University of West London and Scuthampten
Solent University in the UK, and internationally. Te Whare Wananga
o Awanuérang in New Zealand, Middlesex University in Dubai and
Universiteit Leiden in the Netherlands.

Cloud Services cover the provision of Tribal Cloud fully managed public
cloud services and hosting services supporting Tribal products, either
on-premise in a private cloud, or more Increasingly in g public cloud.
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Financial Review continued

Cloud revenues have continued to increase and are up 31.5% to £6.8m
{2020: £5.2m constant currency and reported). The main cloud hosting
services revenue increased ag the Group closed a number of significant
sales to existing customers, transitioning their existing on-premise
Tribal SITS software, SiTS Vision, nto the Tnbal Cloud, 2 managed
environment, Notably five-year contracts with University College
London and The University of Warwick which demonstrates interest in
moving to the public cloud from customers across all markets remains
high. We continue to have positive conversations acioss our extensive
customer base as they explore the benshits @ move to the cloud can
Leitng Lo Uien uiga isalion and are confident of continued uptake.

Edge revenues saw a significant increase of 102% to £3.4m
(2020 £1.7mconstant surrency, £1.7m reported). The main
contribution to the increase in revenuc was generated from the
successful acquisition of Semestry and Eveoh's "My Timetable”,
contributing 50pp of the mcrease in total Edge revenue. In addition,
Dynarmics had a slrong year closing eleven new deals in the UK and
three in APAC, including Te Whare Wananga o Awaninarang! in New
Zealand, Brunel University, and the University of St Andrews in the
UK. highlighting the relevance of Edge products globally. The Group
also completed the first sales of its newly developed Cloud-based
Edge Admissions module, including Aberystwyth University and the
University for tha Cresative Arts. Admigsions is the first significant
maodule on the Edge platform. The solution can be integrated with the
SITS Student Management Systern, or any other SMS, providing the
Group with a significant addresaable market,

Professional Services includas the implementation of all our software
products at customer sites, typically working alongside customer
teamns_Implementation projects vary in length and complexity. ranging
from a smallnumber of days to more than two years for complex
projects. Revenues are typically based on a day rate fee, although some
contracts are performsd under a fixed fee for defined implamentation
scope. Protessional services have continued to be delivered remotely
and the team has been bolstered by the Global Delivery Centre (GDC) in
Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia.

Ravenue increased by 36.8% ta £12.7m{2020- £9 3m constant
currency, £9.2m reported) primarily as result the NTU contract in
Singapore which was won in late December 2G20.

Other Software & Services declined 6.3% to £13.1m (2020

£14 0m constant currency. €13 7m reported). These revenues
include historic Australian government contracts, SchoolEdge, Data
Managed Services, Seftware Solutions and Infermation Managed
Services. In the year increased revenues from Software Solutions
offset a declne n SchoolEdge revenues. While these products
continue to operate profitably, they are non-core with limited
investrment plans and revenues will reduce over time.

Adjusted Operating Profit increascd by 3.1% to £23.6m (2020
£72 9m constant currency; £22 3m reported) and Adjusted
Operating Margin decroased to 35.0% (2020: 38.1% constant
currency; 37.6% reported. SIS margin reduced due to a product mix
impact. with increased Edge sales which have a lower initial margin
whilst we build scale and invest in sales tearns and low margins
from the NTU contract implementation phase due to its size and
complexity.

Annual Recurring Revenue (ARR)

Coanstant

2020 Currency
£m 2021 Reported 2020 Change Change%
Foundation
- Support &
Maintenance 247 2589 257 (10 (B39%
Foundation -
Subscription 38 25 25 13 538%
Cloud Services 8.2 66 66 16 241%
Edge 45 19 18 26 1389%
CoroProduct ARR 41.2 369 36.7 45 12.4%
Other Seftware &
Services 91 106 10.3 (1.2) (12.00%
Total ARR 50.3 475 470 33 7.0%

ARR is a key forward looking financial metric of the Group endis an
area of strategic focus. Our aim is to grow ARR in our core products
through the delivery of Software as a Service contracts, providing
increased quality of earnings.

ARR increased by /% to £60.3m (2020: £47 Om constant currency,
£47 bmreported). 4% of the growth is organic and the remaining
3% of the growthis due to the successful acquisition of Semestry
and Eveoh's "My Timetable”.

The 4% organic revenue growth is driven by 9pp of new software
sales and the successful migration of key customers to the Tribal:
Cloud.offset by 2 bpp decrease which s largely attributable to the
loss of two Callista customers and reduction in historic Covernment
contracts.

In December 2021, we concluded contract renewal discussions
with our eleven Australian university customers on the Callista
Software platform, of which nine have elected to renew. The five-
year agreemants provide a pathway to integrate the established
Callista software with Edge. Whiie this1epresents a £1.0m drop in
ARR. these multi-year renewals provide a strong base of long-term
committed ravenue.

Education Services (ES)

Change
Constant  Change constant
2020 Currency constant currency
£m 2021 Reported 2020 currency To
School
Inspections &
Related Services 111 114 112 01 11)%
l-graduate -
Surveys & Data
Analytics 27 21 2.1 05 274%
Total Revenue 138 135 134 04 35%
Adjusted
Operating Profit 22 21 19 03 158%
Adjusted
Operating Margin 16.3% 157% 145% 17% 170bps
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Education Services {ES) provides non-software related solutions
globally across the same market sectors. The core offerings are
Inspection and review services which support the assessment of
educational delivery, parformance benchmarking, student surveys,
and data analytics.

Education Services revenue increased by 3.5% to £13.8m (2020.
£13.4m constant currency, £13 bm reported).

The revenue from School Inspections & Related Services
decreased by 1.1% to £11.1m {2020 £11 2m censtant currency;
£11 4mreported),

In the UK. the main contracts continued to operate at consistent
levels largely delivered remotely. Revenue from the National
Professional Qualifications (NPQ) contract was somewhat reduced
in 2021 because of the phasing of the contract being weighted
more toward 2020, this was of fset by the increase in National
Centre for the Excellence of Teaching Mathernatics (NCETM)
revenue because of the recovery from Covid-19 allowing face-to-
face events to resumein 20271

The New York State Education Department (NYSFID) contract had a
solid performance as we worked closely with the NYSED to ensure
activity continued over the summer in 2021 ensuring some of the
contract value lost due to Covid-19 in 2020 was recovered inyoar.
The Performance Review Program for Initial License (PRFIL) picked
up in the year with a significant increase in licenses sold in 2021
compared to 2020 as aresult of schools re-opening in the US.

In the Middle East, the ADEK contract resumed at areduced level
in the final gquarter of 2021 compared to three months full delivery
in early 2020. No further revenues are expected from the ADEK
contract. The decrease in ADEK revenues were of fset by smaller
one-off contract wing in Bahrain however due to the flexible cost
model and variable cost base our margin was somewnhat protected.

The revenue for Surveys & Data Analytics increased by 27 4%

to £2 7m (2020 £2 Imconstant cunrency; £2. 1mreported). The
volume of benchmarking projects recoverad slightly from the impact
of Covid-19 as the International Student Barometer for the Southern
Hemisphere, delayed from 2020 was delvered in 2021, albeit with
lower participant numbers than normal, as a direct impact of roduced
numbers of international students in the Southern Hemisphere.

The Adjusted Operating Profit in Education Services increased by
15.8%to £22mi(2020: £1.9m constant currency; £2.1m reported),
the Adjusted Operating Margin also increased 1. 7pp to 16.3%
(2020: 14 5% constant currency; 15.7% reported), this increase

15 largely due to the variable cost model it opserates and the mix of
higher margin contracts offsetting the mpact of the lower margin
ADEK contract which was completed at the end of 2021,

Mapping of Revenue Streams

The table below highlights how previously reported revenue streams
have been updated to show more detail and moved to provide
clarity. Foundation products include SITS, Callista, ebs, Maytas

and 3ID. Edge products include Admissions, Submissions, Engage.
Dynamics and Semestry. Bospoke Software relates to historic
Australien government contracts.

Segmant Pravious Reported revenue streams | Sub Sections Changes
Student License & Development fees Foundation Sof tware Shown as new separate line
informalion ) ‘
Systems (31S) Fdge Shown as new separate ine
Beospoke softwara and SchoolEdge Moved to Other Software & Services
Support & Maintenance Foundation Support and Mantenance | Shown as new separate line
Bespoke software and AchoolEdge Moved to Other Software & Services
Support and Maintenance
Implementation Services, remamed Professional Services
Cloud Services Cloud Services Shown as new separate line
Bespoke Software and DataManaged | Moved to Other Software & Services
Services
Other services. renamed Other Software and Services Includes new products as noted
above/below
Education Schoolinspections & related services
services -
Surveys & Data Analytics, renamed l-graduate - Survays & Data Analytics
Information Management Services Moved to Other Software & Services
Asset Management Split across 'Foundanon Software’
'Foundation Support & Maintenance’,
Implementation Services’ and
‘Cloud Services'
Software Solutions Moved to Uther Software 8 Services
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Product Development

£ 2021 2020 Reported Change
Product Development 159 116 27%
Of which capitalised 10.2 6.8 33%
Edge 101 68 33%
Other Products 0.1 - 100%
O0f which expansed b.8 48 17%
Foundation Products 29 28 3%
Edge 22 13 40%
Other Products 0.7 06 -
Amortisation 0.9 12 (256%}

The Group spent £15 9m on Product Development, of which £10 1m
was capitalised in relation to Edge. meluding Dynamics and Semestry.
(2020.£116m spent, £6.8m capitalised £4 8m expensed)and £0.1m
(2020 £nil) was capitalised in relation to E-Evidence, a new appiication
for Education Services to streamline mspections. The net PRI charge
after removing capitalised spend was £5.8m (2020: £4.8m). We
continue to nvest in our Foundation products, adding new modules and
additional functionality as well as statutory updates, the costs of which
are oxpensed.

We centinued Lo deliver on our Edga strategy, which provides a
compeling vision to new and existing customers to embrace our
next-generation, best-of-breed, cloud native SIS solutions. As a
cloud native SIE, Edge provides a competitive differentiator in
targeting and acquiring new customers. In addition, it protects

Tribal's customer base by providing the most efficient, lowest cost

routo to achieve a comprehensive, integrated, open-standards SIS
which maximises the sludent experience and reduces the technicl
complexity and IT cost for our customers.

Our continued investment in Edge saw the marketing launch of
Admissions inJuly 2021 and the first sales began to come through,
Capitalised Product Development spend ncreased to £10.1m
(2020 £6.8m) as the Edge development team increasedin size

In the yvear. A review of the Group's capitalisation to date has been
undertaken resulting in £0.9m of pre-2021 capitalised costs being
expensed as we have clarity on our fulure Edge oftering, increasing
the net PRL charge to £5:8m (2020 £4.8m). We continue to invest
in our Foundation producls, adding new modules and additional
functionality as well as atatutory updates, the costs of which

are expensed.
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Key Performance Indicators (KPls)

2020 Change Change

2020 Constant constant constant

£m 2021 Reported Currency currency currency %
Revenue 811 73.0 734 78 10.6%
- Student Information Systems 67.3 569 60.0 7.3 12.1%
- Education Services 13.8 161 134 05 35%
Adjusted Operating Protit (EBITDA) 16.6 149 162 14 92%
Adjusted Opetating Margint 205% 20.4% 208% - (0.3)pp
Annual Recurring Revenue (ARR) 50.3 475 470 32 7%
Cormmitted Income (Order Book) 17256 1444 1426 298 20.9%
Operating Cash Conversion? 104% Q7% 97% - 7pp
Free Cash Flow® 5.4 5.4 5.4 - 0.2%
Staff Retention 86.9% 92.3% - - -
Revenue/Average Operational k11~ £100.1k £99.2k £99 8k £0.3k 03%

1. Adusted Dperating Profitand Adusted Operating Margin are inrespect of continuing operations and excludes charyes reported in "Other tems” of £5.4m (2020 £3 Om).
refer to note 6in the Financisl Statements. EBITOM s caleulated by taking the Adjusted Operating Profit after the allocation of Central Overheads and exchsdes Interest, Tax,

Depreciation and Amortisation,

2 RevenuefAverage Operstional F TE s the average b TE for the vear excluding average FTE assomated with capitalised Product Development. n 2021126 1 FTE were

capitalsed (2020 96.6)
3 Comparative restated —refer to Fras Cash Flow section below

Committed Income (Order Book)

The Committed Income (Order Book) rolates to the total value of
orders across SIS and ES, which have been signed on or before,

but not delivered by 31 December 2021. This represents the best
estimate of business expected to be delivered and recognised
infuture perods and ncludes 2 years of Support & Maintenance
revenue. At 31 December 20271 this increased to £172.6m (2020:
£144 4m reported). 76% of the increase relates to the B-year
contract extension with ning universities within the Callista group in
Australia. The remainder of the increese is attnbutable to Semestry.

Operating cash conversion

Operating cash conversion 18 caleulated as net cash from operating
activities before tax as a proportion of adjusted operating profit
(EBITDA) excluding the cash outtlow of £1.7m on the Veritas
programme. [n 20271, operating cash conversion was 104% (2020
S7% reported). In prior years” operating cash conversion was
calculated using EBITA rather than EBITDA, this has been changed Lo
align more closely with the most relevant profit measure. The 2020
comparison has beenrestated and excludes the ane-off settlement
of the platform dispute payment of £8.1m as disclosed in 2020,

Free cash flow

Free cash flow is included as a key indicator of the cash that s
generated by the Group and is available for acquisition refated
investment, interest and finance charges and. or distnbution

to shareholders. L 1s calculated as ret cash generated before
dividends, interest and finance charges, deferred consideration, and
investments in subsidianes. Free cash flow n 2021 and 2020 was
consistent at £5.4m, investment in product development increased
£3.1m however, was offset with £3.0m proceeds on shares sold to
satisfy exercises of share-based payment schemes. In prior years’
free cash flow was calculated based on net cash from operating

actvities less capital expenditure and less capitalised development
costs (excluding acquired intallectual property), the prior vear
comparative has beenreslated to reflect the change in definition.
In 2020, free cash flow excluded the one-olf setllement of the
plattorm dispute of £8.1m.

Net of cash acquired, the Group pad £4 1m as initial consideration of
Semestry Limited, which included £0.8m of deferred consideration
paid in Cctober 2021 The final deferred consideration relating te the
Dynamics acquisition of £1.3mwas paid in March 2021.

Full Tims Equivalent (FTE) and staff retention

2021 2020 Change
UK 651 587 64
Asia Pacific 317 282 35
Rest of world* 14 10 4
Full Time Equivalent (FTE) 982 879 103

1including USA. Canada and Middie East

Our overall workforee has increased by 11.7% to a total FTE of G82
from 879 at 31 December 2020, This is after adding an additional
3% heads following the acquisition of Semestry Limited and Eveoh's
"My Timetable” anincrease ot 15 FTE in aur Global Delivery Centre

in Malaysia and 30 additional FTE in our Edge team as we accelerate
delvery in line with the product development roadmap.

On an operational FTE basis (excluding Capitalised Product
Development), the revenue per average operational FTE increased
to 100.1k {2020: £99 Bk constant currency, £99 2k reported).

We note, though, that despito the extent of change within the Group,
our statf retention has only docroased to 87.0% (2020: 92 3%).
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Financial Review continued

Items excluded from adjusted profit figures

The Group has adopted a policy of disclosing separately on the face
of its Group income statement the effect of any components of
financial performance considared by Lhe Directors to be not directly
related to the trading business or regarded as exceptional, and [or
which separate disclosure would assist in a better understanding

of the financial performance achieved. A full explanation of “Other
ltems” 15 included in note 6 of the Financial Statements however the
main items are as follows:

=  Fmployes related sharo option charges.
In 2021, share based payment charges (including employer
related taxes) totalled £1.6m (2020: £1.8m). and are excluded
from the Adjusted operating profit. On 28 June 2021, 476 591
nil-cost share options were granted to Mark Picket (276510)
and Diane Mcintyre (204 081) under the terms of the 2010
Long-Term Incentive Plan

= Amortisation of IFRS 3intangibles
The amortisation charge in relation to IFRS 3 intangible assets
of £0.9m(2020: £1.0m) arose lrom separately identifiable
assets recognised as part of previous acquisitions. The assets
principally relate to software and customer relationships and are
amortised over ther expected life which was determined in the
year the acquisition tock place.

= Internal Systems Transformation Programme "Veritas™
During 2020 and 2021 the Group has been running the
Veritas Programme. This includes an upgrade Lo its accounting
systern (Microsoft Dynamics D365) and is part of a wider
implermnentation of a new target operating model and processes
to provide greater operating efficiencies and reporting
functionalities. Following clarified guidance issued in relation
to 1AS 38 £1.7m of costs that would have previously been
capitalised do not meet the criteria to be capitalisedas a
software intangible and hava beon expensed to the ncome
statement, of which £0 2mwas incurred in 2020.

Net cash and cashflow

€m 2021 2020  Change
Net cash flow from operating

aclivities 139 55 84
Net cash outflow from investing

activities (16.9) (9.2) (77)
Net cash outflow from financing

activities (0.4) (3.3) 29
Net {decrease)/increass incash &

cash equivalents (3.4) (7.0) (3.5)
Cash & cash equivelents at

beginning of the year 95 165 (6.9)
Cash & cash equivalents at end

of period 6.1 95 (3.4)
Less. Effect of foreign exchange

rate changes (0.2) - 0.2)
Net cash & cash aquivalents at

ond of period 59 95 (3.6)

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 2021 were £5.9m

(2020: £5 bm).

Operating cash inflow for the period was £13.9m (2020: £5.5m).
Excluding the cne-off settloment of £8.2min 2020 the cash inflow
would have been £13.7m comparad to £5.5m. The working capital
movement in year increased to £1.4m, (2020 €0.4m excluding the
one-off settlement of £8.2m) due to strong collection of debtors at
year end

Cash outflow frominvesting activities was £16 9m (2020 €9.2m).
The increased headcount has seen an increase in capital expenditure
spend on equipment costs (Z021: £0.6m, 2020: £0.4m). Spend on
product dovelopment increased to €102 (2020 £7 1m)in line
with the Group's product investment programme. The Group mads
apayment of £2 1m for deferred consideration (2020 £1.7m), of
which £1.3m was the final earn-out fram the Dynamics acquisition,
the remaining £0.8mwas aninitial eam out payment for Semestry,
The Group made an upfront net payment of £4.2m inrespect of the
acguisition of Semestry Limited in April 2021.

Cash outflow from financing activities decreased to £0.4m (2020
3.3m). The Group paid a final dividend of 1.2p per share in the year
with £2 5m returned to sharcholders. Bank lcan arrangement foes
and interest in the penod totelled £0.2m (2020: £0.2m). This 15 offset
with the proceeds from the issue of sheres totalling £3.2m (2020
£0.2m) to satisty exercises of share-based payment schemes.

Funding arrangements

0On 21 January 2020 the Group entered into a 3year £10m
multicuricney revolving facility wath HSBG with the option to extend

by a further 2 years. The first option to extend was approved by HSBC
on 15 March 2021, the second extension was approved by HSBC on

B January 2022 effective 21 Janvary 2022 The facility was putin
place Lo cover general corporate and working capital requirernents of
the Group, as at 31 December 2021 none of the loan was utiised. The
Group had & £2m committed overdraft facility in the UK and a AUD$2m
committed overdraft facility in Australia, both facilities are committed
for a 12-month period ending August 2022 and October 2022
respectively. At 31 December 2021 both overdrafts were available but
undrawn. o offset the impact of movements in foreign exchange the
Group entered into three forward centracts 1o hedge the movement
between ALUD GBP and USD B8P, These contracts expired inthe year
and generated a net change in fair value of £0.2m (2020: £0.1m). The
{3roup will continue to manage foreign sxchange exposure during 2022,

Shareholders returns and dividends

Iribal remains commitled to a progressive dividend policy and the
Boardis pleased to propose a final dividend in respect of the year
ended 31 December 2021 of 1.3p. pending approval at the AGM on
A4 May 2022 The anticipated payment date is 28 July 2022, with

an associated record date of 24 June 2022 and ex-dividend date

of 23 June 2022 In July 2021 Tribal paid a final dividend of 1.2p

per share inrecognition of the vear ended 31 December 2020. The
Roard intends to continue a progressive dividend policy, with a single
dividend payment each year following annual results.
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Going concern

Tribal had cash and cash equivalents of £5.9m at the end of 2021 plus
access toan undrawn UK and Australisn overdraft of £2.0m and $AUD
20mrespactively. Iribal Group nlc has undertaken to make adequate
financial resources available to the Group to meet its current and
future obligations as and when they fall due by entering a ©10m facility
to cover corporate merger and acquisition activity and, if required,
termporary working capital requirements of the Group.

Tribal's main business is software related through the provision

of Student Inforrmation Systems (SI9) to education institutions
globally, Revenue is generated from the sale of sofltware lcenses and
related implementalionwork, and the ongoing provision of support

& maintenance and cloudhosling services. 1he Group benefits trom
strong annual recurring revenues and cash generation, it also has a
significant pipeline of committed income ag it enters 2022 which
provides a goed level of protection and certainty to the business. Wiile
the Group's net current lisbility position has incieased to £20.9m from
£16.2min 20201t 15 stilt being driven by the recognition of IFRS 16
lease lizbilities as current liabilities of £0.9m, the deferred consideration
recognised relating to the Semestry and Eveoh acquisitions of £1.3m
and net current contract liabilities of £17.4m relating to deferred
customer revenue recognised in accordance with IFRS 15.

The Group had a positive end to the year, closing several significant
sales to new and existing customers, and expanding its global footprint,
The financial mpact of the pandermic and the changing expectations of
students, means that never has the need for cloud-based solutions for
the Education market been more pressing. The investments the Group
continue to make position Tribal at the forefront of this evolution in the
industry.

In assessing the Company's going cencern position and Lhe Group's
ability to provide the necessary financial support. the Directors have
considered all relevant facts and latest {orecasts and essessment of
the: risks faced by the Group, considering reasonably possible changes
in trading performance. In addrtion, management have sufficiently
stross tested the latest forecasts to the paint where erther the

Group cannot meet its labilities or is in breach of banking covenants
and have concluded that this pasition is so remote 1t does not have a
significant impact on the Groups ability to continug as a going concern.
Accordingly, af ter making enguines and recenving confirmation of Group
support as set out above, the directors have a reasonable sxpectation
that the Company has adequate resources to continue in operational
existence for at least 12 monthis from the date of approval of the
financial statements and the foreseeable future, Thus, they continue to
adopt the going concern basis in prepanng the financial statements.

Taxation

The corporation tex on continuing operations was £2.2m (2020):
£3.1m) and the adjusted effective tax rate was 16% (2020 27%).
The decrease was due to the release of uncertan tax provisions
previously required, the effective tax rate before these releases
was 19% (2020 25%).

As the Group continues to operate in international jurisdictions with
a higher rate of corporation tax, it is anticipated thet the tax charges
on profits n the near- to medium-term future is likely to be higher
than the standard rate of UK corporation tax.

Share options and share capital

On 28 June 2021, 479591 share options were granted to Mark
Pickett (275.510) and Diane Mcintyre (204.081) as part of their
GNgoINg remunaration.

Ihe shares issued durng the year in order to satisfy exercises of
share-based payment schemes totalied 4.676.064. The exercise
cost ot bp, 79 6p and 80p per share for the LTIP's resulted in cash
receipts of £3.2m, refer to Note 22,

Earnings per share (EPS)

Adjusted basic earnings per share from continuing operations before
other costs and intanghble asset impairment charges and amortisation,
whichreflects the Group's underlying trading performance. increased by
39% to 5.7p (2020 4.1p) due to the increase n adjusted profit before
tax and the reducad tax charge in the year of the overseas current tax
charges.

Statutory basic earnings per share increased by 10% to 3.41: (2020
31p) as aresult of the statutory profit increase in the yaar to £7.0m
(2020: statutory profil £6.4m).

Pension obligations

At 31 December 2021, the Group operated two defined benefit
pensicn schemes for the benefit of certain deferied employees

of its subsidiaries in the UK which are closed to new members.
These schemes are administered by separate funds that are legalty
separated from the Parent Company and relate to a historic contract
within Education Services. The trustees of the pension funds are
required by low to act in the interest of the funds and of all relevant
stakeholders in the schemas. The trustees of the pension funds are
responsible for the investment policy with regard to the assets of
the funds.

Across the pension schemes, the combined deficit calculated under
IAS19 at the end of the year reduced 78% to £0.2m (2020: deficit
of £0.9m), with gross assets of £8.8m and gross liabilities of £9.0m
(2020 £8.3mand £9 3m respectively). Total actuanal gains/(losses)
recognised in the consclidated statement of comprebensive
income are £0.7m (2020 (€0 4)m).

Diane Mcintyre
Chief Financial Officer
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The Group is exposed to a number of risks and uncertainties
which could have a material impact on the future performance of the Group.
The table below summarises the key risks that the Directors consider the

business faces and how the Group seeks to mitigate them.

Fallure to successtully
implement and manage
growth strategies.

to besuiming a pure play £d Tech SAAS business.

Such transformation may present vanous
challenges such as:

= Increased demands on managemant attention
due to acquisitions and wider product portfalo

= Fnsuring acquisitions deliver on their growth
potential

= [ntering new geographic markets and evaluating
market, legal and regulatory risks

= Ensuring the business operations can scale
effectively and support our SAAS products

Failure can lead to impairment of agsets acquired,
reputational damage and mpact overall financial
performance of the group.

Risk Title Risk Description Mitigation
Strategic The CGroup continues to pursus expansion both The Group has an experienced management team
Transformation organically and through acquisition, as we transition and performance ageinst stratuyy is closely

monitored, with oversight by the Board.

Structured working committees and oversight
boards are in place to focus on integrating new
businesses into the group, manage our internal
transformation programme (Veritas) and ensure
delivery against our objectives and financial
metrics.

Veritas will Tocus on building SAAS business
processes, driving simplification, standardisation,
and optimisation right across the value chain to
enable delivery of our growth targets.

Appropriate due diligence 18 carried out by the
Company prior ta the identification and completion
of an acquisition and incentive/retention schemes
are put in place for certain key personal,

Project and Sarvice
Delivery

Delvery of major
projects and ongoing
software and service
defivery may not moct
custormer's expactations
or contractual
requirements.

The Group's activities includes major software
instaliation projects which are typically one to two
years in length and involve significant process

change Lo our customers core business operations.

The complexity of our customers’ systems and
ability to change can impact our ability to deliver to
contract and require adept project management.

Our Tribal-Cloud customers in particular rely on our
ability to maintain our service levels and ensure
appropriate continuity of service despite potential
wider global distuption from pandemics for
example, or supply chainissues.

A failure 10 deliver can lead to increased
implementatlion costs, disputed invoices, penalty
payments, reputationai damage and an impact on
other cngoing projects.

Strong controls are maintained to ensure
successful project delivery and reviews project
prograss monthly at Executive Management level
with Board oversight.

The Group engages with premium cloud computing
suppliers (e.g. Microsof t Azure and Amazon AWS)
the architecture and contracts of which facilitates
high level response SLAs and a quick recovery in
the event ol a single region failure.

The Group maintains a formal Delegation of
Authority matrix to ensure appropriate visibility
and approval of all customer contracts te ensure
liabilities are reasonable and enerous contract
clauses are avoided.

The Group has responded guickly to external
shocks such as the Global Pandemic and the
axccutive team have established processes to
enable guick and effective decision making.
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Risk Title Risk Description Mitigation
Innovation and Our customers face increasing pressure to provide The Edge preduct development roadmap is
Technology the best student experience and outcomes focused on ensuring the Group can fulfil our

The Group's software
developrent
programme negeds to
deliver to customer's
reguirerments and
keep pace with market
doveloprmenl s,

and require flexible cloud native, SAAS softwarc
solutions.

Challenges arise from the ability to deliver
new software products to time, budget and
to a sufficient quality to ensure a successful
implementation to our customers

A tailure to delver will result in lower sales, higher
churn reputational damage and obsolete products.

customer demands.

Ihe Group continues to investment in its internal
engineering and product-development capability
to enable delivery in line with the product roadmap.

Information
Management and
Data Security
Security breaches,
cyber-attacks or
outages could harm the
Group by disrupting our
internal and customers
operations.

As with other software and cloud-based busincss
there s anincreasing nisk of our systems being
compromised by deliberate attacks or unintentional
acts, which could lead Lo & loss of P unauthonsed
dataaccess or data loss. A successlul cyber-attack
against our information assets could significantly
impact our ability to function and retain and attract
business, as well as potentizl financial penalties
fromregulators.

With a wider geographic presence, there 1s Increased
risk from multiple regulatory data protection and
information seclrity requirement e which need fo be
closely monitored. A failure to follow requirements
could lead to financial penalties, reputational
damage and their consequent impact on our overall
performance.

The Group operates a Secure Data Centre and
continues to implement IS0 27001 certification
across the business. Continued investment in
secunty soflware and training for all staff enforces
good practice on data security. In addition, the
Group has its own Bata Protection Officer who
ensures compliance with GDPR.

Pecple

Failure to attract and
retain skilled galos,
software development
and other key
operational employesas
could harm the Group's
performance,

Business growth requires key skill sets which arein
demand, In product areas such as Tribal:Cloud and
Dynarmics. With ncreased inflation and rotation in
the market it becomes increasingly Important to
attract and retain peopla in our key roles.

Increased staff turnover and vacancies may inder
our ability to manage operations effectively and
impact sales, product developrent or software
implermentations.

The Group has ncentive schemes designed to
attract, motivate, and retain key erployees, whilst
encouraging appropriate behaviours We aimto
provide competitive remuneration packages and
training for all staff.

The Group's commitment to improving the
diversity within our workforce will assist overall
performance and hel: to widen our pool of
potantial candidates.

Legal & Regulatory
Requirements

The Group operates across several Jurisdictions
that have varying legal, tax and compliance
requirements. Any non-complance with customer
contract requirements and legislation or regulatory
requirements could have an adverse effect on the
Group's reputation or financial results

The Group monitors propoged or adopted legal
and rogulatory changes, assessing the impact
changes have on the busmness operations and
implementing appropriate safeguards to ensure
compliance. txternal advisors are used when
required.

We operate a no-tulerance culture supported
by our values and ethical standards. All relevant
training is provided to staft and policies are
updated regularly to reflect required changes.
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Stakeholder Engagement

Section 172 of the Companies Act 2006 requires
each Director of the Company to act in a way they
consider, in good faith, would most likely promote
the success of the Company for the benefit of its
members as a whole.

Long-term
business

SUCCEeSS

The Board recognises that the long-term In this way Section 172 requires a Director to have regard, amongst
success of the business is dependant on olher matters, to the

the way we interact with a range of key
stakeholders as demonstrated by our
compliance with the QCA code, which under

= Likely consequences of eny decisions in the long term
= Interests of the Company's employees

principles 3 and 9 require companies to take = Need Lo foster the Company's business relationships with
account of wider stakeholder and social suppliers, customers and other key stakeholders
responsibilities, including the implications s Impact of the Company's operations on the community and the
for long-term success and to maintain environment

governance structures and processes that = Desrability of the Company maintaining a reputation for high
support good decision making. standards of business conduct, and

a  Need to act fairly between members of the Company

In discharging its Section 172 duties the Board has considered the
factors set out above and the viows of key stekeholders.
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Engaging. consulting and action on the needs of different stakeholders is critical for the development and delivery of a culture and
strategy that achieves long-term success. Tribal under takes meaningful engagement with its stakehclder groups to buld trusted, strong
relationships and supports the ethos of Section 172 in order to support good decision making.

The Board acknowledges that some decisions will not necessarily result in a positive outcome for all our stakeholders, however, it always
strives to act in the best interest of the Group and to be farr and balanced inits approach to stakeholder management. The needs of
different stakeholders are always considered as well as Lhe consequences of any decision it the long term and the importance of our
reputation for high standards of business conduct. By considenng the Group's purpose, vision, values and commitment te respensible
business together with its strategic prionties and having a process m place for principal decision-making, the Board aims to ensure that its
decisions are In the best interests of the business.

The Company's key stakeholders are set out in the table below. The views of and the impact of the Company's activitizs on those
stakeholders are anmportant consideration for the Directors when making relevant decisions.

on our strategic ohyectives. We sesk
toattract, develop. and retain high-
calbre staff, and as a consequence.
our customers can be assured that the
service they receive 1s among the best
avallable,

Stakeholder Wh H

Group ¥ we engage ow we engage

Investors Trust from our shareholders is key to The Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer meet with
dedvering our strategy and long-term representatives of mest rajor institutional shareholders at least
success. We endeavour to provide farr, twice a year. Foedback from these meetings 1s shared with the Board
balenced. and meaningfulinformation to to ensure the Directors understand sharcholder expectations and
shareholders and potential investors to motivations. The Directors are also avallable at the AGM to answer
ensure they understand our performance questions raiged by shareholders.
and strategy. ) ) ) . .

Tribal encourages regular dialogue with both existing and potential

Sharehelders play an important role shareholders throughout the year to understand therr needs and
N the success and growth of the expectations, and to ensure that the Group's strategy, business model
Group and have historically provided and progress are clearly understood.
asource of equity to help fund some o ‘ . .
of the acquisitions made. In addition, !nvestpr information \ncl.udlng the annual report, investor presentations,
shersholders provide imporlant feedback including the annua capl_ta\ markets day Dreseptatlon and
to the Executive Directors on markel announcermeants are available on the Company's website,
conditiens, expectations, and economic
performance.

Employees Our employces are vital to help us deliver Irbal engages with its employess through anonymous opinion surveys

to gather feedback on all aspects ot employment within the Group
thraughout the year. This Teedback is then considerad by the senior
management team and reported to the Board on a regular basis.

Employes performance reviews are conducted annually. In addition,
managers are encouraged to hold reguler, nformal one-to-cne sessions
with each of their direct reports.

Employees can ask questions regarding all aspects of the business
during our regular Group-wide all-hands meetings with the Group's
Executive Management team.

Customers &
Suppliers

Delivering our strategic priorities

and ensure we continue to operate
successfully reguires strong muotually
boneficial relationships with customers,
suppliers, and government departments.
Tribal sirns to bulld strong and trusted
business relationships with both
customers and suppliers. all of whom
are crucial to delivering many of our
strategic objectives. We aim to maximise
cost efficiencies and enhance positive
outcomes for all.

The Group has regular communication via email, newsletters end
the Group's website that includes news and regular blogs for all
stakeholders to view,

We have a team focused on Customer Success, facilitating ongoing
meetings with existing customers to better sefvice our customers and
add value across our customer base.

We hold an annual conference, Empower, for all customers globally
where sess10ns are run to update customers on our suite of products
and services. During Covid-19 this conference was run remotely but
will be looking to re-instate face to face conferences when restrictions
allow.
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Q&A with Management

Well positione

INn a growin
market

Chloe Payne
Director of HR

Diane Mcintyre
Chief Financial Officer
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What role do you think the pandemic has had on how
the business has evolved in the last 18 months?

Chlge:

I's been difficult seeing some of our colleagues struggle with such difficuir
circumstances brought about by the pandemic. We worked hard to provide
individualised support and ensure we had mechanisms in place, but there has
besn a lot cutside of our control and that can be hard. On the plus side, we
have seer the ppportunity to really uunent what was alieady a very floxible
culture and to ba bold about enabling our people to make permanent choices
about whare and when they work. Our flexibility has become a core part of our
employee value propesition.

Diane:

To add to that, from an operations perspective, as a global business we have
always worked remotsly to some extent, but the exparience has shown both
us and our customers that we can increase the amount we deliver remotaly,
tobothincrease efficiency and reduce our carbon footprint. We've also seen
abig increase in our customers focus on student wellbeing over this dif ficult
period and this is animportant part of our product roadmap.

How do you think the business has responded to having more of
afocus on ESG or has that always been a part of the Company?

Chloe:

Tribat has always been a respansible business, our roots In Education means
that many colleagues are dniven by a passion for making a difference and
that's what took them to Tribal. For me, having a focus and a formal ESG
Committee is about ensuring we are pushing ourselves to be as good as we
carn be. That 1s sbout inoking outwards to ensure we can learn from others and
centinually striving to improve and measure those improvements.

Diane:

It has been clear to me that the fundamental ideas have always been core

to Tribal's values. For example, before | joined, [ remember listening to Janet
Tomlinson, the former MD of our Education Services business at the time,
talking about the work we completed with schools that needed some extra
guidance and support to mprove therr teaching in English and Maths, and it
made me realise just how important our projacts canbe. |have seen that spirit
replicated across the organisation.

What are the most exciting challenges or opportunities
that lie ahead for Tribal?

Chlge:

202275 a pivotal year [or us. real momentum has beenbuilt and customers
are baginning to buy next generation solutions - our challenge is ensuring
that we continue to bulld our capacity and capability to deliver and exceed
our gustomers’ expectations whilst maintaining focus on our centinued
nvestiments Innew products. It s really exciting, as we canreally see a
vahdation of our strategy driving that momentum,

Diane:

As Chloe says. our operational teams are focused on ensuring our customers
have a greal experience as they move to Iribal.Cloud. whilst other teams

are focused on our longer term opportunities fromour Edge product setand
ncieasing our global presence. Seeing early shoots of success fromour early
adapters for exarmple s incredibly motivating, while we keep our target of
doubling ARR firmly in our mind.

Chloe, having been with
Tribal for 10 years, what
are the most profound
changes you have seen
inthe business over
that time?

Chloe:

The business ijoined then. s
not the Tribal of today. | juned
an Education business witha
very broad portfolic, now Tribal
i first and foremost a software
business, entirely focussed
around our goal of becoming an
EdTech SaaS business.

Diane, you are now
nearly a year into your
time with Tribal, what do
you think the Company’s
key strengths are to
enable delivery of its
strategy?

Diane:

Our deap understanding of
the education sector and the
passion of our people. Every
day | see our teams absolutely
committed to ensuring our
clients get the best out of

the products. And then in the
background. the management
team are focused on our
transition to a Saa8 model,
and the chenges we need to
make s0 we can efficiently
deliver an excellent service

to our customers. | see thase
elements as sitting at the heart
of our success.
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Aarhus University & Semestry: Improving student
and teacher experiences with their schedules.

Aarhus University (AL) is a dynamic, modern,
highly-international university that excels at

creating val e through knewledge, new insights,

and collaborabion. And through their partnership
with Semestry, Al ig on its way to achieving
their strategic goal of offering research-based
education of the highest internationsl quality”

AU knew that it must consolidate its
timetabling solutions into a urifled solution in
order to provide greater support for schedufing
processss and workflows. Our goal? Giealter
flexibility. increased personalisation and user
centredness, and greater space optimization.”
Said Arneld Boon, University Director at

Aarhus University.

“With Semestry, Al gans smart scheduling
technology that empowers institutional
respoONSes Lo complex constraints so we
can defiver the right scheduies for everyone”
continued Arnold.

Aarhus University is reafizing the benefits of a
single timetabling solution, Including:

= Personalised timetables that offer a
greater degree of self-management for
students and teachers

= Increased transparency inte scheduling and
room usage across the institution

= More efficient planning and process
optimization for timetablers

Tha result is better, more accessible and
personalised timetables for students as well
as improved timetabler views nto schedules
and room avallability across faculties and
departments. And the next step for Aarhus
University? The implementation of ExamTime to
handle the planning of the university's exams.,



Annual Report & Accounts 2021
Strategic Report
Governance

Tribal Group plc

34

Financial Statements

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Tribal has always been committed to activities that
benefit the environment and sociaty, under-pinned
by good governance. We believe the credibility and
sustainability of any business goes beyond pure
financial gain; a principle demonstrated by our
mission to empower the world of education.

Our core tenets

We believe our solutions have the potential to make a positive
impact within the education sector in two key aleas: increasing
student well-being, diversity and succoss, while suppoLing the drive
by the sector to lower carbon cmissions.

The issues of emaotional wellbeing and diversity of ther student
populations are high on the agenda of many of the world's
educaticnal institutions and we are committed to harnessing the
power of cloud computing Lo help our customers in addressing
these challenges and realising their goals. You can read more on this
topic within Lhe Social section of this report.

Educational institutions are also increasingly conscious of the role
they can play in the global drive towards the reduction of carbon
emission. We believe the move from the use of servers running
localised versions of our software on site at our customers (our
traditional SIS of ferings). to our next generation offerings, hosted
within larger datacentres (Tribal. Cloud and Edge), will not only free
our chents from the burden of running therr own 1T systems, but
also reduce the overall power consumption required to deliver this
technology. You can read more about this within the Environmental
section of this report.

Our six priority areas

Alongside these two core tenets and as part of our journey to
continually improve our approach and performance, Tribal created a
formal ESG Committee n 2021, chaired by Non-Executive Director,
Nigel Halkes, to ensure effective oversight and investment in these
increasingly important areas. The Committee meets on a quarterly
basis and mermbers also inciude CFO Diane Mcintyre and HR Director
Chloe Payne.

Inearly 2021 the Committee formalised six prionty areas for the
Croup guing loiward. Cach area has key initiatives and objectives
for the coming year and appropriate ownership from across our
Exacutive Management Team. We have also demonstrated where
these priority areas align with the UN's Sustainable Development
Goals (500s), as shown below.

Ultimate responsibility for Tribal's ESG performance lies with the
Board, but as our ESG commitments cement, we will continue
to raise awareness amongst all staff members to encourage
involvernent in our ESGinitiatives.

In 2022, an £56 working group will be formed to implement our
intiatives across the Group, including Finance, Human Resources
and Governance.,

Inorder Lo understand best practice, we are learning from other
companies and have engaged a third-party business in the
community to help manitor and understand our position with ESG.

Tribalis currently focused onimproving its impact in the
following areas.

UN SDGs

Environmental Social Governance
L]
2
_"é Reduced carbon emissions Diversity & Wellbeing Compliance & Data
‘c
Reduced travel with carbon offset Diversity within Tribal Internal systems improvements

Ongoing Ongoing Ongoing
§
_,E Commitment to minimal paper Supporting student welfare Global ISO certification
E Now met Ongoing {ngoing
S

Cloud consumption Charity: Job Coaching Scheme
Neswe New
N N
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Environmental

As previously demonstrated by our commitment to the Energy
Savings Opportunity Scheme {ESOS), Iribal has been focused on
reducing its environmental impact for a number of yvears, Though
the pandemic has allowad us to improve our performance in many
of these areas this year, we are dseterrmined to change behaviour on
an ongoing basis so that such improvements can continue in the
long term.

Key initiative: reduced travel with carbon offset: ongoing
Ihe angoing impact of the pandermic requiring remote working and
virtual meetings, meant our trave| continued to reduce in 2021,
As part of our target to reduce ar travel by 26% per head over the

next five years, we 1ssued travel guidelines and a travel mindfulness

framework to all employees in July 2021. To oversee this, we hired
a Global Travel Manager in October who has helped to refresh our
global travel policy to ensure the continuing adoption of a "remote
first” model for service delivery. On top of this. n November 2021,
we introduced an E-vehicle salary sacrifice scheme for stalf with
the aim of having at least 10% of employees using the scheme

by the end of 2023 Alrthaugh many of our employees have already
changed their contracts to stay as remote workers permanently,
when travel cannot be avoided, we continue to ook for new ways to
offset our emissions with reductions elsewhere,

Key initiative: commitment to minimal paper: now met

We are focused on finding ways to reduce our averall resource
consumption. By the end of 2021, we met our cormmitment to geing
paperless, a key initiative we had launched in 2020, by ceasing or
reducing contracts with all printer-photocopiers glabally to minimum
operational levels. We have also continued to invest in equipment
thal will significantly reduce our need for printing when delivering
OUr SeIVIGES.

New Key initiative: cloud consumption

Now that we have met our paperless initialive, we are switching
one of our focus areas to cloud computing consumption. This year
we have hired a Cloud Optimisation director to overses our cloud
cormputing consumption in 2027 This i to ensure we are not
wasting energy by having too many servers running that we do
not need

Tribal's cloud hosting providers, Amazon Web Services [AWS) and
Microsoft, are also committed te bulding s sustainable business
tor customers and the planet. AWS is on path to achieve 100%
renewable energy by 2025 and as the world's largest corporate
buyer of renewable energy, Amazon uses new renewable energy on
the electric gnd m Furope to help power its business operations.
Miciosoft has been carbon neutral across the world since 2012 and
commits to being carbon negative by 2030. Its goal is to promote
sustainable development and low-carbon business practices
globally through its cloud-enabled technologies. Using cloud
providers who are also committed to reducing carbon emissions,
Inbal oxpects to see a positive impact onits global server usage
and thereby that of its custemers going forward.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report continued

Social

Tribalis committed to contnbuting to a fairer and more socially
inclusive world. As well as having a positive impact on our employecs
and customers, we are aware of tho positive contribution we can
1inake to wider socioty.

Key initiative: diversity within Tribal: ongoing

Development. retention and recruitrment strategies at all levels of
the business have a strong emphasis on diversity In 2021, Tribal
turned its internal focus to developing policies and strategies in
the area of talent acquisition to cnsure the business is attracting
amore diverse applicant pool. The tsam also focused en ensunng
systems exist to measure progress, helping increase accountability
and delivering improvemeant. We now have the tools to examine how
our focus on driving diversity and improving the gender balance is
tracking on a menth by month hasis.

Whilst the recrustment pracess is key. it is also important to pay
attention to turnover and the retaining of talent to ensure the
efforts indriving diversity in hinng are not then undone. Our data
confirms we do not experience this problem at Tribal and so we can
be confident that our continuing progress in hiring diverse talent will
tranglate in Lo progress inactual represertation.

Throughout the vear, we also made significant progress in the hiring
rate of BAME employees and continue to develop our strategy to
attract and retain the right talent.

In2C21, 23% of our hiring hag been of BAME employaes, compared
to our current baseline representation of 8%. This has resulted

in BAME employee numbers in the business increasing to 11% 0
2021 from 8%.

in 2021 we became a signatory of the Tech Talent Charter, a
commitment by over 660 UK orgenisations to a set ot undertakings
that aim to deliver greater inclusion and diversity in the UK tech
workforce,

Gender pay equality

Since 2018, Tribal has published its Gender Pay Gap statutory report
for UK employeos. in our forthcoming Gender Pay Gap report to be
published in April 2022, we will explain the steps we are taking to
balance gender pay as we continue to strive for equality across all
aroups. Qur new recruitment processes are having a positive effect
on the orgarisation’s overall make up and diversity of s employees.

Key initiative: Supporting Student welfare: ongoing

Through Edge

In responge to the change in focus towards mental health,
accelerated by Lhe global pandemic, and the increasing pressure
for student faculties to take an organisation wide approach to the
mental health of their students, Tnbalhas recognised the need to
develop its support services solution offered to universities. SID
has been hugely successful and the best-in-class Higher Education
ticketing and enquiry management solution for many years, but in
order to allow universities to proactively support more students,
Tribal has developed the Student Support & Wellbeing solution
which enables all forms of student support to be securely managed
in Lhe cloud. Universities with high drop-out rates are under pressure
to mprove retention rates and Trbal's solutions has analylics
which provide intellgent intervention to enable staff to predict and
intervene when a student is at rigk.

The Student Support & Wellbeing solution covers the full welfare
agenda. allowing all forms of student support to be managed from
within a central record. Through the power of technology, students
have been able to get tho answars they need, communicate with
therr lecturers and peers, and manage appointments from a single
app. This has enabled universities to improve response times and
reduce the queues, ensuring student wellbeing 1s at the forefront of
their approach. The solution helps to bring a student’s data together
and gives universities all the tools needed to truly understand that
individual. In turn this has helpad to prevent future issues, spot
problems before they happen and improve retention rates.
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Through charitable support

We supported ‘Student Minds' throughout 2021, Student Minds 15
the UK’s student mental health charity, ampowering students and
members of the university qommunity to lool after then uwn mental
health, support others and create changs. We made a donation to
the cherity te support its mission to erpower students to look after
their mental health, support others and create change and ahgn to
our desire Lo make a positive sacietalimpact.

To ensure our contribution extended beyond a passive donation, we
alzo worked in partnersiup with Student Minds to seek opportunities
to further contribute to this worthwhile cause. providing marketing
support and using our presence in Higher Education to help the
charity extend its reach in to new and varied institutions and
stakeholders. We have actively advocated the Student Minds
Mental Health Charter m blogs and webinars and invested in
customer cotfee mornings to facilitate dialogue about the menteal
health challenge facing the sector.

In 2022, we will also be working with Maori Education Irust (MET)
which will provide Tribalwith an opportunity Lo demonstrate our
support for an underrepresented section of the population in higher
educationwithin New Zealand. It will also offer future opportunities
as MET seek to grow their offering of scholarships and bring on
board more partners. The scholarship under Tribal Education Ltd will
provide Tribal with clear visibility in supporting Maori equity and wall
algn to e Pikenga and the wider sector's priorities.

Tnbal als continues to allow employees to take an additional day's
leave to volunteer and support charitable causes and for 2022 we
have signed up to national Job Coaching programme run by Business
in the Community to make it more accessible for our people to make
uge of the time we give them and to connect with opportunities to
make a positive impact.

improving education

Our professional development and traning work with the National
Centre for the Excellence of Teaching Mathematics (NCETM) Is
coentributing to improving education for children across the UK.
This includes our involvement in Numborblocks, a series of short
programmes on the BBC aimed at helping preschocl age children
develop early undarstanding of numbers.

Our culture and values

The success of Tribalis dependent on our culture - the way we think,
behave and act towards each other and our key stakeholders. We
bring together highly talented people in a creative and collaborative
environment. and are united through our well-cstablished values.
which we continually reinforce and celebrate.

Our values are;

Trustworthy: We value honest discussion, we anticipate, listen and
respond to requirements and we rely on each other.

Pioneering: We welcome change, we strive Lo innovate and we aim
to meet the needs of the evar-evolving education marketplace.

Accountable: We take ownership, we keep our promises and are
focused on delivering successful outcomes.

Dedicated: We are committed to our cuslomers, work to secure
Inng-term partnerships and we collaborate te deliver optimum
solutions.

We continue to run the Tribal Impact awards to recognise those
across the Group who have gone above and beyond in living out
Tribal's values. The peer-nominated awards were initially introduced
to celebrate highly talented people and they are now truly embedded
within Tribal's culture, across all geographics.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report continued

Governance

Tribalis cormmitted to mantaning high standards of corporate
governance and has adopted the Quotad Companies Alliance
Corporate Governsnce Code. The Board will continue to develop its
governance arrangoments particularly inrespect of environmental
and social issues, ncluding any changes required as a result of

the requirements ot the Taskforce on Climate-related Financial
Disclosures.

Key initiative: compliance: ongoing

Across the UK, Tribal has mantained the 13027001 Standard

for Information Security and the 1ISO3001 Standard for Quality
Management for the last several years. In 2021, the Group launched
a nsk framewark systerm and built onits em to achieve a globalised
certificationwith 130 Compliance broadening to Australia and the
Philippines. Being globally aligned and certified is smportant for
mitigating our nsks and assuring cur customers. In 2022, we will look
to expand our IS0 scope for subsidianes and refresh our Business
Continuity plans.

Bribery, corruption and whistieblowing

Tribal provides training to all staff on Anti-bribery and Corruption. We
have engaged a third party to act as an independent whistleblowing
contact for all our staff should they deem it necessary.

Key initiative: data: ongoing

In 2022 the new finance and subscriptions system will go live
across the Group, enabling staff to be repurposed to higher value
activity, a stronger governance procass and improved reporting
capability for our SaaS product sets.

Streamlined energy and carbon reporting (SECR)

The credibikty end longevity of any business goes beyond pure
finangial gain; & principle long-embodied and supported by Tiibal's
strong values-based culture and approach to environmental, social
and governance issues.

Tribal is subject to the Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting
(SECR) Framework Regulations. Our energy consumption figures
(see lable 1) and our greenhouse gas emissions refating to gas,
electrinty and transport (see Tabla 2) as well as an intensity ratio,
and informaiton relating to our energy efficiency action 2021 are
presented as follows.

In2021, our Scope 1 and Scope 2 emissions were 107217

£00 e and Scope 3 emissions were 14.73 tCOe. The greatest
contrnbuters to Scope 1 and Scope 2 operational emissions are

the electricity and gas used in powering our buildings. Scope

3 emissions are attributed to fuel used in employees’ cars on
business use. Our intensity ratio (Scope 1, 2 & 3 emissions relative
torevenue) 1s 1.45 tCO.e/€m. Tnbai Group plc is an unguoted large
company for the purpose of SECR, we are therefore only reguired to
report on UK energy use..

Tribal have followed the 2019 UK Government environmental
reporting guidance. The figures relate to the required elements of
each scope 3 categoery rather than the optional elements. Tribal
have used 2021 UK Government's Conversion Facters for Company
Reporting.

Only energy consumed in the UK has been reported and the Group
have taken the exemption to exclude emissions and energy
consurned outside of the UK and offshore area.
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Table 1: 2021 energy consumption

2021 2020
Aren Category Sub-category congumption consumptien  Change Unite
Electricity Electrcity Purchased elsctricity 469517 464912 4605 kWh
Gas Stationary combustion Nalural gas 133,636 63944 69592 kWh
Transport tuel Combustion of fuel usedin personal cars on business use 54681 56,807 (1,826) kWh
Table 2: Scope 1, 2 and 3 intensity ratio
Year ended 31 December 2021 Scope 1 Scope 2 Scopa 3 Total
lonnes of 00, & 248 99.69 1473 11690
Percentage 2% 85% 13% 100%
Emissions intensity relative to revenue (tCO,e/0im) 0.03 1.24 018 1.45
Year ended 31 December 2020 Scopel Scope 2 Scope 3 Total
Tonnes of COe 1176 108.39 5567 175.83
Percentage 6% 62% 32% 100%
Emissions intensity relative to revenue {tC0,&/Em) 0.16 148 076 241

Energy efficiency action

During 2027, due to the pandemic, Tribal otfices were closed for a large proportion of the year snd travelwas significantly reduced.
Throughout this time, we ensured that energy usage was reduced to minimum levels by switching off all electneal equipment not in use
and reducing heatingfcooling levels Lo a minimum. We renewed our energy contracts to energy from renewable sources and reduced
multi-function printers in our UK offices to the minimum required for cperational efficiency. In September we commenced a sustainability
audit in conjunctionwith Business in the Community (BITC) to help inform and support our Carbon Net Zera journey. We employed a Global
Travel Manager in October to promote travel mindfulness as travel remobilises and have invested further in technology to support remote
meetings. In November, we ntroduced a salary sacrifice schame for electric vehicles to employees.

P

Nigel Halkes
Chairman, ESG Committee

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

This information has been prepared solely to provide information to shareholders to assess how the Directors have performed ther
duty to promote the success of the Group The Strategic report containg cortain forward-looking statements. These statements

are made by Lha Directors in good faith based on the information available to themup to the time of their approval of this report and
such statements should be treated with caution due to the inherent uncertanties, including both economic and business risk factors,
which underfie any such forward-looking statement.
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King’s College London moves their Tribal Student Information
System (SITS) to be run by Tribal as a service from the cloud.

Introduction:

Tribal and King's College London have delivered
a hugely significant SITS Cloud migration
project which ends over two decades of KCI
running SITS on premise.

The challenge:

Through its commitment to exceptional
education, impactful research and genuine
service to soclety, KCL is creating positive
change in the communities it serves. Its
strategic vision sets ambitious targels for
educating the next generation of change-
makers, and its business systema need to
support that vision.

Discovery workshops and stakeholder
meetings helped identify the challenges
KCI faced In providing the most appropriate
systems Lo deliver the best possible
experience for its students.

People

Maintaining an on-premise SITS
implementation requires time from highly
skilled staff detracting from focussing on
improving adminstrative processes and
student expenence.

System availability

Transfering respansibility for the system
availability, performance, maintenance and
upgrades means KCL staff can focus on
deriving increased value from the application.
New [eatures can be more quickly and easily
accessible so that the service develops inline
with KCL's needs.

Change

Ihe gn-premise intrastructure cannot scale
and flex sufficiently with iarge-scale, fast
changes in demand and the SIS Client was
not as responsive [or a homa-based workforce
as it Was on campus.

The solution:

With previous success inmigrating and
managing student information systems in the
cloud, Tribal was uniguely positioned to help
KCOL address these challenges.

By moving SITS to the cloud and managing it as
a servioe, Tribal were able to take care of the
day to day monitering, upgrading and patching
of the syslems, freeing KCL staff to focus on
improving use ol the application.

The purpose-built architecture provides a more
connected, agile. resilient and secure platform,
providing quicker access to advances in
technology. the ability to scale and flex for the
planned and unplanned. and assured security
dasignwith proactive monitoring and scanning.

The benefits:

A combined delivery team enabled easier

and faster end-users access and improved
SITS performance. Faster processes have
helped with increased student numbers.
UCAS data can be uploaded within minutes
rather than hours, meaning more time can be
spent analysing the data and making informed
decisions in the admissions process.

Phase two will see the optimisation of all
remaining aystem interfaces and further
transformation and functional improvements.

KCL Director of Education and Student
Solutions, John Harris said:

"A massiva thank you ta everybody involved in
making the SITS migration happen - it 's a huge
improvement I terms of spesd. and it's gong
to make e much easier. As we head into
September, thar ves will be hugety benefited
by not having to wait for the system to respond.”

KCL Chief Information Officer, Nick Leake added:
"It has improved performance, it has provided
us with rosiience, it has improved some of

our nterfaces. and it has demonstrated that

a commelted group of people working well
together can deliver a major project on one of
our most critical systems ina record time. This
project has also provided a major step forward
for us to make further improvements to our
student related processes.”

"We Ipaded the UCAS data nto SITS within
23 mintites - somethmg that proviously took
hours to complote”

“Given the complexity of the migration and the
number of different parties involved thisis a
phenornenal achieverment and a testament to
excellent collaboration and project work across
faculties, SED T, Tribal and Tribal's suppliers.”

With SITS running in the cloud KCL will be able
to take advantage of the latest technology
in the new modules rolled out on the [dge
plattorm as all thair system interfaces will be
optimised to connect to Edge.
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Board of Directors

“The Board, has a good blend
of backgrounds pertinent
to the challenges and

opportunities Tribal faces. 7

Richard Last
Chairman N R

Appointed
Richard joined the Board in November 2015

Experience

Richard 1s currently Chairman and Non-Executive Director of AM listed Gamima
Communications ple. In addition, a Non-Exccutive Director of AIM listed Corere Network
Security ple and Non-Executive Chairman of fully listed HYVE Group ple. Richard is o
Fellow of the Institute of Charlered Accountants in England and Wales*(FCA) and has
over 30 years experience of Public Companies, particularly 1T Software and Services
and Communications businesses.

Mark Pickett
Chief Executive Officer N E

Appointed
Mark joined Tribal and the Board In July 2016

Experience

Previously he was Chief [nancial Officer and Finance Director, UK of Computer Sciences
Corp (CSC). a US-based global leader in technology-enabled business solutions and
services. Mark also spent 18 years in avariety ol senior finance roles with Oracle acinss
anumber of geographies, primarily inits soflware businesses.
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Key to Committee Membership

N Nemination Committes A Audit Committee
R Remuneration Committee E ESCCommittee

Diane Mcintyre
Chief Financial Officer E

Appointed
Diane joined Tribal on 1 June 2021

Experience

Diane has over 2b years' experience in finance roles, including her most recent role as
Director of Fnance at Sky UK Limited, and previous senior financial and executive positions
at Yodafone Group ple and Cable and Wireless ple. As an experienced finance leader, Diane
has awealth of knowledge across commercial negotiation, strategy develcpment and
operational expansion.

Roger McDowell
Senior Independent Director NRA

Appointed
Roger joined the Board in Novernber 2015,

Experience

Rogeris currently serving as Non-Executive Chairman of Avingtrans ple, Hargreaves
Services ple, Brand Architackts ple (formerly Swallowlield), Non-Executive Director of
Prolecne Sciences ple and British Smaller Companies VCT 2 ple.

Nigel Halkes
Non-Executive Director NRAE

Appointed
Nigel joined the Board in January 7020,

Experience

Nigel is a Fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales (TCA),

he gualified with EY and had a successful carser with BY, retinng as Managing Partner UK
and Ireland in 2013. Nigelis a Non-Execulive Director of Hargreaves Services ple and was

a Non-Executive Director at FreeAgent Hotdings ple, a provider of Software as a Service
based accounting solutions, from its successful 2016 IPO toits acquisition by RBS in 2018.
Nigel continues to take time to develop his Non-Executive leadership skills.
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Executive Committee

Mark Pickett
Chief Executive Officer

Appointed
Mark joined Tribal and the Board in July 2016

Experience
See biography on page 42

Diane Mcintyre
Chief Financial Officer

Appointed
Diane Joined Tnbal on 1 June 2021

Experience

See biography on page 43

Mike Cope
Chief Technology Officer

Appointed
Mike joned Tribal in September 2019

Experience

Mike was [ormerly Chiel Information Officer at University College London (UCL), Mike is
an experienced Board level leader, with success inleading businesses during periods
of growth. Mike's previous roles saw the dalivery of significant. strategic change
programmes within the IT seclor as well as creating an improved customer product
rating while reducing IT operation costs businesses.



Annual Report & Accounts 2021

Tribal Group ple

Strategic Report
Governance 4 5

Financial Statements

Chloe Payne
Director of HR

Appointed
Chloe joined Tribal's HR team in 200/,

Experience
Chloe has been parl of many notable aspectsin Inbal's
evolution, including the early days of our inlermationalisation,

Chloe was appemnted to lead the tunction globally in April 2017 .

Prior to Tribal, Chloe waorked in the Health seclor, supporting
a large social care organisation through a period of sustained
growth, and at Cambridge Assessment where she managed
their recruitment function internationally.

Mark Wilson
Chief Operating Officer

Appointed
Mark joined Tribal in Decembar 2016

Experience

Mark initially joined as the Managing Director for the EMEA
region. Mark is an experienced business leader having spent
over 20 yaars in national and international roles n software
and services businesses. In that time he has enjoyed great
success driving transformation and helping his clients
maximise the value to thair organisations of deploying
technology

enabled soiutions,

Janet Tomlinson
Managing Director - Education Services

Appointed
Janet joined Tribal al Lhe end of 2009 and retired &t the end
of 2021.

Experience

Janet was Director of kducation and Children's Services in
Oxfordshire. Janet has chaired a range of regional partnarship
Boards, including Children's Trusts, Safeguarding Boards,
Education Action Zones and Creative Partnerships. She has
aiso advised the Government on the educational impact of
migration and on on schoolinspection policy businesses.

Peter Croft
Managing Director - APAC Region

Appointed
Peter joined Tribal in September 2017.

Experience

Petor leads the Asia Pacific business with a focus
on delivering growth and benefitsdriven customer
experences. Peter has over 20 years’ experience in
successtul leadership of IT enterprises in the APAC
region, and has heid Directorships in Australian, UK,
US and Malaysian technology companies.
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Corporate Governance Statement

Tribal is committed to high standards of corporate
governance and maintaining sound business ethics.

The Directors acknowledge the impertance of good corporate governance and has formally adopted the 10 principles of the Quoted
Companies Alliance Code (QCA). This Annual Repart, togother with the information on our website (www.tribalgroup.com/investors/

governance). sets out how we comply with the principles of the QCA Cede and provides insights into how cur governance frarmework
underping our day-today activitias and decisions.

stakeholder and social
responsibilities and their
implications for long-term success

supplers and employeas are our most important stakeholders. We
engage with these communities via regular communications inour
day-to-day activitics, and via formal feedback reguesta.

QCA Code Principle Explanatinn Additional intormation
Lstablish a strategy and business Tribal is a world-class company, providing the expertise, software Pages 8-11
model which promotes long-term and services needed by educetion end business organisations
value for shareholders worldwide. Everything we do underpins the experience and
success of our customers” students.
Seek tounderstand and The CEO and CFO communicate regularly with shareholders, Pages 28-29
meet shareholder needs and investors and analysts, including at. our haif-yearly results I ‘
expeclaticns roadshows. The full Board is available at the Annual General ttps./fwww tribalgroup.
. T . Q o
Meeting ('AGM’} to communicate with shareholders. comfinvestors/
governance
Take into account wider In addition to our shareholders, our customers, contractors, Pages 28 - 29

Pages 34 -39

Embed effective risk management,
censidering both opportunities
and threats, throughout the
organisation

Ultimate respansibility for nisk management rests with the Beard
but day-to-day management of risk 1s delivered through the way
we do business and our culture

Pages 26 -27

Maintain the Board ac a
well-tunctioning, balanced
team led by the Chair

The Board has four established Committees for Audit,
Remuneraticn, Nomination and £S0. The composition and
experience of the Board 1s reviewed regularly, primanly by the
Nominations Commiltee.

Pagas 42 - 43

hitps /fwww tribalgroup.
cormfinvestors/directors

based on clear and relevant
objectives, seeking continuous
improvement

of iLs contributions, any learning and development needs and the
level of scrutiny of the Senior Management Team.

Ensure that botwoen them the The Board 1s satisfied that its current compositionincludes Page 47
Directors have the necessary an appropriate balance of skills, experience and capabilities,

up-to-date experience, skills and including experience of the education. software technology and

capabilities nternational markets.

Evaluate Board pertormance The Board regularly considers Lhe effectivenaess and relevance https/fwww.

tribalgroup.com/
investors/governance/
management-framework

Promote a corporate culture that
15 based on ethical values and
behaviours

Our Environmental, Social and Governance Report section sets out
our corporate values, behaviours and culture, which are reinforced
via collaborative working, training and performance management.

Pages 34 -39

Maintain governance structures
and processes that are fit for
purpose and support good
decision-making by the Board

The Board is responsible for the Group's overall strategic direction
and management, and for the establishment and maintenance of
a framework of delegated authorities and controls to ensure the
etficient and effective management of the Group’s operations.

| he Board maintaing a list of matters resarved for the Board.

https/fwww.
tribalgroup.com/
investorsfgovernance/
management-framework

Communicate how the Company
15 governed and is performing

by maintaining a dislogue with
shareholders and other relevant
atakeholders

The Investors section of our website includes our results,
presentations and communications to shareholders. We release
tha results of general meetings through a regulatory news service
and also on the Regulatory News section of our website.

https. ffwww.tribalgroup.
comfinvestors
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The ple Board applies the principles of good governance and supports a culture of open debate and constructive challenge to enable
Tribal to meet its objectives. In fulfilhng ther responsibiities, the Directors govern the Group in the best interest of the Company and its
shareholders whilst having dus regard to the interests of other stakeholders ncluding custemers, employees, suppliers and regulators.

Governance Structure
The plc Board

The ple Board is responsible for the Company’s systems of Corporate Covernance.

The Non-Executive Directors are Richard Last, Roger McDowell and Nigel Halkes, all are considerad to be independent of management
and free from any business or other relationships that could materially interfere with 1he exercise of ther independent judgement.
The Non-txecutive Directors meet at least once a year without the Executive Directors prasent.

All Directors are required to submit to re-election each year at the Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Company. All the Directors have
access to the advice and services of the Legal Counsel. Each Director 1s entitled. if necessary. to seek independent professional advice

at the Company’s expense.

The Board meets at least eight times each year with additional meetings when circumstances and urgent business dictate. At these
meetings the Board reviews a schedule of reserved malters including trading performance. tinancial strength, strategy (including
investment and acquisition opportunities), risk management, controls, compliance, reports to shareholdars and succession management.

The Board plans to evaluate its performance and thal of its committeas through a process of regufar dialogue and periodic formal

Board evaluations.

The Board may, on occasion, delegate authonty to & sub-committee consisting of at least one ple director and senior manager as
appropnate to facilitate final sign-off for an agreed course of action within strict parameters.

Board Committees

The plc Board has established four Committees to assist with its effective operation: the Audit Cormmittee, the Remuneration Committee,
the Nomination Committee and the Environmental, Social and Governance Committes. Each Committee has responsibility to the Board
which are outlined in formal Terms of Reference that have been approved by the Board. The Terms of Reference, which are available

on the Group's webs ite www.trbalgroup com, are subject to annual review to ensure the Committees continue to follow best practice.
The Chairman of each Committee reports to the ple Board after each Committee meeting and minutes ere tabled at the next plc Board
mesting. The respensibilities and operation of the Committees are summansed bolow

Audit
Committee

Environmental, Social and Governance
(“ESG”) Committee

The Committee, chaired by Nigel Halkes, meets at least three
tmes a year. It moniters the ntegrity of the Half Year and Annual
Report and Accounts and formal announcements relsting Lo the
Group's hnancial performance. [t reviews significant financial
reporting 1ssues, accounting policies and disclosures, key
Judgemenits, reviews the effectiveness of internal controls, as wel
as overseeing the engagement and scope of the annual audit.

The Audit Committee report on page S0 contains further
informaton on the Committes’s role and activities.

The Committee, Chaired by Nigel Halkes, meets four times a year.
Establishad in 2020, 1t makes recommendations to the Board on
the overarching ESG vision and prionties within Tribal to advance
our approach, engage our colleagues throughout the business,
and further refine and develop the details of cur FSG strategy.

The ESG Committee Report on pages 34 to 39 contains further
information on the Committee's role and activities.

Remuneration
Committee

Nomination
Committee

Ihe Committee, chaired by Richard Last. meets at lcast once a
yaar. It reviews and makes recommendations as to the Directors'
rernunaeration, including benetits, terms of appaintment and
share schemes.

The Remuneration Committeg report onpages 51 to 55 contains
further information on the Committee’s role and actities.

Ihe Committee, chaired by Richard Last, meets at least once
avear. It leads the process for Board structure, size and
composition of the Beard and its Commitiees, and makes
recommendations to the Board with regard to any changes
requited to ensure an appropriate balance of skills, expertise,
kriowledge, diversity and independence. The Nomination
Committee report on page 56 contains further information on
the Committee’s role and activities.
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Corporate Governance Statement continued

Membership of Board Committeas and attendance at Board and Committee meetings during the 12 month period under review are as
follows

Audit Remuneration Nominations ESO
Committes plc Board Committee Committee Committee Committes
Number of meetings in period 11 3 2 4 3
Meetings attended by rembers.
Richard Last 11 2* 2 4 3
Roger McDowell 11 3 2 4 -
Nigel Halkes 11 3 2 4 3
Mark Pickett 11 3* 2* 4 2
Biane Malntyre (Joned 071 June 2021) 5 2* —* - 2
Paul Simpson (Resigned 30 June 2021) 6 1 2* - -

T By Invitation

Executive Board

The Executive Board 15 chaired by Mark Pickett. The members cf the Executive Board are drawn from the heads of the business units and
other gperational areas. The [xecutive Board typically meats monthly but the members interact frequently n the normal course of their
roles. The Executive Board oversees the Group’s oporational and financial performance and is responsible for day-to-day management
decisions in Iine with the Group's strategy. It also considers succession planning and talent managemeant. Further matters are outlinedin
the Delegated Authorities,

Global Bovernance Committee

Whilst not a formal Board Committes, the Global Covernance Committee is chaired by the Chief Financial Officer and reports to the Chief
Executive Officer. The Committes meets monthly and includes representatives from Finance. Information Services, Human Resources,
Legal. Compliance. Property and Procurement. There are separate sub-committaes for Health & Safety and Information Security which
monitor relevant legislative and regulatory reguirements.

Internal controls and risk management

The Board is responsible for establishing and monitormng internal control and risk management systems throughout the Group and assessing
ther effectivenass. The Board recognises that ngorous systems of nternal control are critical to the Group's achievement of its business
objectives and that those systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate nsk of falure to achieve business obyectives. The internal
control and nsk management systems can only provide reasonable, not absolute, assurance against matenal misstaternent or 10ss.

Tribal maintains ansk framework that contains the key risks faced by the Group. The framework includes the impact and likelhood of key
risks and the controls and procedures implemented to mitigate them. Risk management is ombedded within Tribat by:

= setting strategic direction, ncluding targets;

= mantaining a clear authonsation framework;

»  reviewing and approving annual plans and budgels,

& maintaining documented policies and procedures; and

= regularly reviewing and monitoring the Group's performance in relation to risk through monthly Board reports.

The Diroctors are also responsible for the Croup's system of nternal control and for reviewing its effectiveness. The Audit Committes
reviews the Group's interpal financial controls and risk management systems and the Board reviews the effectiveness of all the Group's
internal conlrols including operational and compliance controls and risk management systems ineffect during the period.

To further manage risks Faced by the Group, the Company attempts to ensure that employees fully understand the Group's business
stratagy and objectives. The Group's communication and constltation programme includes regular internal briefings by Drectors to
all employees throughout the year. Regular meetings are held with staff and managers, both to discuss specific issues and provide an
exchange of information. Email communication and the Group's intranet site also to provide information to employees.

The Group operates a comprehensive budgeting system wheraby managers submit detailed budgets and forecasts, which are reviewed and
approved by Executive Dircctors prior to submission to the Board for approval. Each month, actual results are reported against budget and
forecast which are distributed to managers and are provided to the Board in advance of meetings.
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Indexed Share Price Performance
The The following graph compares the Group's share price with comparable AIM indices over the past six years.
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Communication with shareholders

The Group reports formally to shareholders when its annual and halfyearly financial statements are published. At the same time, Executive
Drrectors present the results to institutional investors, analysts and the media. Notification of the date of the AGM is gent to sharsholders

at least 21 working days in advance of the meeting. Details of the AGM are set out in the Notice of Meeting. The Directors are avallable at the
AGM to angwer questions, both during the course of the meeting, and informally afterwards. Contact with major sharshe!ders is principally
maintamead by the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financiel Officer, who ensure that therr views are communicated to the Board as a
whole. The Chairman 15 also available to discuss governance and ether matters directly with major shareholders. At every Board meeting, the
Board is provided with the latest brokers' reports and 2 summary of the contents of any meetings with shareholders. The Board considers that
the provision of these documents is a practical and efficient way for both the Chairman and Senior Independent Director to be informed of
major shareholders” opinions on governance and strategy and to understand any shareholder 1gsuss and concerns.

Approved by the Board of Directars on 16 Mareh 2022,

N\ -\

Richard Last
Chairman
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Audit Committee Report

The Audit Committee report details the key activities undertaken during the year.

Activities of the Committee during the year

The Committee’s activilies have focused on the accuracy

of financial reporting and the related statutory audit, and the
assassment of internal controls. Dunng the vear, the Committee
was Involved in the reviewing and spproving of the Annual Report
and Accounts for 2020 and the half year report and accounts

for 2021, overseeing the Group's adoption of new and revised
accounting standards, continued compliance with the General Data
Protection Regulations (GDPR) and Corporate Cnminal Offence
Rules. In addition, the Committee reviewed Lhe position of the
Group's independent external auditors and reappointed BDO LLP at
the AGM on 27 Apnl 2021

Financial reporting and statutory audit

The Committes has reviewed with both management and the external
auditors the half year and annual financial statements, focusing on:

= the overall truth and farness of the results and financial position,
including the clarity of discloswres shown in the statements and
their compliance with statutory and best practice requirements,

s {he appropriatenass of the accounting policies and practicas
used inarmnving at thoge results,

»  theresolution of management’s significant accounting
judgements or of matters raised by the external auditors during
the course of their half yoar review and annual statutory audit;

= the qualty of the Annual Reporl taken as a whole, ncluding
disclosures on Governance, Strategy. Risks and Remuneration,
and whather it gives a fair and balanced picture of the Group,

External audit

The Cemmittee discussed. challenged and agreed with the auditors
therr detailed audit plans prepared n advence of the full year audit,
which set out thewr assesament of key audit nisks and maternality.
The approach to ther work on the half year results was also
discussed and agreed. The Committee has primary responsibility
for overseemng the relationship with the External Auditors, BDO

LLP. This includes monitoring and reviewing their objectivity

and independence on an ongoing basis, recommending therr
appointment, reappcintment and removal. and approving the scope
of the statutory audit and fees.

BDO was appointed as the Group's Auditor in October 2018,
following & competitive tender process. BDO has confirmed to the
Committee their continuing independence and compliance with
the Croup's policy on Auditor independence. The external Auditor

is required Lo rotate the lead audit partner responsible for the audit
engagemeant every five years, unless there are unusual extenuating
circumstances. Sarah Applegate was appointed as the lead audit
partner in 20718 and this represented her fourth year as lsad

audit partner.

Accounting policies, practices and judgements

The selection of appropriate accounting policies and practices 18
the responsibility of management. and the Committee discussed
theso with both management and the external auditors. Significant
areas considerad by the Committes in relation to the 2021 financial
statements are set out below.

Going concern

The Group s required to assess its ability to trade as a going concern
for at least 12 months from the signing of the annual financial
statements. The Committee reviewed management's assessment
and concluded that it remained appropriate to continue to adopt the
going concern basis in preparing the financial statements.

Revenue recognition

The Group's operations include complex software delivery
programmes and service activities that can require judgements
1o be made inrelation to the timing of revenue recognition. The
Committee reviewed the revenue recognition judgements taken,
specifcally the key judgements applied to variable consideration.
and it was concluded thet the judgements were appropriate.

Goodwill

The Group s required to test annually whether goodwill has suffered
any impairment and consider whether the fixed assets usedinthe
business are carried at an appropriate amount. The Committee
reviewed maragement’s impalrment assessment and concluded
that thers was no imparment of goodwill or any of the fixed assets
used in the business.

Capitalised product development costs

The Group’s product development costs are capitalised where the
expenditure meels the critenia of IAS3E, and the recoverability
assessed annually against expected future cash flows. The Committee
reviewed management's capilalisation process and recaverability
assessment and concluded the capitabsation was appropriate.

Assessment of internal financial control

Management is responsible for puttingin place internal financial
gontrols over financial reporting and o protect the business from
identified material risks. There is no formal Internal Audit function
however the Cornmittes believes that management is able to derive
assurance as to the adequacy and effectiveness of intornal controls
and risk management procedures without one. As descnbed on
pages 26 and 27 of tho annual raport. the Group has estatlished

a framework of risk management and internal control processes,
policies and procedures to mitigate risks and the Committee
continues to monitor these closely and they are happy they are
appropriate for the business. The Committee reconsiders whether
such a function 1s required annually.

New accounting standards
The Committea has continued to be kept appraised of new and
revised accounting standards including the impact on the Group.

Approved by the Audht Committee on 16 March 2022.

=3

Nigel Halkes
Chairman, Audit Committee
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Remuneration Committee Report

The Remuneration report details the Group’s remuneration policy and the arrangements
currently in place for remuneration of both Executive and Non-Executive Directors.

Remuneration policy

The full Directors’ remuneration policy is shown balow for ease of reference. Lpdated with minor changes. A shareholder vote on the
rermuneration policy 1s not required.

The Remuneration Committee (the Committee) operates the annual bonus plan and long-term incentive plans according to thair
respective rules, the listing Rules and HMRC rules where relevant. The table below details each element of pay and demenstrates how
e remuneration policy 18 linked to overall Group strategy.

Element of pay Purpose and link to strategy Operation including maximum Performance criteria

Salary To attract and retain high-quality  Salanes are reviewed annually or when anindividual Assessment of personal and
individuals with the appropriate  changes position or responsibility. Saleries for the  corporatc performance.
skills, experiance and knowladge. current year arc set out on page B3.
while also recognising their
angoing perforr%\ancg All E:Dpointrnents that attract either abase salary

of £150.000 or a total remuneration package of
250,000, whichever being the least, must be
approved by the Remuneration Committee.

Banefits To provide a range of cost- The main benefits provided include private medical None,
effective benefits which are nsurance, a death in service benehit of four times
typical market practice. salary and private fuel,

Pension To provide cost-effective long-  Contributions of 10% of salary are paid to None.
term retirement benefits which  Executive Directors. An equivalent cash
are aligned with market practice. supplement may be paid to an individual /f the

annual or lifetime allowance has heen met or
exceeded.

Annual bonus To incentivise end reward for An annugl cash bonus is peyable up to a maximum  The Remuneration Committee
the achieverment of in-year of 125% of salary for the Chief Executive Officer.  reviews the performance
objectives, which are linked to the and 100% of salary for the Chief Financial Offier,  measures.

Group's Adjusted Operating Profit. subject to the achievement of performance
targets. In all cases, bonus payments are subject
to the overriding discretion of the Remuneration
Committee.
Long-term To incentivise and reward for Anannual grant of nil-cost options, which vest The Remuneration Committee

Incentives

the achievement of long-term
performance, which is aligned

to the generation of shareholder
value.

after thiee years subject to continued service and  reviews the performance

the achieverment of performance conditions. measures and targets annually.
The Remuneration Committee
has determined that & target
iinked directly to the Group's
adjusted operating profit
(EBITDA)is an appropriate
measure for awards grented

The: plan Imit for an award in any year 15 2007%
of base salary. The normal policy will be to grant
100% of base salary to the Chiet Executive
(ficer and Chief Financial Officer.

Dividends which accrue on vested awards may

be paid as cash, or treated ag reinvested and paid in2021.
in shares.
All employes lo encourage broad-based The Save As You Earn Scheme provides all eligible Nore.
plang employee shareholding in employees with the opportunity to acquire shares

the Group.

at a discounted share price.
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Remuneration Committee Report continued

Director changes
Diane Mcintyre was appointed Chief Financial Officer of inhal Group ple on 1 June 2021. There have been no other Director changes in Lhe vear.

The use of performance measures
Annual bonus targets will include financial measures which reflect the performance of the business and are directly inked to the Group’s
Adjusted Operating Profit.

i ong-term incentive performance maeaswies are chosen to be aligned to long-term shareholder value creation by using an adjusted
operating profit margin measure.

Directors’ service contracts
Details of service agreements and notice periods are as follows:

Name Director status Effective date of contract Expiry Notice period for both parties
Mark Pickett Chief Fxecutive Officer 30 June 2016 Ongoing & months

Richard Last? Non-Cxegutive Ghairman 17 November 2015 2022 ACM -

Roger McDawell Senior Nor-Execulive Director 17 November 2015 2022 AGM 3 months

Nigel Halkes Non-Executive Director 20 January 2020 2022 AGM 3 months

Diane Mcintyre Chief Financial Officer 01 June 2021 Ongoning 6 menths

1. Richardl ast has nonotice pernod.
Coples of each Director's service agreement will be available for inspection at the AGM.

Under the terms of their appaintment, the Non-Executive Directors have agieed to commit no less than 25 days per annum to their roles. If
they are required to commit in excess of 26 days per annum, they may be entitled to an additional fee at a suitable pro rata rate per day.

Policy on payments for loss of office

The Committee aims to deal farly with cases of termination, while attempting to mit compensation. Executives’ service contracts provide
the Committee with the discretion to make a payment in lieu of notice imited to base salary. The Committee also retains the discretion to
pay an annual bonus on a departure in certain circumstances. The rules of the long-term incentive plan set out the treatment if a participant
leaves amploymant prior to awards vesting. If the participant 1s considered a good leaver (through death, retirernent, injury or disability,
redundancy, employment being transferred outside the Graup, or any other reascn the Commillee decides) then awards would normally
vest on the normal vesling date. In the event of a change of control, an award may vest early subject to the extent the performance
conditions have been achieved and scaled back pro rata for service, although the Committee has the discretion to disapply time pro-rating.

Non-Executive Directors notice period is defined in the table above and no compensation or other benefits are payable other than the
potential shere-based incentives inrespect of Richard Last and Roger McDowell.

Risk

The Committee 1s cognisant of the need for the remuneration policy to operate within an effective risk management systemn. The
Committee reviows the vanous elements of remuneration on an annual basis. to ensure that they do not encourage any undue risk-taking
by Executive Directars or senior management. When setting performance targets for variable components of remuneration, the Committee
remains mindful of environmental, sceial and governance (E5G) 1ssues.

Shareholders’ views

The Committes considers sharcholder feedback received at the AGM and durning meetings with investers throughout the year, and uses
these views to help formulate the overall remunaration policy.
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Non-Executive Director fees
The fees for Lthe year ending 31 December 20271, which took effect from 1 January 2021 are as tollows. These exclude any expenses which
the Non-Executive Directors may incur nrelation to ther duties,

From1 January 2022 From1 January 2021 Increase
Non-Executive Chairman £111.600 £110,000 £1,600
Semor Non-Executive Director £57,000 £65,100 £1,500
Non-Executive Dirsctor £56250 £65,100 £1,150
INFORMATION SUBJECT TO AUDIT
Remunaration payable for the financial year ending 31 December 2021
Director Salary* Benafits' Bonus? SBP? Pension* Total 2021 Total 2020
Mark Pickelt 270,000 387 415,283 281,176 26,260 993,105 977775
Diane Maintyres 116,667 217 100,000 28,231 5,833 250948 -
Richard Last 110,000 - - - - 110,000 104,500
Roger McDowell 55,100 - - - - 55,100 52,345
Nigel Halkes 55,000 - - - - 55,000 49,659

1. Benehits nclude private medical insurance and prvate fusl,

2. The bonus includes a notonal bonus repaid to the Company inrelation to the exercise ol share options eguivalent to the nominalvakie of number of shares issued totaling
0. 1m(see Note 7)

3. The cost wported inremuneration s equivalent Lo the share based payment accounting charge ncured in the year including dividends acceriing on LTIPs andmatching
shares (soe Note 7).

4, The fixed element of Directors remuneration includes salary and pension. alf other elements are vanahle,

5. DisneMelntyre's figwes relete to the penod trom 1 June 2027 to 31 December 21121

Long Term Incentives Plan (LTIP) awards
0On 28 June 2021 the Remuneration Committee approved LTIP awards to Mark Pickett and Diane Meintyre.

7 Vesting at
Type Number of shares  Face valus' Parformance condition  Parformance period threshokd
Mark Pickett Nil-Cost Opticn 275510 £270,000(100% Adustedoperating  Measured over 3 years B0% of LTIP
of salary) profit to 31 Decernber 2023
Diane Mcintyre  Nil-Cost Option 204,081 £200000(100% Adustedoperaling  Measured over 3 years 80% of LTIP
of salary) profit Lo December 2023

1. Face value calculated based on share price on 28 June 2021 (98p).
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Remuneration Committee Report continued

Share award interests
[he interests in share options were as follows

At31 Date from
Atl January December Exercise  Price on date which
2021 Granted Lapsed Exercised 2021 price ofgrant  exercisable Expiry date
Mark Pickett
LTIP-30June 2017 2475678 - - 247678 - Nil 838p Juns 2020 June 2027
LTIP-22 May 2018 251256 - - 261256 - Nil 796p Mey2021 May 2028
LTIP -7 Junc 2019 716652 - - - 7iebh? Nil 710p June 2022 June 2029
LTIP -~ 7 July 2020 482143 - - - 482143 Nil 560p  July 2023  July 2030
LTIP - 28 June 2021 - 276510 - - 275510 Nil 980p June 2024 June 2031
Diane Mcintyre
LTIP - 28 June 2021 - 204081 - - 204081 Nl 980p June 2024 June 2031

The closing share price at 31 December 2021 was 101.25p and dunng the year ranged from 88.75p to 110.00p. There have beenno
variations to the terms and conditions or performance criteria for share awards during the financial year.

Annual percentage change in Directors’ remuneration compared to FTE employees

h

Yoar-on-yesr p tag ge in ation

2021 20201 2019 2018 2017
Group FTE employeos 936 832 850 B73 820
Average Remuneration/FTE £'000 54 b2 53 52 60
Average FTE Employees percentage change 3% (2%) 2% (13%) 14%
Directors percentage change?
Mark Pickett 4%, 1% 30% 10% 42%
Richard Last 5% (35%) 19% 23% 100%
Roger McDowedl 5% (5%) 0% 0% 100%
Nigel Halkes 11% 100% - - -

Diane Mcntyre

1. Includes 3 months at B0% pay as amiligaring action to Cowvid 19

2 Includes remuneration for the matching shares with the nomimal vatiue paid to participants as abonus. Basic fees are consistent yearonyear,
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INFORMATION NOT AUDITED

Directors’ shareholdings

The table below sets out the Directors” current sharcholdings as at 31 December 2021 The shareholding guideline for the Chief Executive
Officer is to hold two times base salary n stock (excluding invested LTIP's) within no more than five years of appointment.

Beneficially % of salary/ LT  Share matching
Director cwned share value held options plan option
Mark Pickett 876,175 329% 1.474,205 -
Diane McIntyre - - 204,081 -
Richard | ast 2995726 2757% - -
Rager McDowsl| 2975726 5468% - -
Nigel Halkes 14,285 26% - -

Note % of salary/share value held s calculated by reference to the value of the individual s shareholding in Tnbal valued at the share prce oo the close of business on
31 December 2021

All-employee plans

The Committee believes wider employee share ownership can act as an additional retention and motivation vehicle, and operates a
Save As You Earn (SAYE) Scheme. Lligible employees, including the Executive Director, are mvited to subscribe for options in the SAYE.
The Committee regularly monitors the participation level in the all-employec arrangements.

Position against dilution limit

The share incentive plans operate in line with the ABI principle, which requires that all commitments must not exceed 10% of the issued
sharo capital in any rolling 10 year period. Given the Company’s 1ssuad share capital, the number of employaes and the lovel of participation
inthe LTIP, the Committee believe that operating a single 10% in 10 year Iimit tor all share plans remains appropriate. The Group's position
against the dilution limit at 31 Decemnber 2021 was 8.2%,

Executive Directors external appointments

Executive Direclors are permitted to accept an external Non-Execulive position with the Board's approval. Any [ees received in respect of
these appointments may be retained by the Executive. No such fees were received by the Executive Directors during the year.

Approved by the Remuneration Committee on 16 March 2022.

QS‘BM —

Roger McDowell
Chairman, Remuneration Committee
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Nomination Committee Report

The Committee, chaired by Richard Last, meets at least once a year. It leads the
process for Board structure, size and composition of the Board and its Committees,
and makes recommendations to the Board with regard to any changes required

to ensure an appropriate balance of skills, expertise, knowledge, diversity and

independence.

The Nomination Committee is chaired by Richard Last and includas
Roger McDowell, Nigel Halkes and Mark Pickett, who provides
Executive management insight. All but Mark Pickatt are fully
independent. Although only members of the Committes have the
nght to attend meetings, other individuals, such as other Board
members and external advisors, may be invited to attend for all or
part of any meeting. The Committee meets at least once a year,

Duties

The Commuttee’s principal duties are to:

= monitor the structure, size and composition (including the skills,

knowledge, experience and diversity) of the Roard and make
recommendations to the Board with regard to any changes.

« give fullconsideration to succession planning for Directors and
othar senior Executives in the course of its work, laking into
account the challenges and opportunities facing Lhe Company,
and the skills and expertise needed on the Board in the future,

»  keepunder review the leadership needs of the organisation,
both Executive and Non-Executive, with a view to ensuring the
continued ability of the organisation to compete effectively in
the marketplace, and

« keepup to date and fully informed about strategic 1ssues and
commereial changes affecting the Cormpany and the market in
which it operates.

Ihe Committee’s full Terms of Reference are avalable on our
website. They were last reviewed on 14 June 2021.

Appointments in the year

During the year, the main focus of the committee bas been on
succession planning for the Frecutive Committee and senios
management, including the appointment of a parmanent Chief
Financial Officer.

We are pieased to strengthen the Board end Executive Committee
with the appointment of Diane Maintyre as Chief Financial Officer,
with effect from 1 June 2021. Diene was appointed following an
external search using an independent recruitment. agency.

Diversity

One area of focus is to continue to improve our Board diversity.

We recognise the vaiue of increased diversity at Board levelin
achieving our strategic objectives and in driving Innovation and
growth. Whilst Board appointments will continue to be based on
merit and relevant skill, the Directors appreciate that contrasting
backgrounds, experience and opinion can promote more balanced
and nuanced debate and lead to impraved decisions. With regard to
gender diversity, the Directors are mindful that as at the date of this
Report the Board currently comprises 20% female repregentation
and continues to focus on maintaining a balancad Board.

Succession Planning

Ensuring that there are robust succasaion plans in place at Board
and senior management level s fundamental to the long-term
prospects of the business. The Committee conducted a review
of its succession plans during the vear, particularly in relation to
Education Services following the retirement of Janet Tomlinson,
former Managing Director of Education Services.

Ihe Board recognises that effective succession planning also
requires a thorough induction programme upen joining the Executive
Board. Work has been conducted to improve this process for all
incoming Executive Board members, whilst recognising too that
each induction programme will also need to be tailored to the
specific needs of the individual

Richard Last
Chair of the Nomination Committee
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Directors’ Report

The Directors present their report and audited consolidated financial statements

for the year ended 31 December 2021.

Principal activities

Tribal Group pic is incorporated as a public imiled company,
and is registered in England and Wales with registered number
4128850, Its registered office s at Kings Orchard, One GQueen
Street, Bristol BSZ DHQ.

The Company acts as a holding company with a number of trading
subsidiaries that provide education related systems, sclutions
and consultancy services. There was no significant change in
this activity during the year. The subsidiary undertakings of the
Company are listed in Note 33,

Results and dividends

Ihe profit for the year, after taxalion, amounted to £6,993,000
(2020, protit of £6.358,000). Tribal remains committad to a
continuing dividend policy and as explained in the Chairman’s
statement, the Directors propose a final dividend of 1.3p per share
for the year ended 31 December 2021, subject to approval at the
AGM on 4 May 2022 (2020 combined dividend: 2.3p per share).

Dividend policy

Meeting sharehelder dividend expectations is & high prionty as

it supports our overall strategy. Our longer-term plan indicates
that our progressive dividend policy can be met whilst making the
investments we need to bring our Tribal Edge product to market.
This underpins our commitment to a dividend that remunerales
shareholders over the long term whilst ensuning we have adequate
financing to meel other stakeholder commitments. It is Inbal's
expectalion that only a final dividend will be paid going forward.

Business model and strategy

The business model and strategy section, pages 10 and 11 and
pages 16 and 1/, set out the Company's strategy, business model
and key performance indicators,

Long-term financing

On 21 January 2020 the Group entered into a three-year C10m
multicurrency ravolving facility with HSBC with the option to extend
up to a further two years. The first option to exercise was approved
on 16 March 2021, the second extension was approved by HSBC
on 25 January 2022, offective 21 January 2022, The facility

was put in place to cover general corporate and working capital
requiremeants of the Group, this was drawn downin the year but
was repaid in full before 31 December 2021 In addition to this,

the Group has a £2.0m commitled overdraft facility in the UK and

a £2 Om committed ovardraft facility in Australia. The UK overdraft
is committed for & 12-rmonth perod ending August 2022 and the
Austraban overdraft committed for a 12-month period ending
October 2022 At the end of 2021, none of the overdraft faciiity
was drawn down Following a review of the Creup's forecasts and
projections, the Directors consider the Group 1s well placed to moet
its funding requirements for the foreseeable tuture. Information
about the use of hinancial nstrumeants by the Group is given in

Note 30 of the financial statements,

Acquisition

Irbal Group ple acquired Semestry Limited on 1 April 2021 and
the assets and business of kveoh BV on 1 October 2021, Both
acguisitions were financead through existing cash resources. The
initial cash consideration was £4.5m and £0.1m respectively and
both acquisitions had further contingent congideration amonnts
paidin the year of £1.6m and £0.7mrespectively based on the
annual recurring revenue growth of the acquired businesses.

Board effectiveness

Inrespect of our operations as a Board, we continue to reflect upon our
collective skils and expernience and our ability to effectively lead Tribal.

Environment

The credibility and longavity of any business goes beyond pure
financial gain; a principlo long-embodied and supported by Trbal's
strong values-based culturs end approach to environmental, social
and governance issues.

The ESG Report is on pages 34 to 3% and highlights our initiatives
inrelation to Frivironmental, Social and Governance matters
concerning the Group.

Principal risks and uncertainties

The Group's principal risks and uncertainties are explained in the
Strategic report on page 26 and 27 Risks of a financial nature are
addressed in Note 20 of the financial statements.

Section 172

The Board's responsibilities to promote the success of the Group
under Scction 172 of the Companies Act 2006, as modified by
the Companies (Miscellaneous Reporting) Regulations 2018 are
oullined in the Section 172 Statement on pages 28 and 29.

Directors’ indemnities

The Company has made qualifying third party ndemnity provisions
for the benefit of its Directors, which remain in force at the date of
this report and throughout the vear. Directors” and officers' liability
msurance is provided for all Directors of the Company.
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Directors’ Report continued

Directors retiring

The names of the Directors who served during the year and up to the
date of signing the financial statements are set out on page 47 and
43, All Directors are required to submit to re-election each year and
will be proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM.

The appomtment and ieplacernient of Directors is governed by the
Company's Articles of Association. the UK Corporate Covernance
Code, the Companies Act 2006 and related legislations. The Articles
themsolves may be amended by special iesolution of the shareholders.

Directors’ interests in the Company and share capital information,
including share options, are detalled in the Remuneration report on
pages b1 Lo bb.

Share capital

Details of the authorised and 1ssued share capital are shown in
Note 23 to the financial statements. The Company has one class
of Ordinary Shares, which carry no nght to fixed income. Each share
carries the nght to one vote at general meetings of the Company.
During the year, the Company 1ssuad 4,676,064 shares (2020:
6,118,526 Ordinary Shares of bp).

Branches

The Group has overseas branches in New Zealand, Abu Bhabi,
Hungary and Singapore.

Employees

Tribalis a business which is highly dependent on its people. We
seek to attract, develop and retain high-calibre staff and as a
consequence, our customers can ba assured that the service they
receive is among the best available. The Group's commitment to 1ts
people s discussed in the Envirenmental, social and governance
report onpages 34 to 39,

The Buard takes its responsibilines to employee engagement and
interests very seriously and ensures any decisions made take into
consideration the impact on tha Group's employees. Employees” have
the opportunity to ask questions regarding all aspects of the business
during our regular Group-wide update meetings with the Group's
Executive Management team. The Group recognises the value of its
employess and where possible seeks to promote internally within

the business and ams to empower, where appropriate, employees
toaid with decision-making within the Group_Employee interests are
considered in full when the Board are making key decisions regarding
changes to the business, such as restructuning, acquisitions and
streamlining of operating segments. Decisicns impacting employees
nterest are communicated in a timely manner,

The Group 15 an equal epportunities employer and bases all decisions
onindividual ability, regardless of race, religion, gender, sexual
orentation, age or disability. Applications for employment by disabled
persons will always be fully considered, having regard 1o therr particular
aptitudes and abilities. Should any employee become disabled, every
practical effort is made to provide continued employment. Depending
ot Lheir skills and abilities, they enjoy the same career prospect s and
scope for realising their potential as other employees. Appropriate
training is arranged for disabled employees, including retraining for
alternative work for those who become disabled, to promote therr
carecr davelopment within the organisation.

Research and development

The Group continues to mvest in research and development of
software products, as set out inNotas & and 14 of the financial
statements. The investment is predominantly in the Group's next-
generation cloud-based Student Information System, Edge. Total
research and development expenditure increased to £15 9m (2020
£11.6m)of which £10.1m (2020: £6.8m) was capitalised.

Post balance sheet svents

There have been no significant events to report since the date of
the balance sheet except for those shown in note 34.

Future development

Anindication of likely future developrments in the business of the
Group 1s ncluded in the Strategic report.

Annual General Meeting

The Company's ACM will be held on 4 May 2022, The notice
convening the AGM and an explanation of the business to be put to
the meeting are contained in a separsate circular to shareholders.

Independent auditors

BDO LLP have expressed ther willingness to continue in office as
auditors and a resolution to reappoint them will be put to the AGM.
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Directors’ responsibility statement

The directors are respansible for preparing the annual report and
the financial statements in accordance with apphcable law and
regulations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements
for each financial year. Undor that law the directors are required

to prepare the group financial statements n accordance with UK
adopted international accounting standards and the company
financial statements in accordance with United Kingdorn Gererally
Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting
Standards and applicable law]. Under company law Lhe direclors must
not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied thal
they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the group and
company and of the profit or loss of the group for that penod.

In preparing these financial statements, the directors are required to

= select sutable accounting policies and then apply them
congistently.

= make judgements and accounting estimates that are reascnable
and prudent;

= state whether they have been prepared in accordance with
UK adopted international accounting standards subject to any
material departures disclosed and explained in the financial
statements;

» prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis
unless it is inappropriate to presume that the group and the
corpany will continue in busingss.

The: directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting
records that are sufficient to show and explan the company's
transactions and disciose with reasonable accuracy al any time

the financial position of the company and enable them to ensure

that the financial statements comply with the reguirements of the
Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the
assets of the company and hence for taking reasonatle steps for the
prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularitios.

Website publication

The directors are responsible for ensuring the annual report and

the financial statements are made available on a website. Financial
staternents are pubhished on the company' s website in accordance
with legislation in the United Kingdum governing the preparation

and dissernination of financial statements, which may vary from
legislation in other jurisdictions. The maintenance and integrity of the

company's website is thoresponsibility of the directors. The dircctors’

responsibility also extends to the angoing integrity of the financial
statements contaned therein,

Corporate governance

The Company's statement on corporate governance compliance can
be found in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 46 to 49 of
the Annual Report and Accounts. The Corporate Governance Report
forms part of this Directors’ report andis incorporated by reference.

Statement of disclosure of information to auditors

inaccordance with Section 418, Directors’ reports shall include a
statement, n the case of each Director in office at the date the
Directors’ report is approved, that:

= gofaras each Dircctor is aware, there is no relevant audit
information of which the Company’s auditors are unaware; and

= theyhave taken all the steps that he ought to have taken as
a Director in order to make himself aware of any relevant audit
information and to establish that the Company’s auditors are
aware of that information.

Approved by the Board of Directors and signed on its behalf by;

LM‘)“LEA |

Mark Pickett
Chief Executive Officer

Registered number 4128360
16 March 2022
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Independent Auditor’s Report

to the members of Tribal Group plc

Opinion on the financial statements

[n our opinion:

= the financial staterments give a true and fair view of the
state of the Group’s and of the Parent Company's affairs as
at 31 December 2021 and of the Group’s profit for the year
then ended,

= the Group financial stalements have been properly prepared
in accordance with UK adopted international accounting
standards,

= the Parent Company financial statemeants have been properly
prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice; and

= the financial statements have bean preparad in accordance with
the requirements of the Companies Act 2006,

We have audited the financial statements of Tribal Group ple (the
‘Parent Company’} and its subsidiaries (the ‘Group’) for the year
endad 31 December 2021 which comprisc the consolidated income
statocment, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated balance sheet, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity, the consolidated cash flow statement, the
company only balance sheet, the company only statement of
changes In equity and notes ta the financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the
preparation of the Group financial staterments is applicable law

and UK adopted international accounting standards. The financial
reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of

the Parent Company tinancial statements s applicable law and
United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting
Standard 101 Reduced Disclosure Framawork (United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practics).

Basis for opinion

We conducted our 2udit in accordance with International Standards
on Auditing (UK) (I5As (UK)) and applicable law. Cur responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of
our report. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufticient and approprate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We remain independent of the Group and the Parent Cornpany

in accordance with the ethical requirements that are refevant

to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the
FRC's Ethical Standard as applied to listed entities. and we have
fulfited our other ethical responsibililies in accordance with these
requirements.

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial slatements, we have concluded that

the Directors” use of the going concern basis of accountingin

the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate, Qur
evaluation of the Directors’ assessment of the Group and the Parent
Company’s abllity to continue to adopt the going concern hasis of
accounting included.

Wo obtained the going concern assessment, approved Dy the
Directors, including detailed cash flow forecasts up to March 2023
and where applicable agreed this to third party documentation
including signed banking facilities and agreements for deferred
considerabon.

We inspected the Group's signed revolving facility agreements

with HSBC (note 1) to check that the Group has sufficient funds

to settle the deferred consideration due of £1.6m (note 18) for
Semestry Limited and Eveoh BY while at the same time maintaining
adequate working capital te continue daily operations as normal.
We assessed the impact on banking covenants to determing if they
would be breached if the drawn down of all facilities were to oceur.

We assassed the appropriateness of sensitivity analyses prepared
by management over the Group's cash low forecasts including the
effects of adverse movements inrevenue, the gross margin and

an increase in expenditure to determine the impact on covenant
compliance and sufficiency of available cash resources reguired to
settle short term liabilities as they fall due over the next 12 months.

We assessed management's assumptions in the going concern
forecast including revenue growth, profil margin, and funding and
covenant compliance headroom availability with reference to
the histoncal accuracy of management's forecasts, comparing
the current forecasts against post year end actoal results and
committed revenue contracts.

We assessed the effect of contract liabilities on the net current
liability position by considering the costs to deliver the products and
services, as well as deferred costs in order to realise revenus held
as a contract hability.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified

any malernial uncertainties relating to events or conditions that,
individually or collect ively, may cast significant doubt on the Group
and tha Parent Company's ability to continue as a going concern
for s penod of at least twelve months from when the financial
statements are authorised for issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsitilities of the Directors with
respect to going concern are described in the relevant sections of
this report.
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Overview

Coverage

100% (2020 100%) of Group profit before tax

100% (2020: 100%) of Group revenue
98% (2020: 99%,) of Group totsl assets

Key audit matters

Revenue measuremnent — Implementation services

revenue stream

Cloud computing costs within intangitles

201 2020

v

Revenue recognition - iGraduale and data analylics

revenue stream

Revenue recognition - iGraduate and data analytics revenue streamis no longer considered to be a key
audit matter because the appropriate point of revenue recognition was determined in 2020 with no
ongoing key audit matters in the current year.

Materiality

Group Financial statements as a whole

£650,000(2020 £560.000) based on 5% of Adjusted profit before tax (2020, 6% of Adjusted profit

hefore tax)

An overview of the scope of our audit

Our Group audit was scoped by obtaining an understanding of the
Group and its environment, including the Group’s system of internal
contral. and assessing the nsks of materizl misstatement in the
financial statements. We also addressed the risk of management
override of internal controls, including assessing whether there was
avidence ot bias by the Directors that may have represented a risk
of material misataterment.

In determining the scope of our audit, we considered the size and
nature of sach component within the Group to determine the

level of work to be performed at each in order to ensure sufficient
assurance was gbtrained to allow us to express an opinion on the
financial statements as a whole. The components identified as
significant were Tribal Group plc (company only), Tribal Education Ltd
and Tribal Group Pty Limited, which were subject to a full scope audit
by the Group engagement team. Significant components comprise
90% ot revenus and 97% of Group total assets. Procedures

over specific balances on the year-end results of the remaining
somponents were parformed by the Group engagement tearm which
then increased the coverage to the percentages detalled inthe
ahove tabie.

Wa also obtainad an understanding of the internal control
environiment refated to the financial reporting process and
assessed the appropriateness, completeness and accuracy of the
Group journals and other adjustments performed on consolidation.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significancs in our audit of the financial
statements of the current penod and include the most significant
assessed risks of material misstatement (whether or not due to
fraud) that we identified. ncluding those which had the greatest
effect on the overall audit strategy, the allocation of resources in
the audit, and directing the efforts of the engagement team. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on Lhese matters.
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Independent Auditor’s Report continued

to the members of Tribal Group plc

Key audit matter

How the scope of our audit addressed the key audit matter

Revenue measurement -
Implementation services
revenue stream

{Refer tonotes 1 and 3 to
the financial statements)

implementation revenue
comprises revenue recerved
forimplementing Tribal's off
the shelf products asis or
configuning it into a bespoke
product based on the
customer's reguirements,

Judgement is required in
determining the varable
consideration to be ncluded in
the transaclion price,

Inhight of the judgements

and assessments reguired

to be made by management

in this area particularly in
relation to constraining the
variable consideration and the
complexities of the applicable
accounting standard, we have
determined that revenue
measurement N relation to the
implermentation revenue stream
is a key audit matter.

As part of our audit procedures, we.

Assessed the appropriateness of the Group's revenue recognition
policies aganst the requirements of the applicable accounting standards.
Performed an assessment of a sample of the contracts including the
terms and conditions of Lhe inplementation services being provided to
check that revenue was appropriately recognised m accordance with the
reguirements of applicable accounting standards.

Assessed the judgements made by management in determining the
appropriate allocation of fixed and variable consideration and constraining
the variable consideration against the requirements of the applicable
accounting standards.

Obtained rmanagement’s method of calculating vanable consideration
and agsessed this agamst the requirements of the applicable accounting
standards.

Enquired with project managers and directors for the sample of contracts
to establish how contiacts were progressing against key milestones,

the impact of expected delivery times on variabie consideration and
comparing this to managerment’s calculetions,

Reviewed the contract margin calculations prepared to identify onerous
rontracts to determing whether the required provision has been made for
a sample of contracts.

Assessed the stage of completion and resulting revenue recognised for a
sample of contracts by

- agreeing the number of days worked to the timecard system and
compared this against the total expected number of days for the
project.

- reviewing managemant’s forecasted costs for Lhe projects against
actual costs incurred to date and performed a review of historical
foracasting on a sample of contracts fo confirm the historical accuracy
of the project managers and management’s forecasts.

Key observations:

Based on the procedures performed, we consider the revenue recognition
for the Implementation services revenue stream to be appropriate.
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How tha gcops of our audit addressed the key audit matter

Koy audit matter

Cloud computing costs  Judgement is required
withinintangiblos in dotermining whether
Refer to notes 1 implementation costs ina

5and 14 to the financial  ouflware as a Service contract
statements) and costs incurred during the
davelopment phase of the
project should be expensed
or capitalised as anintangible *
asset per the IFRIC Update
March 20271 on Configuration
or Customisation Costs in & .
Cloud Computing Arrangement.

in ight of the judgements and

assessments required to be

madg by management in this

area, including the capitalised
costs In previous financial

yaars, we have determined -
that the capitalisation of

cloud computing costs is a key
audit matter.

As part of our audit procedures, we:

= (btained management’s agsessment on the impact of the IFRIC update

and assessed the judgements made by management against the
guidance provided in the IFRIC update in determining the appropriato
accounting treatment for the Tnbal Euye development costs and D366
implementation costs incurred in the current year.

Tested a sample of the implementation costs to invoices and assessed
whether these vosts have been expensed as appropriate In accordance
with the applicable accounting standard.

Tested a sample ot capitalsed development costs in the year to invoices
and timecards and assessing whether these costs have met the critera
Lo be capitalised in accordance with the applicable accounting standards.
Asseused the jJudgements made by management inidentifying potential
capitalised implementation costs in the opening balances of intangible
assets against the guidance provided in the IFRIC update to check that all
costs previously capitalksed still maot the critena of the IFRIC Update.

Reviewed the consistency of the disclosures with the Judgements made
by management.

Key vchservations:

Rased on the procedures performed, we consider the accounting treatment
of cloud computing costs within intangibles to be appropriate.

Our application of materiality
Wa apply the concept of materality both in planning and performing our audit, and In evaluating the effect of misstatements. We consider

matenality to be the magnitude by which misstatements, including omissions, could influence the economic decisions of reasonable users
that are taken on the basis of the financial statements.

In erder to reduce to an approprately low level the probability that any misstatements exceed matenalily, we use a lower materiality level,
performance matenalty, 1o determine the extent of testing needed. Importantly, misstatemants below these levels will not necassarily
be avaluated as immaterial as we also take account of the nature of identified misstatements, and the particular circumstances of their
cccurrence, when avaluating their effect on the financial statements as a whole.

Based on our professional judgement, we determined matenality for the financial staternents as awhole and performance materiality as follows:

Group financial statements Parent company fi inl stat t:
201 202D 2021 2020
2 £ e '3
Materiality 550,000 560.000 360,000 360,000
Basis for determining 8% (2020: 6%) of Adjusted® profit before tax 3.75% of net assets, capped at 63.6% (2020.
materiality 62.5%) of Group materiality

Rationale for the benchmark
applied

Adjusted profit before tax is a key measure for As anon-trading halding entity, net assets is akey
stakeholders based on market practice and investor measure for stakeholders based on market practice

expectations. and investor expectations. Materiality was capped at
63.6% (2020: 62.5%) of Group materiality given the
assessment of the component’s aggregation rigk.
Performance materiality 396,000 392,000 262,000 245,000

Basis for determining
performance materiality

In determining performance materiality we considered — Indetermining performance materiality we considered
anumber of factors including the areas of estimation — anumber of factors ncluding the areas ot estimation
within the financial statements and history of ertors, within the financial statements and history of errars.
Cn this basis performance materiality was set at On this basis perfermance materiality was set at
T2% (2020 70%) of Group matenalty. 72% (2020: 70%) of Parent Company matariality.

FProbt botore tax adiusted for acguisition related costs mtomal systems transformation programme: and other financing costs nnote 6 of the financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report continued

to the members of Tribal Group plc

Component materiality

We set materalily for each component of the Group based on a percentage of between 63.6% and 70% of Group materiality dependent
on the size and our assessment of the risk of matenal misslatement of that component. Component materiality ranged from £350,000 to
£385.000. In the audit of rach camponent, we further applied performance materiality levels of 72% of the component matenality to our
testing to ensure that the risk of arrors exceeding component materiality was approprately mitigatad.

Reporting threshold

We agread with the Audit Committee that we would report to them all individual audit dif ferences in excess ot £11.000 (2020 €11,200).
We also agreed to report differences below this threshold that, n our view, warranted raporting on qualitative grounds.

Other information

The directors are responsible for the other infermation. The other information comprises the information ineludad in the Annual report

and Accounts other than the finanoial statements and our auditor's report theraon. Gur opinion on the financial statements does not
cover the other information and, except ta the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon. Our responsibility 1s to read the other information and, in doing so. consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements, or our knowlzdge obtainedin the course of the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether this
gives nse to a material misstatement in the financial statements themselves. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Other Companies Act 2006 reporting

Based on the responsibilities described below and our work pertormed during the course of the audit, we are required by the Companies Act
2006 and I15As (UK) to report on certain opinions and matters as describad below.

Strategic report and Inour opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audir

Directors’ report . o ) ) ) )
» the information given in the Strategic report and the Directors’ report for the financial year for which

the financial statements are prepared 1s consistent with the financial statements, and
= the Strategic report and the Directors' report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal
requirements.

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the Group and Parent Company and its environment
obtained in the course of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the strategic
report or the Directors report.

Matters on which we Wa have nothing to report inrespect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act
are required to report by 2006 requires us to report to youif, in our opinion:
exception

» adequale accounting records have not baen kept by the Parant Company, or returns adequate for our
audit have not baen receaived from branches not visited by us, or

the Parent Company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and
returns; or

= cerlandsclosures of Directors’ remuneration specibed by law are not made; or

= we have not receved all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Responsibilities of Directors

As explained more fully in the Directors’ responsibilty statement. the Diractors are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the Directors determine 1s necessary
to enable the preperation of finencial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial siatements, the Directors are responsible for assessing the Group's and the Parent Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
Directors either ntend to liquidate the Group or the Parent Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance sbout whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement,
whether due Lo fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that ncludes our opinion. Reascnable assurance is a high level of assurance
but is not a guerantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a matenial mizstaterent when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are congidered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected toinfluence the economic decisions of users takan on the basis of these financial statements.

Extent to which the audit was capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud

Irregularities, including fraud, are Instances of non-complience with laws and regulations. We design procedures in ine with our
responsibilities, outhned above, to detact material misstatements in respect of irregulanties, including fraud. The extent to which our
procedures are capable of detectingirregularities, including fraud is detailed below

We obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory framework applicable to the Group and the industry in which it operates and
determined that the most significant laws and regulations are the Cormpanies Act 2006, applicable accounting framework, AIM Rules and
tha Corporation Tax Act 2010. We identified these areas of laws and regulations as those that could reasonably be expected to have 2
material effect on the financial statements from sector expenience and through discussion with the Directors and other management.

We assessed complience with these laws and regulations through enquiry with management and the Audit Commitlee, review of reporting
to Directors with respect to compliance with laws and regulations, review of board meeting minutes and review of legal correspondence
and confirmations. We also reviewed the Group's tax computations and returns and financial statements against the requirements of the
relevant tax legislation and applicable accounting framework respectively.

We assessed the susceptibility of the Group's financial statements to material misstaternent, including how fraud might ocour. In
addressing the risk of fraud included in management overnde of controls, we have performed journals testing based on a set of fraud risk
criteria and tested to supporting documentation whilst also verifying the buginess rationale and assessed whether the judgements made
in significant accounting estimates were indicative of potential bias.

We also incorporated unpredictability procedures as part of our response te the risk of management overnde of controis. With regards to
the fraud nisk in revenue recognition, our procedures included those set out in the key audit matters section above.

We communicated relevant identified laws and regulations and potential fraud nsks te all engagement team members and remained alert to
any ndications of fraud or non-compliance with laws and regulations throughout the audit,

Our audit procedures were designed to respond to risks of material misstatement in the financial statements, recognising that the risk

of not detecting a material misstaternent due to fraud is tigher than the nisk of not detecting one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve deliberate concealment by, for example, forgery, misrepresentations or through collusion. There are inherent limitations in the audit
procedures performed and the further removed non-compliance with laws and regulations 1s from the events and transactions reflected in
the financial statements, the less likely we are to become aware of it.

A further description of our responsibilities is available on the Financial Reporting Council's website at: www.fre.org.uk/auditors
responsibilities. This description forms part of our suditor's report.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the Parent Company’s members, as a body. in ancordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act
2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Parent Company’s members those matters we are required

to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibility to anyone other than the Parent Company and the Parent Company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or
for the opinions we have formed.

HDe e
Sarah Applegate (Senior Statutory Auditor}

For and on behalf of BOO LLP Statutory Auditor
Bristol, UK

16 March 2022

BDOLEP 15 a kmited labihty partnership registered in England and Wales (with registered number 0C306127).
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Consolidated Income Statement
For the year ended 31 December 2021

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
Otheritams 2021 Other items 2020
Adjusted (see Note 6) Total Adjusted (see Note 6) Total
Note £°000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £°000 £'000
Continuing operations
Ravenue 3 831,148 - 81.148 72954 - 72 954
Cost ot sales (39,336} - (39.335) (34.322) - (34,322}
Gross profit 41813 - 41813 38,632 - 38632
Total administrative expenses (27.846) {5.079) (32926} (26,831 (2.653) (29524}
Operating profit/(loss) 46 13967 (5.079) 8888 11.801 (2693) 9,108
Investmant income 8 255 - 265 53 - 53
Finance costs 69 (230) (259) (529 (345) (307) (652)
Profit/(loss) before tax 13.992 6,378) 8,614 11.509 (R000) B509
Tax (charge)/credit 6,10 (2.240) 619 (1.621) (2.156) 1,008 (2.161)
Profit/(loss)} attributable to
the owners of the parent 11752 (4759) 6693 8.363 (1.995) 6,368
Earnings per share
Basic 12 57p (2.3p 34p 4 1p (1.0)p 31p
Diluted 12 b bp (2.3)p 32p 4.0p 0%p 3.1p

All activities are from continuing operations.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 31 December 2021

Year ended Year ended
31December 2021 31 Dacember 2020
Note £'000 £°000
Profit for the year £.993 6,358
Other comprehensive (expense)fincome:
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Remeasurcment of defined benefit pension schemes 26 778 (438)
Deferred tax on measurement of defined benefit pension schames 21 (131 89
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations 917} 1120
Other comprehensive (expense)/income for the year net of tax (320} 771

Total comprehensive income for the year attributable
to equity holders of the parent 6.673 7129
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
As at 31 December 2021

Restated”
2021 2020
Note £’000 £°000
Non-current assets
Goodwill 13 28582 26,661
Otherintangible assets 4 35947 24,376
Property, plant and equipment 15 967 1.069
Right-of-use assets 25 2309 3.342
Net investment in lease 25 - 174
Deferred tax assets 21 £,233 4,243
Contract assets 1.610 22
74643 59887
Current assets
Trade and other recevables 16 10602 11.036
Net investment in lease 25 - 46
Contract assets 6,178 3961
Cash and cash eqguivalents 17 5,924 9620
22704 24553
Total assets §7.347 84,440
Current liabilities
Irade and other payables 18 (6,081) (4.660)
Accruals (8.253) (7.480)
Contract habilities (23571) (23.078)
Current tax liabilities (2.456) {2861)
Lease liabitities 25 (878} (1.020}
Provigions 20 (1.349) (1.657)
(43588) {40756)
Net current liabilities (20.884) (16.203)
Non-current liabilities
Other payables 18 (131) (40)
Deferied tax hiabilities 21 (2.953) (1.250)
Contract habilitics (1.864) (330)
Retirement benefit obligations 26 (215) (958}
Leage liabilites 25 (1.449) (2.561)
Provisions 20 (807} (923)
(7419) (6.052)
Total liabilities {51.007) (46,808)
Net assets 46,340 37637

“scenoto Uandnote 21
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Consolidated Balance Sheet continued

As at 31 December 2021
Restated”
2021 2020
Note £'000 £'000

Equity

Share capita) 73 10519 10286
Share premium 18567 15951
Othor rocerves 24 27978 269726
Accumulated losses (11118 (15.530)
Total equity attributable to equity holders of the parent 46,340 37632

*seenote 21
Notes 1 to 34 form part of these tinancial statements, The Company's registared number 1s 04128860.

The financial statements on pages 68 to 126 were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for issue on 16 March 2022
andwere signed onits behalf by,

S\ MUt

Richard Last Mark Pickett
Diractor Director
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 December 2021

Share Share Other Accumulated Total

capital  premium  reserves losses equity

Note £'000 £000 £D00 £'000 £000

Balance as at 31 December 2019 4979 15639 26,029 (20,228) 31319
Profit for the year - - - 6,358 6.368
Other comprehensiva income for the vear - - - 771 771
Total cormnprehensive Income for the year - - - 7129 717G
Issug of equity shars capital 23 239 - - - 239
Equity dividend paid 11 - - - (2,264} {(2.2564)
Credit to equity for share-based payments 22 - - 1339 - 1335
Share options exercised 23 67 412 (479 - -
loreign exchange ditference on share-based payments 22 - - 37 - 37
Tax credit on credit to equity for share-based payments 10 - - - 409 408
Contributions by and distributions to owners 306 412 897 (1,845} (230}
Balance at 31 Decernber 2020 as previously reported 10,285 16661 26926 (14 544) 38218
Impact of prior year adjustment* 1021 - - - (586) (586)
Balance at 31 Decemnber 2020 restated 10,285 15951 26,926 (15530) 37632
Profit for the year - - - 6563 6593
Other comprehensive expense for the year - - - (320) (320)
Total comprehansive income for the year - - - 6,673 6,673
lssuc of cquity share capital 23 234 3.010 - - 3244
Equity drvidend paid 11 - - - {(2,506) (2605)
Credit to equity for share-based paymants 22 - - 1078 - 1,078
Foreign exchange difference on share-based paymeants 22 - - (26) - (26)
Tax credit on credit to eguity tor share-based payments 10 - - - 244 244
Contributions by and distributions to owners 234 3010 1052 (2.261) 2036
At 31 December 2021 10619 18961 27978 (11,118) 46,340

“spenote 21
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

For the year ended 31 December 2021

73

Restated*
Year ended Year ended
31 December 2021 31 December 2020
Note £'000 £000
Net cash from operating activities 27 13.88%9 5461
Investing activities
lnlerest reteved - 6
Purchases of property. plant and equipment 1% (£63) (356)
Expenditure on intangible assets 14 (10,224) (7.129)
Payment of deferred consideration for acguisitions (2.180) (1.732)
Acquisition of investments in subsidiaries - cash congideration 32 (4512) -
Acquisition of investments in subsidianas - cash acquirad 32 317 -
Net gainon forward contracts 245 41
Net cash outflow from investing activities {16913} (6.170)
Financing activities
Interest paid (165) (259)
Loan arrangement fees (45) (65)
Loan drawdown 15000 10,000
Loan repayment (15.000) (10.000)
Proceeds onissue of shares 23 3,244 239
Payment of lease liabililies 25 (987) (980)
Proceeds Irom sub-leases 25 52 52
Cquity dividend paid 11 {2.605) (2,254)
Net cash used in financing activities {(4086) (3.267)
Not decroase in cash and cash equivalents (3430} (6.976)
Casgh and cash equivalents at beginning of year 9520 16463
Effact of foreign exchange rate changes (166) 33
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 17 5924 3520

*The prior vear column has been restated to show the total drawdown and repayment of the loan, see note 19
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Notes to the Financial Statements

1. Accounting policies

General information

Tribal Group ple {the Company} is 2 company incorporated. registered and domiciled in England and Wales in the United Kingdom under the
Companies Act. The Company 1s a public limited company which is listed on the Alternative Investment Market (AIM). The address of the
registered office is given on page 127, [he principal activities of the Company and 1Ls subsidiaries (the Group) and the nature of the Group's
operaticns ara set out inNote 4 andin the Strategic report on pages 8 to 41, The financial statements are presented in pounds sterling
because that s the curreory of the primary economic environment inwhich the Gioup upsales. Foreign operations are Included in accordance
with the policies set out below The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these congolidated financial statements are set
out below. These pulicies have been consistently applied to all the vears presented, unless otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation

The financial statements on pages 68 to 126 have been prepared in aceordance with UK adopted Internationsl Accounting Standards in
conformity with the reguirements of the Companies Act 2006. The financial information has been prepared on the historical cost basis,
except for contingent consideration and share-based payments which are recogrised at fair value.

The preparaticn of financial staternents in conforming with UK adopted International Accounting Standards requires the use of certain
critival accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its Judgement in the process of applying the Group's accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where sssumptions and estimates are significant to
the financial statements are disclosed in Note 2.

Adoption of new and revised standards

Inthe current financial year, there have been no new standards or amendments which became effective for the current reporting period
that have had a matensl effect on the Group.

At the date of the authorisation of these financial statements, the following Standards and Interpretations which have not been applied
in these financial statements were In1ssue but not yet effective (and in some cases had not been adonted by the UK):

IFRS 17 Insurance contracts

Amendments tolAS 1 and Practice Statement 2 Disclosure of accounting policies

Amendments tolAS 1 Classidication of habilities as current or non-current
Amendments to |AS 12 Deterred tax arising from single transaction
Amendments to IAS 8 Accounting policies —changes in estimates and errors

None of the above standards sie expected to have a material impact on the Group.

Basis of consolidation

The congoldated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company
(its subsidiaries) made up to 371 December each year. Controlis achieved where the Campany

= has the power over Lhe invesiees,

= isexposed, or has the rights. to varable returns from its involvement with the investee; and

» has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The results of subsidianes acquired or dispesed of during the year are included in the consolidated income statement from the

effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal. as appropriate. Allintra Group transactions, balances, income and
expenses are eliminated on consolidation.
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Adoption of the going concern basis

Tribal had cash and cash equivalents of £5.9m at the end of 2021 plus access to anundrawn UK and Australian overdraft of £2.0m and
$AUD 2 Om respectively, Tribal Group ple has undertaken to make adequate financial resources available to the Group to meet its current
and future obligations es and when they fall due by entering a £10m facility to cover corporate merger and acquisition activity and, if
required, temporary working capital requirements of the Group.

Tribal's main business is software related through the provision of Student Information Systems (8IS) to education institutions globally.
Revenue is generated from the sale of softwarg licensns and relatad implementation wurk, aiid the ongoing provision of support &
maintenance and cloud/hosting services. The Group benefits from strong annual recurring revenues and cash generation. it also hasa
significant pipeline of commiltedincome as it enters 2022 which provides & good level of protection and certanty to the business. While
the Group's net current liability position has increased to £20 9m from £16.2min 2020, it is still being driven by the recognition of IFRS 16
lease labilines as current liabilities of £0.9m, the deferred consideration recognised relating to the Semestry and Eveoh acquisitions of
£1.3mand net current contract liabilities of £174mrelating to deferred customer revenue recognised in accordance with IFRS 15.

The Group had a positive end tc the year, closing several significant sales to new and existing customers, and expanding its global footprint.
Ihe financial impact of the pandemic and the changing expectations of students. means that never has the need for cloud-based
solutions for the Education market been more pressing. The investments the Group continue to make position Tribal at the forefront of this
evolutionin the industry.

The Company has guaranieed the year-end liabilities of its subsidiaries.

inassessing the Company's going coneern position and the Group's ability to provide the necessary financial support, the Directors have
considered all relevant facts and latest forecasts and assessment of the risks faced by the Group, considering reasonably possible
changes in trading performance. In addition, management have sufficiently stress tested the latest forecasts to the point where sither the
Group cannot meetits liabilities or 1s in breach of banking covenants and have concluded that this positicn is so remotea it does not have

a significant impact on the Groups ability to continue as  goirg concern. Accordingly, after making enquines and receiving confirmation

of Group support as set out above, the directors have a reasonable expectation that the Company bas adequate resources to continue in
operational existence for at least 12 months from the date of approval of the financial statements and the foreseeable future. Thus, they
continue to adopt the geing concern basis in prepaning the financial statements.

Revenue recognition

Revenue 1s measured at the fair value of the consideration receivable from the provision of goods and services to third party customers
in the normal course of business. Revenue is stated excluding sales tax and trade discounts. The particular recognition policies applied
inrespect of the various potential elements of short-term or repeat service contracts are as set out below,

For muiti-element contracts that include mora than one separable revenue stream, the fair values of the component parts are established,
and revenue recognised for each separable element infine with the relevant policy above. Where legally separate contracts are entered into
at or near the same time, with the same entity and were negotiated as a package. they are trested as a single arrangement for accounting
purposes. Performance obligations are met in the same way thoy are for cachrelevant stream as noted below.

In addition to this. the Group has long-term contracts for the provision of more complex, project-based services including arrangements
that involve signiticant production, medification, or customisation of software. Where the outcome of such long-term project-based
contracts can be measurad reliably, revenue and costs are recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the project at the
balance shect date. This is measured by the proportion that development time incurred for work performed to date bears to the
estimated total development time required. Variations in contract work and ¢laims are included to the extent that the amount can be
measured reliably, andits receipt is congidered probable.

Variable consideration linked to contract performance and related sales revenue s calculated and recognised based on the probability
weighted value of arange of possible outcomes. It 1s addressed al the beginning of a contract and reviewed annually for qualitative
tactors. Variable consideration i1g accounted for as an adjustment to contract revenue and accrued income.

Where the outcome of 2 long-tarm project-based contract cannot be estimated reliably, contract revenue is recognised to the extent of
contract costs that itis probable will be recovered. When it is probable that the total contract costs willexceed total contrect revenue,
the expected loss 1s recognised as an expense wilhin administrative expensas immediately.

The transaction price of contracted goods and services is shown separately in the contract with customers. The contracted prices
of each component of a product sale are expected to provide & robust and appropriale starting point in seeking to allocate the total
transaction price to the identified performance obligations. The time value of money is not expected to be significant as contracts
where cashis disconnected from revenue by greater than one year are likely to be rare.

Interest is accrucd on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective intorest rate applicable.

Balances arisa on contract assets and habilities when cumulative payments recaived from customers at the balance sheat date do
not necessarily equal the amount of revenue recognised or contracts. Customers are on standard payment terms which may result in
settlement of iInvoices prior to recognition of associated ravenue
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

1. Accounting policies continued

Revenue recognition continued

Student Information Systems:

Licence & Development Fees - applies to Foundation Software and Edge

« revenuc on perpotual software licenses 15 recognised on the commencernent of softwarc implementation and related consultancy.
= revenue on fixed price software liconses is recognised over the duration of the project implementation poriod on a percentaye

complete hasis being the number of days complete compared to the number of days expected for the project based on timeshest
records. Revenue is recognised over time as the conditions as sel out in [FRS 15.35(a) are met.

= revenue [rom term software lcenses s recognised on a pro-rata basis over the period of the icense. This has the effect of spreading
the recognition of License & Development Fees revenue over an extended period, rather than immediate, upfront recegnition, to
reflect the performance obligation of the license transferring over time inline with IFRS 15 B56.

= customer paid enhancements (Development Fees) are recognisedin line with Implementation Services as noted below,
Support & Maintenance - applies to Foundation Software and Edge

= revenuo fromcontracts for software maintenance and support is recognised on a pro rata basis aver the contract peried, reflecting
the Group's obligation to support the relevant software products and update therr content over the contract pericd.

Implementation Services - applies to Professional Services

= revenue from software implementation, consultancy and other services that involve the purchase of a number of days is recognised
as the service 1s provided,

« ifimplementation services are inherently linked to the delvery of fixed price software, revenue is recognised on a percentage
complate basis being the number of days complete compared to the number of days expected for the project based on timesheet
records.

Cloud Services - applies to Cloud Services

= revenue from contracts for cloud services is recognised on e pro rata basis over the contract period, reflecting the Group's
obhgation fo host the relevant software products over the contract period,

Other Services -applies to Other Software Services (including Bespoke Software, Software Sclutions, Data Managed Services
and SchoolEdge)

= revenue from cther services that are provided for a specific term are recognised on a pro rata basis over the contract period. This
includes services such as hosting and managed IT services; and where services include any element of Licence and Development
Fecs, Support and Mainlenance, implementation Services or Cloud Services revenue recognition will be n ine with the policy outhne
in the relevant section above.

Education Services:

Revenue from the sale of services is recognised upon transfer of control to the customer and assessment of performance obligations.
This is genarally when services are performed for customers. The method by which the Group measures the service being performed
vanes depending on the nature of the contract, but will typically be driven by either time incurred or deliverables defivered as appropriate
to the particulsr arrangament with the customer. Performance obligations arc considered to be met upon the transfer of deliverables as
defined in the contract.

Deferred contingent consideration
The Group has deferred contingent consideration obligations ansing from acquisitions.

The accounting for changes in the fair value of deferred contingent and non-contingent consideration. that do not qualify as
measurement penod adjustments, and for which consideraticnis classified as an asset or liability, are remeasured at subsequent
reporting dates at far value with the correspending gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss.

Any equity-based considerationis recogmised in equity at the date it 1s agreed and would not be remeasured at subsequent reporting
dates, with subsequent settlement accounted for within equity.
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Goodwill

Goodwill ansing ina business combination is recognised as an asset st the date that controlis acguired (the acguisition date). Goodwill
is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest in the acguiree and
the farr value of the acquirer's previously held equity iInterest (if any) in the entity over the net of the acquisition date amounts of the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed.

If after reassessment, the Group's interest in the fair value of the acquiree's ident fiable net assets exceeds the sumof the nansideration
transferred. the amount of any non-cont lling interost in the acquires und the far value of the acquirer's previously held eguity interestin
the acquiree (If any), the excess s recognised immediately in the income statement as a bargain purchase gain.

Goodwillis not amortised but 15 reviewed for impairment at least annually. For the purpose of impainment testing, goodwillis allocated 1o each
of the Group's cash-generating units (CGUSs) expected to benefit from the combination. CGUs (or groups of CGUs) to which goodwill has been
allocated are tested for impairment annually, ar more frequently when there 1s an indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable
amount of the CGU {or groups of CGUs) is less than its carrying amount, the mpairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill allocated to the CGUs {or group of CGUs) and then to the other assets of the CGU {or groups of CGUs} pro rata on the basis of the
carryingamount of each asset. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

On disposal of asubsidiary or a division. the attributable amount of goodwillis included in the determination of the profit and loss on
disposal. Goodwill anising on acquisilion before the date of transition 1o IFRS has been retained at the previcus UK GAAP emounts,
subyect to being tested for impairment at that date.

Merger reserve

Tha merger reserve compriscs the non-statutory premium arising on shares issued as consideration for acquisitions of subsidiaries
where merger relief under the relevant section of the Companies Act applies. To the extent that the creation of goodwill originally
gave rise to a merger reserve, upon imparment an appropriate amount is transferred from the merger reserve to the profit and

loss reserve.

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets excluding goodwilt

At eachbalance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets and right-of-use assets

to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered animpairment loss. If eny such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset s estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairmant {if any). Tangible and Intangible assets
are amortised over their estimated useful lives (see Notes 14 and 15). Right-of-use assets are depreciated using the straight-fine
method from Lhe lease commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the

lease term

The recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and the value inuse. The estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using & pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted. If the recoverable amount of
an asset 15 estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss 18 recogmised as an expensa immediately.

Where animpairment loss subsequently reverses. the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amaunt, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an imparment loss is recognised as income immediately.

Unlike ntangible assets and goodwil, right of use assets are not subject to a significant risk of maternial mparment, due to the nature and
short-term duration of the leases held by the Group. Fxpected changes to the rental duration of office properties and the corresponding
discount rate used to value leage habilities are not considered probable within the course of normal business, so are excluded from the
requirements set out n A3 1125,

Business systems

The Group's business systems (internal operational systems, ie finance, HR) are treated as anintangible asset where the probable
future economic benefits ansing from the mvestment can be assessed with reasonable certainty at the time the costs are incurred.
Costs included are those directly attributable to the design. construction and testing of new systems (including major enhancements)
from the point of inception to the point of satisfactory completion as defined by IAS 38, with the exception of cloud computing costs
which are expensed as incurred. Maintenance and minor modifications are expensed against the ncome statement as incurred. These
assets are amortised by equalinstalments over an average of 3 to 10 yoars,
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1. Accounting policies continued
Internally generated intangible assets - research and development costs
Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in the perod inwhich it is incurred.

Aninternally generated intangible asset arising from the Group's product development is recognised onlyif all of the following
conditions have been demonstrated

= the technical foasibility of compleling Lhe inlangible asset so thatit will be available for use or sale,

= thaintention to complete the intangible asset and use or sellit;

= the ability to use or sell the intangible agset;

= how tha intangible asset wiill generate probable future economic banefits;

= the availability of adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use or sell the asset; and

= the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attnibutable to the inlangible asset during its development.

Internally generated intangible assets are amaortised on a straight-line basis over their useful economic lives of 3 to 16 years. Where no
internally gererated intangible asset can beracognised, development expenditure is recognised as an expense in the period in which it
is incurred.

Acquired Intangibles

Acguired intangibles are stated at cost, net of amortisation and any recognised mpairment loss. These assets are amortisedon a
straight-line basis over their useful economic lives as follows:

= Aquiredintellectuai property — 15 years;
= Acquired Software - 3 to Byears; and
= Acquired Customer contracts & relationships -3 to 17 years.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment 1s stated at cost, net of depreciation and any recegnised impairment loss Depreciation is charged so as
to write of f the cost of each asset. other than assets in the course of construction, by equalinstalments over their estimated useful
economic lives as follows.

» Leaseholdbuldings - [ife of the lease; and

= Fixtures, hittings and other equipment - 310 7 years,

Leases

The Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The nght-of-use asset is measured
by reference Lo the measurement of the foase llability on that date. less any lease incentives received. Tha right-of-use asset is
subseguently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date to the earlier of the end of the uselullife

of theright-of-use asset or the end of the lease term.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present values of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date,
discounted using the Group's incremental borrowing rate. The lease payments alse include the exercise price of a purchase option
reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and payments of penalties fur terminating the lease, if the lease termreflects the
Group exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease payments that do not depend on anindex or arate are recognised as expenses
in the period Inwhich the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease labilities for short-term leases of buildings that have alease term
of 12 months or less and leases of low-value items including office equipment. The Group recognises the lease payments assaociated
with these leases as anexpense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Sub-leases

When the Group is an intermadiate lessor, it accounts for its interests in the head lease and the sub-laase separately. It assesses
the lease classitication as & sub-lease withreference to the right-of-use-asset ansing from the head lease, not withreterance to the
underlying assat.



Annual Report & Accounts 2021 Tribal Group ple
Stralegic Reporl
Governance '79

Financial Statements

Otheritems

IAS 1, ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’, provides no definitive guidance as to the format of the income statement, but states key
Imes which should be disclosed. It also encourages the disclosure of additivnal line items and the reordering of items presented on the
face of the Income statement when appropnate for & proper understanding of the entity's financial performance.

The Group has adopted a policy of disclosing separately on the face of its Group income statement the effect of any components
of financial performance considerad by the Directors to be not directly related to the trading business or regarded as exceptional,
or for which separats disclosure would assist in a better understanding of the linancial performance achieved.

Both matenalily and the nature and function of the components of income and expense are considered in deciding upen such
presentation. Suchitems may include, inter alia. impairment and amortisation charges relating to goodwill and other intangible assets,
the financial effect of major restructuring and intagration activity. gains or losses associated with acguisitions (including the costs
of such acquisitions, movements in deferred contingent consideration and the associated unwind of any discount thereon), profits or
losses ansing on business disposals, share-based payments and other items where separate disclosure is considered appropriate by
the Directors, inciuding the taxation impact of the aferementioned items.

Retirement benefit costs

The Group cperates two defined contribution pension schemes that are established inaccordance with employment terms set by the
employing companies. The assets of these schernes are held separatety from those of the Group inindependently administered funds.
The amount charged against prof ts represents the contributions payable to the scheme inrespect of the accounting period.

Payments made to state-managed retirement benefit schermes are dealt with as payrents to defined contribution schemes, where the
Group's obligations under the schemes are equivalent to those arising in & defined contribution retirement benafit scheme.

For defined benefil retirement. schaemas, the cost of providing benefits 1s determined using Lhe Projected Unit Credit Method, with actuanal
valuations being caried out at the end of each reporting period. Remeasurement comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the
asset ceiling (if applicable) and the return on scheme assets (excluding interest) are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with e
charge or credit to the statement of comprehensive ncome in the period inwhich they occur. Remeasurement recerded in the statement of
comprehensive income is not recycled. Past service cost s recognised in profit or loss in the period of scheme amendment. Net interest is
calculated by applying a discount rate to the net dofined benefit lability or asset Defined benefit costs are sphit nto three categories:

= current service cost, past service cost and gaing and losses on curtailments and settlements;
= netinterest expense or income, and

= remeasurement.

The Group presents the first component of defined benetit costs within cost of sales and administrative expenses in the consclidated
income statement. Curtailment gams and losses are accounted for as past-service cost. Nel interest expense or income is recognised
within finance costs. The retirement benefit obligation recognised m the consolidated balance sheet represents the deficit or surplus in
the Group's defined benefit pension schemes. Any surplus resulting from this calculation is limited to the present value of any economic
benefits available in the form of refunds from the schemes or reductions in future contributions to the schemes,

Provisions

Provisions are recognised whan the Group has a prosent obligation as a result of a past event, and it 1s probable that the Group will be
required to settle the obligation. Provisions are maasured at the Directors’ best estimate of the expenditure reguired to settle the
obligation at the balance sheet date. and are discounted to present value where the effect is material.

A property related provisionis recognised and measured as a provision when the Group has a present obligation arising under a property
related contract. This includes dilapidation costs arising from exiting a leasehold property where the costs are not all expected to be
incurred duning the next vear. For a business that is closed or to be discontinued the provision reflects the costs agsociated with exiting
the property leased by the discontinued or closed business.

A legal claims provision is recegnisad and measured a3 a provision whan the Group has a present obligation arising under & legal
claim. This includes anticipated costs te resolve any contractual dispules and any anticipated costs inraspect of disputes arising on
praviously disposed of businesses.

Arestrucluring provision is recognised when the Group has developed a detailed formal plan for the restructuring and has raised a valid
expectation in those affected that it will carry out the restructuring by starting to implerment the plan or announcing its main features
to those affected by it. The measurement of a restructurng provision includes only the direct expenditures arising from the
restructuring, which are those amounts that are both necessarily entailed by the restructuring and not associated with the ongoing
activities of the entity.
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1. Accounting policies continued
Foreign currencies

Transactions n currencies other than the local functional currency are recorded at the rates of exchange on the dates of the
transactions. At cach balance sheet date, monetary assets and iabilities that are denominated in foreign currencics arc retranslated
at the rates prevailing on the balance sheet date, with ditferences recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

On consolidation, the assets and liabilities of the Group's overseas nprrations are translated at exchango ratoes provailing on the
balsnce shaet date. Income and expense items are translated at the average exchange rates for the period. These are considered to
be approximate rates for the transaction dates. Exchange differences arising, it any, are recognised directly within equity within cther
comprehensive income. Such translation differences are recognised as income or expensea in the period in which the operation s
disposed of. Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the
forcrgn entity and translated at the closing rate.

Share-based payments

The Group issues equity-settled share-based payments to certainemployees. Fguity-settled share-based payments are measured
at fair value at the date of grant. Thiz is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting penods of the instruments. At each balance
sheet date, the Group revises its estimate of the number of equity instruments expected to vest as e result of the effect of the
particular vesting conditions. The impact of the revisionof the original estimates, if any, 1s recognised in profit or loss such that the
cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to other reserves in equity.

Fair value 1s measured by use of an adjusted Black-Scholes model for the 2017, 2018, 2019, 2020 and 2021 LTIPs (including the CSOP}
and the 2019 SAYE, and a Monte-Carlo model for Lhe LT IPs awarded in 2016, as these will vast dependent on market conditions.

Tax

Current tax s provided at amounts expacted to be paid o recovered using the tax rates and laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

Current tax provisions are recognised in accordance with IFRIC 23 and represent genuine uncertain tax treatmonts. The Group
contmually monitors the status of any tax provisions and will reassess annually based on any changes in facts or circumstances ieading
to a 'more hkely than not’ outcome.

Research and development tax credits are recognised in other revenue in the consolidated income statament,

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences batween the carrying values of assets and habilities n the
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. and is accounted for using the balance
sheet liabilty method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that itis probable that taxable profits wili be available against which deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such agsets and liabilities are not recognisad if the temporary difference anses frem gocdwill or from initial recognition (other than
inabusiness combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the tax profit nor the accounting profit.

The carrying value of deferred tex assets is reviewed at each balance sheel dale and reduced to the extent that it is ne longer probatle
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered. Deferred taxis calculated at the tax rates
that are expected to apply n the period when the hability is settled or the asset is realised. Deferred taxin the income statement is
charged or credited, except when it relates to items charged or credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt
withinequity.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the Group intends to settle its current tax
assets and labilities on a net basis.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recogrised in the Group's balance sheet when the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets

Financial assets are classified into the following specified categaries: linancial assels ‘at fair value through profit or loss’ (FVTPL)Y and
‘amortised cost” The classification depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and 18 determined at the time of initial
recognition. The Group does not currently hold any assets at fair value through profit or loss,
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Amortised cost

These assets anse principally frem the provision of goods and services to customers (e g. trade receivables) and cashand cash
equivalents. They are initially recogrised at fair value plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to their acquisition, and are
subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method, less provision for impairment.

Impairment of financial assets

Impairment provisions for current and non-current, trade recevables are recogrised basod on the simplitied approach within IFRS

Q using a provision matrix in the determination of credit losses. During this process the probability of the non-payment of the trade
receivable is assessed. This probabilty is then multiplied by the amount of the expected loss arising from default to determine

the expected credit loss for the trade receivables. Provisions are recorded net im a separate provision account with the loss being
recegnised in the consolidated income statement. On confirmation that the trade receivable will not be collectable, the gross carrying
value of the assetis wntten off aganst the associated provision,

Impairment provisions for receivables fromrelated parties and [oans to related parties are recognised based on a forward fooking
expectad credit loss model. The methodology used to determine the amount of provision s based onwhether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since the inibial recognition of the asset.

The Group's financial assets measured at amor tised cost comprise trade and other receivables and cash and cash equivalents.

{Cash comprises cashin hand and deposits repayable on demand. less overdrafts payable on demand which have a nght of of fset against
cash balances. These instruments are readily convertible to a known arount of cash and are subject tc an insignificant risk of change
nvalue.

Financial liabilities and equity
Financial labilities and equity instruments are classibied according to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into.

Equity instruments

An equity Instrumant is any contract that evidences & residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments 1ssucd by the Group are recorded sl the procseds receved, net of direct 1ssue costs.

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are classified as sither financial labiliies ‘at FYTPL' or 'amortised cost’. The unly financial liabilities held ‘at FVTPL” by
the Group s deferred contingent consideration.

Dividends
Dividends are recognised when they become legally payable. In the case of final dividends. this 1s when approved by the shareholders at
the AGM.

Contingent liabilities
Contingent liabilities are disclosed when cash flows are not probable.

2. Critical accounting judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty

In the process of applying the Croup's accounting policies, which are described in Note 1. the Board has made the following judgements
that have Lhe most significant effect on the amounts recognisedin the financial statements,

Goodwill

The carrying value of goodwill at the year-endis £28.6m (2020: £26.7m). An annual impairment review is required under IAS 36
'Impairment of assets’ involving judgement of the futurc cash flows and discount rates for cash-generating units. The Group prepares
such cash flow forecasts denved from the most recent budgets approved by the Board of Directors. Further detalls of the other
assumptions used are giveninNote 13

Other intangible assets (Development costs)

The carrying value of development costs is £276m (2020 £184m). Judgement 13 required to assess whether costs meet the eriteria
for capitalisation set out in1AS 38, the useful life of those assets, and subsequently the consideration of the potential need for
impairment of these assets. In particular n relation to ther expected ability to generate future revenue. Further details of the other
assumptions used are given inNote 14,



Tribal Group ple Annual Report & Accounts 2021
Strategic Report
8 2 Governance

Financial Statements

Notes to the Financial Statements continued

2. Critical accounting judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty continue:

Other intangible assets (Business systems)

The carrying value of business systems s £0.2m (2020, £0.4m). Judgement is required to assess whether costs meet the criteria

for capitalisation set out in IAS 38 (with the exception of cloud computing costs which are expensed as incurred), the useful hfe of
those assets, and subsequently the consideration of the potential need for impairment of these assets. in particular inrelation to their
axpected ability to generate future revenue. Further details of the other assumplions used are giveninNote 14

Revenue recognition

The Croup's revenue recognition policies are disclosedin Note 1. In some ceses, particularly inrelation to software delivery programmes
onwhichwe are engaged 10 a number of international settings, jJudgement is required to determine the most appropnate measure of the
fair value and the timing of the revenue and profit recognition related to the service and products that have been delivered to customers
at the balance sheet date. In particular before any icense revenus can be recognised. the license must have bean delivered and installed
at the customers premises and be available Lo use by the customer in the environment onwhich installation will take place. Judgement

is also required in the recognition of any variable consideration and in the agsociated nsk of recoverability of any associated receivables
and contract assets where invoicing andfor payment 1s subject to certain future milestones. Programme delivery requirements, software
specification and customer expectations may evolve during the couise of these meyor projects. This may result in developments to
ongoing commercial arrangemeants that could materially impact the basis of financial judgements made at the period end. Therefore, the
potential impact of these evolving obligations and the overall customer project status must be considered carefully and where appropriate
reflected in accounting judgements.

Acquisition accounting

The Group acquired Semestry Limited on 1 April 2021 with an element of the consideration being deferred and contingent on the
future annusl recurmng revenue (ARR} growth of the acquired business. Judgement is required to estimate the recurring revenue which
determines the level of provision for deferred contingent consideration that 1s required. As part of the accounting for the acquisition
of Semestry Limited judgement has been used te identify the far value of intangible assets totailling £2 9m. relating to software, and
customer contracts and relationships (see note 32).

I'he Group incorporated a Dutch legal entity on 14 September 2021 {Semestry Netherlands BV) for the purpose of acquiring the assets
and business of Evaoh BY on 1 October 2021. An element of the consideration has been deferred and is conlingent on the future annual
recurring revanue (ARR) growth of the acquired business. Judgement is required to estimate the recurning revenue which determines
the level of provision for defarred contingent consideration that is requirad. As part of the accounting for the acquisition of the assets
of Fvech BV judgement has been used to identify the fair value of intangible assets totaling £0.7m, relating to scftware, and customer
contracts and relationships (see note 32).



3. Revenue for contracts with customers

Annual Report & Accounts 2021

Tribal Group plc

Strategic Report

Governance

Financial Statements

83

The Group has split revenue into various categeries which is intended to enable users to understand the relationship with revenue
segment information. For 2021 reporting Asset Management, Software Solutions and Information Managed Services revenue is now
included in SIS as it more closely aligns with the Software side of the business. This torals £27m and was previousiy included within
Education Services 2020 has beenupdated for comparison with £2.6m revenue being reassigned.

North America

and Rest of
UK Australia Other APAC the world Total
31 December 2021 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Foundation - Support & Maintenance 165456 7376 1709 825 25954
Foundation - Software 4927 81 324 71 5403
Cloud Services 5097 1326 237 145 6,805
Edge 2503 363 126 3 3394
Professional Services 8.004 2,153 2,338 173 12,668
Core SIS 36,876 11.298 4733 1.317 54224
Other software & services 4,266 B816 - - 13,082
Total SIS 41.142 20114 4733 1317 67306
Schools inspections & other related services (QAS) 6.888 - - 4,181 11.069
l-graduate survey & data analytics 945 371 1.091 366 2773
Total ES 7833 371 1,091 4547 13842
Total 48975 20485 5824 b.864 81148

North America

and Rest of
UK Australia Other APAC the world Total
31 December 2020 £000 £000 200D €000 £000
Foundation - Support & Maintenance 15529 7316 1455 916 25,216
foundation - Sof tware 4119 79 146 103 4447
Cloud Services 4211 7Y 47 134 5,165
Edge 1622 104 - - 1.626
Professional Services 6,778 2322 635 46b 2200
Core SIS 31165 10593 2278 1618 45,648
Other software & servicos 3764 10,008 23 13 137G8
Total SIS 34913 20601 2301 1631 50446
Schools inspections & other related services (QAS) 6976 - - 4,377 11353
I-graduate survey & data analyhios 574 249 1.066 266 2165
Total ES 7,650 245 1066 4643 13508
Total 42 465 20850 3.366 6,273 72554
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3. Revenue for contracts with customers continued
Net contract liabilities

Contract asset/ Contract asset/

(liability) (liability}

2021 2020

£000 £000

Opening contract balance (19438} (19.025)
Of which released to income statement 19128 18760
New billings and cash in excess of revenue recognised (17.340) (15160}
Closing contract balance (17647 (15.435)

Balances arise on contract assels and habilities when cumulative payments received from customers at the balance sheet date do
not necessarily equal the amount of revenue recognised on confracts. Customers are on standard payment terms, which may result in

settlement of invoices prior to the recognition of associated revenue.

Contract assets inherently have some contractual risks associated with them related to the spacific and ongomg risks in each individual
contract with a customer. The impairment of contract assets/(habilities) reflects provisions recognised against contract assets in

relation to these risks. See Nots 30.

The amount of incremental costs to obtain a contract which extends over a period of more than 12 months has been recognised as an
asset in prepayments totalling £0.5m (2020: £0.3m) and will be releasedin line with the Lotal contract revenue. No amount has been

impaired at 31 December 2021 or 2020.

Remaining performance obligations

The amount of revenue that will be recogrisedin future penods on these contracts when those remaiming performance cbligations will

be satisfiadis analysed as follows:

At 31 December 2021
2022 2023 2024 Thereafter Total
£000 £000 £00D £000 £000
Foundation - Support & Maintenance 24814 24063 16,191 12609 TreT77
Foundation - Licence 4563 3438 2764 2,068 12833
Cloud Services 7hb7 6,982 4816 4,283 23,638
Ldge 4132 4,012 2.850 1724 12,768
Professional Services 12694 1.062 107 127 13,890
Core SIS 53760 395687 26,768 20811 140,896
Other software & services 9875 4,000 2542 677 17092
Total SIS 63.633 435657 29,310 21488 157588
Schools inspections & other related services (QAS) 6,766 2136 650 - 2562
i~graduate survey & data analytics 1501 1157 378 1,279 4615
Total ES 8257 3.293 1638 1279 14467
TOTAL 71.890 44,850 30,548 22767 1724556
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At 31 December 2020
2021 2022 2023 Thereafter Total
£000 €000 £000 £060 £000
Foundation - Support & Maintenance 26374 18.157 10310 738 54515
Foundation - Licence 3498 2692 2065 470 8725
Cloud 6003 b644 3562 2972 18,271
tdge 2087 2118 1695 285 6.185
Professional Services 11272 7061 146 - 18476
Care 813 48324 3712 17778 4,465 106,279
Other software & services G154 5488 1.477 13 16132
Total SIS 57478 41200 15,255 4478 122411
Schools inspections & other related services (DAS) 12374 4098 2113 1.308 19893
i-graduate survey & data analytics 1634 414 128 23 2099
Total £S 13508 4511 2241 1,331 21991
TOTAL 71,386 45,712 21496 5808 144,403
Ananalysis of the Group's revenug is as follows:
2021 2020
€000 £'000
Continuing operations
Sales of services 81.148 72954
Total revenue 81,148 72,904

Further details of the nature of the services provided are disclosed in Note 4. Sales of goods are not material and are therefore not
shown sepaiately. Included in sales of services 1s £0.8m (2020 £0.6m) related to software license revenues recognised as aresult of a
periodic review of our license entitlement resulting from changes in our customers’ enrolled student numbers.

There is no revenue in respect of discontinued operations.

4, Business segments

Information reported to the Groun's Chief Executive for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment performance
is focused on the nature ot cach type of activity. For 2021 reporting Asset Management, Sof tware Solutions and Information Managed
Services revenue is now Included in 8IS as it more closely aligns with the Sof tware side of the businass. This totals £2.%m and was
previously included within ES. 2020 has been updated for companison with £2.6m revenue being reassigned. The Group s reportable
segments and principal activities under IFRS 8 are detailed below:

= Student Information Systems (8I3) represents the delivery of software and subseguent maintenance and support services and the
activities through which we daploy and configure our software for our customers, including softwars solutions, asset management
and information managed services, and

= Education Services (ES) represents inspection and review servicas which support the assessment of educational delivery. and 2
porttolio of performance improvement tools and services, including analytics.

* Inaccordance with IFRS 8 ‘Operating Segmeants, nformation on segment assats is not shown, as this is not provided to the chisf
operating decision-maker, being the Chief Executive. Inter-segment sales are charged at prevalling market prices.
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4, Business segments o0l

Revenue Adjusted segment operating profit

Year ended Year ended Year oended Year ended

31December 2021  31December 2020 31 December2021 31 December 2020

£'000 £'000 £000 £'000

Student Information Systems 67306 50446 22404 20,861

Education Services 13842 13508 2229 2,047

Total 81,148 12954 24,633 22858

Unallocated corporate expenses {10.6686) (11,097)

Adjusted operating profit 13967 11.801
Amortisation of sof tware and customer contracts

% relationships (see Note 6) (917) (1,021)

Other ttems (sea Naote 6} (4.132) {1672)

Operating profit 8,888 9108

Investmant Income 265 53

Finance costs (529} (662)

Profit bafore tax 8614 85609

Tax charge (1.621) (2.151)

Profit after tax 6,993 &63h8

Associated depreciation and amorhsation is allocated to segment profits and is included in adjusted segment operating profit as above.
The amount included in 8IS 5 £1.1m (2020 £1 4m) and within Education Services Fnil (2020 £0.1m).

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the same as the Group's accounting policies described in Note 1. Segment
profit sepresents the profit earned by each segment, without allocation of central administration costs. including Directors’ salarics,
finance costs andincome tax expense. This 1s the measure reported to the Group's Chief Cxecutive for the purpose of resource
allecation and assessment of segment performance.

Within Education Services revenues of approximately 4% (2020 6%,) have arizen from the segment’s largest customer; within SIS

revenues of approximately 4% (2020: 6%) have arisen from the segment's largest customer.

Geographical information

Revenue from external customers, based on location of the customer is shown below

2021 2020
£'000 £'000
UK 488975 42 465
Augtralia 20485 20850
Other Asia Pacific 5,824 3.366
North America 3149 2872
Rest of the world 2715 3701
81148 72954

Non-current assets (excluding deferred tax)}
2021 2020
£'000 £'000
UK 54314 39632
Australia 13391 15214
Other Asia Pacific 1637 665
North America 68 28
Rest of the world - 15
69410 bh.edd
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5. Operating profit for the year

2021 2020
Note £'000 £:'000
Operating profit for the year is stated after charging/(crediting):
Staft costs (excluding amounts capitalised) 7 43569 39770
Depreciatinn and nther amaunts wrnlten of fin BRE 15 G50 734
Depreciation of nght-of-use assets 25 985 1,059
Amortisation of software and customer contracts & refationships 14 947 1.021
Amortisation of software licenses 14 1 3
Armortisation of business systems 14 24 20
Amortisation of devolopment costs and acquired Intellectusl Property 14 1.008 1245
Write off of development costs 14 905 -
Internal systems trangformation programme "VERITAS” 14 1715 -
Net impairment gain on trade receivables 16 {44} (210
Research and development expenditure 6,763 6,004
Net foreign exchange (gans)losses (110} 769
The enalysis of auditors” remuneration is as follows:
2021 2020
£000 £'000
Feas payable to the Company’s current auditors for the audit of the Company's Annual Report 186 150
Fees payable to the Company's current auditors and its assomates for other services to the
Broun.
- the audit of the Gompany's subsidianies pursuant to legislation 166 126
Totel audit foes 342 276
- audit related assuance services g8 8
-nonaudit ielatad agsurance services 5 -
Total non-audit fees 13 8
Total auditor's remuneration 3656 284

Non-audit feesin 2021 and 2020 (2021: £8.000; 2020: £8.000) arose as aresult of the half year review, and in 2021 as aresult of
business contingency planning advice (£5,000).

Fees payable to BDO LLP and its associates for non-audit services to the Gompany are not required to be disclosed because the
consolidated financial statements are required to disclose such fees on e conselidsted basts,

Alternative Performance Measures (APM).

A number of non-IFRS adjusted profit measures are used in this annual reporl and financial statements. Adjusting items are excluded
from our headling performance measures by virtue of their size and nature, inorder to reflect management's view of the performance
of the Group. Surmmarized below is 2 reconciliation between statutory results to adjusted results. The Gioup believes that slternative
performance measures such as adusted EBITDA are comimonly reported by companies in the markets in which it competes and

are widely used by investors in companng performance on a consistent basis without regard to factors such as depreciation and
amortisation, which can vary significantly depending upon accounting mothods (particularly when acquisitions have occurred), or based
on factors which do not reflect the underlying performance of the business. The adjusted profit after tax earnings measure 1s also used
for Lhe purpose of calculating adjusted sarnings per share.
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5. Operating profit for the year continuad
Alternative Performance Measures (APM) continued

2021 2020 Change
£'000 £'000 £'000
Statutory Operating profir 8.888 9108 (2200
Amortization of Dovelopment cost and acquired Intellectual Prioperty 1.008 1.245 (237}
Amortisation of other intangibles 25 23 2
Depreciation on Property, Plant & Equipment 650 735 (85}
Depreciation of right-of use assets G85 1.059 (74)
Amortisation of software and customer contracts & relationships 947 1021 (743
Othor exceptional costs 2504 (143) 2,647
Employee related sharc option charges 1628 1.815 (8"
Adjusted Operating Profit (EBITDA) 16,636 14,863 1772
6. Other items
2021 2020
£'000 2’000
Acquisition related costs (765) 814
Emgplovee related share option charges Oncluding employer related taxes) {1.628) (1.815)
- Internal systems transformation programme "VERITAS” (1718) -
- Legacy defined beneht schemes - (123)
- Qther legal costy (36)
- Restructunng and associated costs (24} (512)
Other items (1.739) (671)
Amortisation of sof tware and customer contracts & relationships (347) (1021
Total administrative expenses (6,079} (2,693)
Other hinancing costs (209 {307}
Total other items before tax (5.378) {3.000)
Tax on other items 619 1005
Total other items after tax (4,769} (1.998)

The Group has adopted a policy of disclosing separately on the face of its Group income statement the effect of any components of financial
performance considered by the Directors to be not directly reisted to the trading business cr regarded as exceptional, or for which separate
disclosure would assist inabetter understanding of the financial performance achigved. Both materiality and the nature and function of the
components of income and expense aro considered in deciding upon such presentation. As such, ‘other items’ are not part of the Group's
underlying trading activities and includa the following:

Acquisition refated costs: Amounts refating to the legal and due difigence costs of the acquisition of Semestry Limited, and the acquisition of
Fveoh BY's assets into Semestry Netherlands BY in the period total £832 000 (2020: £nil). Under IFRS 3 these amounts were expensed as
they are not eligible fur capitalisation. These are considered to be one-of f costs in the year. In 20271 accounting for changes in the fair value
of the contingent deferred consideration have been rameasured at relevant reporting dates ss part of the earn-out agreement with Trical
Dynarmics Limited, and the corresponding gan has been recognised in the ncome statement (2021 £(67.000). 2020: £(814,0000

Employes related share option charges. The numbers above include:

= share-based payments (see Note 22) plus loreign exchange (2021 £27,000. 2020 £(37.000);
= the movementin associated employers taxes accrual (2021: £494,000: 2020 £153,000);

« theamounts accrued and paid on dividends on share options that have met performance conditions (2021 £(10,000): 2020, £155,000).
When the Cempany declares a cash dividend, some nption holders are entitled to a"dividend equivelent” This s a payment in cash andf
or additional shares with a value determined by reference to the dvidends that would have been paid on the vested shares inrespect of
dividend record dates occurring during the period between the grant of the Award and the date on which it becomes exercisable: and



Annual Report & Accounts 2021

Tribal Group plc

Strategic Report
Governance

Financial Statements

89

= anominalvaluc paid to employees asabonus (2021 £65.000 2020: £128.000). Under Companies Act 2006 rules a nominal value must
be paid Lo 1ssue new shares, however under the rules of the LTIP and Malching Shares Schemes tha Company will pay the nominal value to

the participants as a bonus.

Otheritems are detailed below:

= during 2020 and 20271 the Group has been running the Veritas Programme. This includes an upgrade to its accounting system
(Microscft Dynamics D365) and s part of a wider implementation of a new target operating model and processes to provide gieater
operating efficiencies and reporting functionalities. Following clanfied gudance issued in relation to 1AS 38, £181,000 of costs
capitalised in 2020 have been expensed to the income statement alongside £1,634,000 of costs in 2021, The upgrade is material

and non-recurring in nature:

= legacy definedbenelit schemes relate to the Prudsntial Platinum and Federated Pension Funds to which no current Tribal employee
is amember. Costs arising relate to additional funding and administration charges (20271, £mil- 2020, £123,000),

» legalcosts assomiated with the data breachin Tribal Campus, an Australian subsidiary of the Group, announced on 12 August 2018,
amounted to £36,000in 2020. The amounts expensed are the excess not covered by the Group's Insurance policy. All costs were

fully settled in 2020; and

= rostructuring and associated costs relate to the restructunng of the Group's operations (2021 £24,000: 2020: £612.000).

Amortisation of software and customer contracts and relationships: Amortigation arising on the farr value of intangible assets acquired

1S separatety disclosed. (2021: £947,000. 2020: £1.021.000).

Other financing charges. Consistent with the treatment of movements indeterred consideration, the unwind of the discount on
deferred consideration is separately presented as other financing costs in the income statement (2021, £299.000- 2020 £307.000).

Taxation. Ihe tax credit arising on the above items is presented on a consistent basis with the underlying cost or credit to which it

relates and therefore is also presented separately on the face of the income statemeant.

7. Staff numbers and costs

The average monthly number of persons employed under contracts of service by the Group (including Executive Directors) duning the

vear was as follows.

2021 2020
number number
Selling. operations and marketing 848 788
Finance and administration 88 Gh
936 893

The aggregate payroll costs of these persons were as follows:
2021 2020
£'000 £000
Wages and salaries 44224 38462
Social security costs 4179 3,288
Other pension costs 2022 1719
Restructuring costs 185 bbb
Share option charye” 1.068 1534
51678 46547

* neludes $U10.000012020 €155,000) amounts paid and accruad on dwidends on share options that have met performance conditions.

The total payroll costs above include €7709000 (2020, £5.777000) capitalised as development cosLs.

Net interest expense relaling fo pension schemes of £14,000 (2020 £10,000) and administrative expenses of £23,000

(2020 £23,000) are reported elsewhere and are therefore excluded from the figures above.
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8. Investment income
2021 2020
£'000 £000
Other interest receivable - 4]
Fair value movernent on forward exchange contract 249 41
Interest receivable on lepsed Assets 6 6
Total investment income 255 53
9. Finance costs
2021 2020
£°000 £'000
Interest on bank overdrafts and loang 70 147
Loanarrangement fees 45 65
Net interest payable on retiiement benefit obiigations 14 10
Interost expense on lease labilties 101 123
Adjusted finance costs 230 345
Unwinding of discounts 299 307
Other finance costs 299 307
Total finance costs 528 652
10. Tax
2021 2020
£000 £'000
Current tax
UK corporation tax (319 67
Overseas tax 2,017 1.800
Adjustments in respect of prior years {103) 33
1,695 1,500
Deferred tax
Current year (2} 188
Adjustments inrespect of prior years 28 63
26 251
Tax charge on profits 1.621 2151

See Note 21 for [urther analysis of movements in the deferred tax pesition. The continuing tax charge can be reconciled to the profit

from continuing operations per the income statement as follows:
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2021 2020

£'000 £'000
Piofit before tax oncontinuing operations 8614 860%
Tax charge at standard UK rate of 19% (2020 19%) 1637 1617
Effects of:
Overseas lax rates 685 6o4
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 190 134
Adjustmerts intespect of prior years (74) G6
Additional deduction for R&D expenditure (13) (11
Sharc scheme costs (174) 30
Fixed assetsinelgible depreciation (47) (47)
Ulisation of unrecognised tax losses 84 5
Movement in tax provision 3Y1) -
Effect of changes in tax rates (299) (327}
lax expense for the year 1621 2151

In addition to the amount charged to the income statement a current tax credit of £53 000 (2020 £66.000) and a deferred tax charge
of £395 000 (2020: credit of £343,000) together with the prior year deferred tax credit of £686,000 (relating to areduction in the
2020 deferred tax asset due to the reduced expected future deductions avallable in relation to Share Schemes, see note 21) has been
recognised directly in equity during the year in relation to Share Schemes.

A deferrad tax charge of £131,000 (2020 credit of £88.000) has been recognised in the Conselidated Statement of Comprehensive
Incoma inrelation to defined benefit pension schemes.

The Group continues to hold an approprate corporation tax provision in relation to the Group relief claimed from Care UK for the year
ended 31 March 2007, together with other appropriate Group provisions. There has been no progress in the Care UK case in the year to
31 December 2021. Under IFRIC 23 management have reviewed this uncertain tax provision and do not consider it appropriate to make
any adjustments due to the lack of progressionin the year,

The ncome tax expense for the year is based on the UK statutory rate of carporation tax for the period of 19% (2020 19%). Tax for
other jurisdictions is calculated at the prevailing rates in the respective junisdictions.

in the 3 March 2021 Budget, it was anncunced that the UK tax rate will increase to 25% from 1 Aprii 2023. As the rate of 25% has been
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date, the deferred tax balances have been calculated at 25%. Where the underlying timing
differences are expected to unwind belore 1 April 2023, the deferred tax on those balannes have continued to be calculated at 19%.

11. Dividends
2021 2020
£'000 £'000
Amounts recognised as distributions to equity holders in the period:
Final dividend for the vear ended 31 December 2020 of 1 2 pence
(Intenm dividend for the vear ended 31 December 2020 1 1 pence) per share 2606 22h4
Proposed hinal dividend.
Proposed final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2021 of 1.3 pence
{yearended 31 December 2020 1.2 pence) per share 2735 2470

The Board regularly reviews the available distributable raserves ot Tribal Group plo to ensure they are protected for future dividend
payments,
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12. Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share and diluted earnings per share are calculated by reference to a weighted average number of Ordinary Shares
caloulated as follows:

2021 2020
thousands thousands

Woeighted average number of shares outstanding:
Basic weighted average number of shares inissue 207634 203986
Weighted average number of employee share options 7047 4230
Weighted average number of shares outstanding for diutien caleulations 2149561 208.216

Diluted earnings per share only reflects the dilutive effect of share options for which vesting cnteria have been met.

The maximum number of potentially dilutive shares, based on options that have been granted but have not yot met vesting criteria, is
7125172(2020. 12,796.406). This includes 876.512 options 1n the 2019 SAYE Schems (2020 1,028,396).

The adjusted basic and diluted earnings per share tigures shown on the consolidated income statement on page 68 are included as the
Drreclors believe that they provide a better understanding of the underlying trading performance of the Group. A reconciliation of how
these figuies are caloulated s set out below:

2021 2020
£000 £°000
Net profit 5993 6368
Earnings per share
Basic 34p 31p
Diluted 32p 31p
Adjusted nat profit 11762 8363
Adjusted earnings per share
Basic 57p 41p
Diluted bbp 40p
Profit for the year Earnings per share

2021 2020 2021 2020

£°000 £'000 £'000 £000
Profit for the year attributable to equity shareholders 6993 6,358 34p 31p
Add back:
Amortisation of IFRS intangibles 1.083 800 - -
Share-based payments 1400 1376 - -
internal systems transformation programme "VERITAS” 1,460 - - -
Unwinding of discounts 299 307 - -
Moverment in deferred consideration (67) (814 - -
Other acquisition costs 832 - - -
Dther items (net of tax) (248) 326 - -
Iotal adjusting ilems 4759 1.9%9% 23p 10p

Adjusted earnings 11752 8353 b 41p
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13. Goodwill
2021 2020
£000 £'000
Cost
At beginming of year 107892 107110
Additions 2543 -
Cxchange ditferences (622} 782
“Atend of year 109813 107852
Accumulated impairment losses
At beginning of year 81,731 81,231
At end of year 81,231 81,231
Net book value
At end of year 28582 26,661
At beginning of year 26,661 25879

Goodwill acquired in a business is allocaled. at acquisition, to the cash-generating units (CGUs) that are expected to benefit from the
business combination. The carrying amount of goodwill has been allocated as follows:

2021 2020

£'000 £°000

Student Information Systems (SI15) 25048 23127
Education Services (ES) 3534 3534
285682 26,661

Goodwiltis reviewed at least annually for impairment by comparing the recoverable amount of each cash generating unit (CGU) with the
goodwill intangible assets and property, plant and equipment allocated to that CGU.

The racoverable amount of a CGU is determined based on value inuse calculations. These caleulations use nsk adjusted cash flow
projections based on the financial budget approved by management for the penad to 31 December 2022, The budget was prepared
based on past experiance, strategic plans and management’s expectation tor the markets in which they operate including adjustments
for known contract ends, contract related nflationary increases and planned cost savings. The budget was extrapolated over a five-
year periodin hne with previous calculations and to give greater clarity on future cash flows. The growth assumption is 2% per annum
for SIS (2020: 2%) and 2% for ES (2020, 2%). Cash tHlows beyond the budget and extrapolation penod were calculated into perpetuity
using the same growth rates. These growthrates arein line with the expected average UK sconomy long-term growth rate.

The cash flows projections are discounted at a pre-tax discount rate of 10.8% (2020: 11.0%). The single discount rate, which is
consistently apphed for both CGUs . is determined with reference to inteinal measures and available industry information end reflects
specific nsks relevant to the Group.

Impairment testing inherently involves a number of judgemental areas, including the preparation of cash flow forecasts for periods that
are boyond the normal requirements of management reporling; the assessment of the discount rate aopropriate 1o the Group and the
estimation of the futura revenue and expenditure of each COU. Accardingly, management undertock stress testing to understand the
key sensitivities and concluded as follows:

Arise in discount rate to 31% and 301% would trigger animpairment in SIS and £S respectively. A decine in growthrate Lo [22%) in SIS
and (110%} in £5 would result in an impainment. Management does not consider these changes possible but considers a slight mcrease
in discount rate to 12% and 7ero growth may be possible ag a result of the cunient economic environment As aresult of the analysis,
there s headroom of £103 .9 millien and £16.5 million in 315 and ES respectively.

As aresult, management dogs not believe a reasonably possible change in the key assumptions may cause impairment.
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14. Other intangible assets

Acquired
Customer Acquired
Acquired contracts & intellectual Development Business Software
Software relationships property costs systems licanses Total
£'000 £'000 £°000 £000 £'000 £°000 £'000

Cost
At 1 January 2020 9831 83.424 1873 36513 5083 14885 63.213
Additions - - - 6,902 229 - 7129
txchange differences 162 196 - 204 G - 871
At 31 December 2020
and 1 January 2021 10263 8.620 1873 43619 0.314% 1489 71.213
Acquisttions (note 33) 2.305 1,289 - 1,237 - - 4831
Additicns - - - 10.224 - - 10224
Disposals - - - (o08) (4 496} - (5.401)
Exchange differences (365) (156) - (162) (5) (1) (689)
At 31 December 2021 12233 9763 1873 54,013 818 1488 80,178
Amortisation
At 1 January 2020 /137 5677 6hG 23,893 4883 1486 43744
Charge for the year 536 486 75 1,170 20 3 2,289
Exchange differcnces 469 136 - 192 7 - 804
At 31 December 2020
and 1 January 2071 81imn 6,299 734 25265 4,920 1488 46,837
Acquisitions (note 33) - - - 366 - - 3686
Charge for the year 5Z29 418 75 933 24 1 1,980
Disposals - - - - (4.31b) - (4.315)
Exchange differences (365) (111) - (156) (6) (1} 637)
At 31 December 2021 8305 6.606 B0S 26,369 624 1.488 447231
Carrying amount
At 31 December 2021 3978 3147 1.064 77614 194 - 35,947
At 31 December 2020 2157 2371 1,139 18,364 399 1 24376

Software and customer contracts and relationships have arigen from acquisitions and are amortised over therr estimated useful lives,
which are 3 to Byears and 3 to 12 years respeclively. The amortisation period for development costs incurred on the Group's product
development is 3to 15 years, based on the expected life cycle of the product. Amortisation and impairment of development costs,
amortisation for software, customer contracts and relationships, business systems and software licenses are all included within
adrinistrative expenses,

Included within Business systems are finance systems with a carrying value of £0.2m (2020 £0.4m) Phase | of the D365
implementation was fully capitalised and 1s being amortised over a period of ten years. The Veritas programme commenced in Gctober
2020 andis part of awider implementation of a new target oparating model and processes to provide greater operating efficiencies
and reporting functionalities across the Group. Inline with A5 38 £181 000 of costs capitalised in 2020 no longer meet the criteria
tobe capitalised as a software intangible and have been expensed to the 2021 income statement. Allcosts in 2021 have aiso been
expensed In2021.

In additicn a review of allbusiness systems was undertaken in the year and £4.3m of fully depreciated assets have been written off as
ne longer in use.
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The Group is required to test annually if there are any indicators of impairment. The recoverable amount is determined based on value
inuse calculations of iIdentified CGUs. The use of this method requires the estimation of future cash flows and the determination of a
discount rate inorder to calculate the present value of the cash flows.

Areview of the Group's capitalisation to dale has beenundertaken resulting in £0.9m of early capitalised costs being expensed. as

the Group now has clarity on the future Edge of fering. The "Dynamics” product has now been incorporated into Fdge (included within
development costs)and the amor tisation time frame of this s expected to be fifteen years infine with the rest of Edge. Subsaquently
managemeant have Clisnyed the UFL of this asset from & to 15 years in accordance with IAS 8.36. This has been treated as a change in
accounting estimate from 1 January 20271 and therefore prior periods have not been adjusted as it is not considerad practical to do so.
The net mpact of this change inaccounting estimate s a reduction in the amortisation charge of £88,000. The future impact of this
change s nol considered material.

The impairment testing allocates all assets relating to specific CGUs. including goodwill other intangibles, property, plant and
sguipment and net current assets and habilities. Semestry and Eveoh acquired assets have been allocated to the SIS CGU.

15. Property, plant and equipment

Leasehold Fixtures, fittings and

improvements other equipment Total
£°000 £'000 £'000

Cost
At 1 January 2020 3103 5788 8891
Additicns - 3b6 3b6
[hsposals - {13) a3
Exchange ditterences 50 129 179
At 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021 3153 6,260 9413
Additions b HhiB 063
Exchange differences (49} (121 (170
At 31 December 2021 3109 6,697 9806
Accumulated depreciation and impairment
At 1 January 2020 2677 4776 7453
Charge for the year 135 599 734
Exchange differences 39 118 157
At 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021 2851 5,493 8344
Charge for the year 108 542 650
Exchange differences (10) (110} (160
At 31 Decombar 2021 2919 5525 8844
Net book value
At 31 December 2021 180 772 962
At 31 December 2020 302 767 1,065

There are £8.5m (2020 £77m) worth of assets that are fully depreciated within property, plant and equipment.



Tribal Group plc Annual Report & Accounts 2021

Strategic Report
9 6 Governance
Financial Statements

Notes to the Financial Statements continued

16. Trade and other receivables

2021 2020

£000 £'000

Amounts receivable for the sale of services b.629 7701
Less. loss allowance {187) (231)
D442 7470

Other recervables 6973 413
Prepayments 2467 3,163
10.602 11.036

The Group's principal financial assets are cash and cash equivalents and trade and other recevables which represent the Group's
maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to financial assets. The Group's credit risk is prmarily related to its trade receivables.

The credit nsk on hguid funds is limited because the counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assignod by international credit
rating agencies.

Allreceivables are due within one year n both current and prior years.
The Directors consider Lthat the carrymg amount of trade and other receivables approximates to their farr value.

Trade receivabies

Trade receivables are measured at amortiscd cost. The average cradil terms on sales is 30 days (2020 30 days). The Group sells the
majority of its services to the puhlic sector orrelated bodies and institutions, and ag such there s a low incidence of default experience.

Of the tolal Lrade recevables balance at the end of the year there wers three customers (2020 nona) who held balances outstanding
of mora than 5% (2021: €1.2m; 2020: Cnil). The average age of receivables s 31 days (2020: 44 days).

The Group applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measurnng expected credit losses using alifetime expected credit loss allowance
for trade receivables and accruedincome. To measure sxpected credit losses on a collective basis, trade recsivables and acerued
Income are grouped based on similar credit nsk and ageing.

At 31 December 2021 the lifetime expected loss allowance for trade receivables is as follows:

Gross camrying

Expected amount Loss provision

loss rate £'000 £000

Current 1% 5,024 68
30-60 days 8% 241 19
00-00 days 33% 123 41
90-180days 16% 134 21
180+ days 36% 107 38
Total 5629 187

At 31 December 2020 the ifetime expacled loss allowance for trade receivables s as follows.

Gross carrying

Expected amount Loss provigion

loss rate £'00D £'000

Current 1% b669 &7
30-60 days 4% 760 29
60-50 days 6% 205 13
S0-180 days 17% 801 5b
180+ days 25% 266 67

Total 7701 231
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Movement in the impairment allowance for trade receivables is as follows

2021 2020

£'000 £'000
Balance at the beginning of the year 231 441
IFRS 9 expected credit loss adjustment (34) (b2)
Amounts written of f during the year 81 (4b)
Unused amounts reversed 71 (113)
Balance at the end of the year 187 261

Contract assets

Contract assets are measurad at amortised cost. Contract assets inherently have some contractual risks associated with them related
to the specific and ongoingrisks in each individual contract with a customer. These are subject to the expected credit loss impairment
under [FRS 9.

Revenue provisions recngnised in the income statement in respect nf contract assets amount to £0.7m (2020, £0.8m).

17. Cash and cash equivalents

Cashand cash equivalents of £6.9m (2020: £6.5m) comprise cash held by the Group and short-term bank deposits with an original
maturity of three months or less. The carrying amount of these assets approximales their fair value.

The credit quality of cash at bank can be assessed by reference to external credit ratings. | he Group has not changed its nsk appetite
during the year, however one of the Graup's main banks has been downgraded in the period. The following table has been sourced from
Moodys credit ratings.

2021 2020

£'000 £°000
Aa3 440 700
Al 1.2Y3 8,167
A2 3.047 -
A3 1,113 613
Baa? 51 50

5924 9520
Cashand cash equivalents include the following for the purposes of the statement of cash flows:

2021 2020

£'000 £°000

Cashand cash eguivalents 5024 9520
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18. Trade and other payables

2021 2020
£'000 £'000
Current
Irade payables 1712 892
Other taxation and social security 2708 2622
Mther payables 1641 1.246
6.081 4660
Mon-current
Other payables 181 40
131 40
Tota! 6212 4700

The avsrage credit period taken for trade purchases s 17 days (2020 12 days). For most suppliers, no interest is charged on the trade
payables for the first 30) days from the date of invoice. Thereatter, in some casas. interest may be charged on the outstanding balances
due to certain suppliers at various interast rates. The Group has financial risk management policies in place Lo ensure that all payables
are paid within a reasonable time frame. The Directors considar that the carrying amount of trada and cther payables approximates their
fair value.

Other payables are split as follows:

2021 2020
£’000 £'000
(Goods received not inveiced 826 bed
Other creditors 816 682
1,641 1.246

19. Borrowings

The Group had a £2m committed overdraft facility in the UK and a AUD$ 2m committed overdraft facility in Australia. both facilities are
committed for a 12-month period ending August 2022 and October 2022 respectively. As at 31 Decernber 2021, the Group had cash
and cash equivalents of £6.9m (2020: £96m).

Al the yearend there was £2.0m available but undrawn in respect of the UK overdraft facility and $AUD 2.0m available but undrawn in
raspect of the Australian overdraft facility.

On 271 January 2020 the Group entered into a three-year £10m multi-currency revolving facility with HSBG with the option to extend to
afurther two years. The first option to extend was approved by HSBC on 15 March 2021, the second extension was approved by HSBC
onb January 2022, of fective 21 January 2022, The loan was fully drawn down in 2021 and repaid in full before 31 December 2021,
The facility was put in place to cover general corporate and working capital requirements of the Group.



Annual Report & Accounts 2021 Tribal Group ple

Strategic Keport
Governance 9 9

Financial Statements

20. Provisions
Deferred
Property Contingent
related Consideration Other Total
£000 £°000 £°000 £'000
At 1 January 2021 1.030 1,392 168 2580
Onacquisition of subsidiary 37 1649 - 1671
Net release of provigion 31 {67) 3 {90)
Unwinding of discount 16 299 - 314
Uthisation of provision (107 (2180) - (2.287)
Exchange rate movement (19) - 8) (27)
At 31 December 2021 920 1083 163 2165
The provisions are split as follows.
Deferred
Property Contingent
related Consideration Other Total
£'000 £000 £000 £'000
2021
Within one year 113 1.083 168 1,349
After more than one year 807 - - 807
Total G20 1.083 163 2156
2020
Within one year 10 1,392 158 1.66Y
After more than one year 923 - - 923
Total 1.630 1392 168 2680

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation as a result of a past event, and it is probable that the Group willbe
required to settle the obligation. Provisions are measured at the Directors’ best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the
obligation at the balance sheet date, and are discounted tc present valus where the effoct is material.

Property related provision relates to the estimated future dilapidation costs ansing from exiting leasehold properties, under 1AS 37.
This provision is discounted at 2.65%

Other provisionrelates to the recoverability of input VAT in the Philippines. This provisionis not discounted.

Deferrad consideration reflects amounts in respect of the acquisitions of subsidiary undertakings payable over aperiod of up to

P years. Certain amounts are contingent upon the performance of the acquired entities with amounts reflscting management's
best estimate of the future profitability of those entities and the resultant payment due under the terms of the Sale and Purchase
Agreement. The deferrad consideration is discounted at 18%.

Deferred contingent consideration in 2021 reflects amounts in respect of the acquisition of Semestry Limited and the assets of
Evech BY. The amounts have been calculated upon the pertormance of the entities in the year to 31 December 2021 and the resultant
payments ere due under the Sale and Purchase Agreements Deferred contingent consideration amounts to £664,000 for Semestry
Limited and £519,000 for the assets of Eveoh BV. At 31 December 2020 there was £1,392.000 of deferred contingent consideration
due to the owners of Iribal Dynamics Limited. During 2021 a final payment of £1,325,000 was made with the remaining balance
credited to the income statement (sees note 6).

The remaining deferred consideration for Sernestry and Eveoh s likely to be paid in 2022 and hence is all classified as current.

Deferred contingent consideration was misclassified as Other payables in Trade and other payables in 2020, £1,.392.000 has been
reclassed as a provision in 2020 as this better reflects the nature of the balance.
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21. Deferred tax
The amounts provided for deferred tax and the amounts for which credit has besntaken are set out below
Restated
2021 2020
£°000 £'000
Deferred tax assets
Short-term timing differences 1593 1.022
Share-based payments 688 668
Tax losses 2899 2,371
Retirement benefit schemes 53 187
5233 4243
Deferred tax liabilities
Dapreciation inexcess of capital allowances {1.143) (309
intangible assets (1.810) (941}
{(2.9563) (1,250
2280 2993

The Directors are of the opinion, based on currently avallable forecasts, that these timing differences will reverse in the near future and
when they do there will be sufficient taxable profits to recogmse the impact of this inthe ncome statement. Accordingly, the Directors
believe that itis more likely than not that the deferred tax assets wilibe recoverable

The Group has recognised a deferred tax asset of £2,899,000(2020: £2,371,000) on tax losses carried forward in the UK of
£13.072.000(2020: £12.477.000}. The Group has losses of £1.092.000 (2020- €195,000} in the UK on which no deferred tax has
beenrecognised. The Group and Company have no further unrecognised deferred tax assets or lisbilities.

The movement in deferred tax duning the year and prior year was as tollows.

Temporary Retirement
differences on defined Other
non-current benefit temporary
assets schemes  differences Total
£'000 £'000 £000 £'000
At 1 January 2020 434 91 2844 3,369
Foreign exchange differcnces S15) - (26) 29
{Charge)/credit to ncome statement (758) 2 545 (261)
[tems taken directly to equity - - 343 343
(Charge recognised in consolidated statement of comprehenaive income - 89 - 8%
At 31 Dacember 2020 as previously reported (309) 182 3706 3579
Prior year eguity adjustment - - (586) (BB6)
At 31 December 2020 restated (30%) 182 3,120 2993
Foreign exchange differences ) - (20} (15)
Acquisitions - - (732} (732)
(Charge)/credit toincome statement B39 2 811 (26)
ltems takendireclly to equity - - 191 191
sredit recognised inconsolidated statement of comprebensive income - (131 - (131
At 31 December 2021 (1.143) b3 3370 2,280

The prior period adjustment of £686,000 relates to a reductionin the 31 December 2020 deferred tax asset due to the reduced
expected future deductions available in relation to Share Schemes; in addition to an adjustment inrespect to the reversal of intra-group
recharges capitalised. These arpse due to an inaccuracy in the inputs in the prior year calculations. The balances impacted are deferred
tax assel and accumulated losses.
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Includad in other Llemperary differences arc deferrad tax assets of £2 899000 (2020: £2.371.000) relating to tax losses carried
farward and other timing ditterences of £2.281.000 (2020- £2.276,000). [he balance atso includes a deferred tax liability, in relation to
ntangble assets of £1,810.000(2020. £941.000),

The (charge)oredit taken to the income statement Tornitems in‘othar temporary dif ferencas’ is split as follows: 1ax losses £628,000
{(#020: £46,000); Intengible assets F(137000) (2020 £(152,000)). Share schemes £(171,000} (2020- £(157.000)); and other timing
differences {246,000V {2020 £{282,000)).

The deferred tax assets are expected to be settled a5 follows: £613,000 less than 12 months from 31 December 2021 and
£4.720,000 greater than 12 months from 31 December 2021 The deferred tax liabilitics are all expected to reverse greater than
12 months from 31 December 2021

During the period. legislation was subslantively enacted to increase tha UK corporation tax rate Lo 26% with effect from 1 April 2023.
Where relevant, the deferred rax balances have heen resrated at the future effective rate of 25%. This has had an impact in the period
of acharge of £355,000 (2020: Erul). Of this £299,000 of the impact has been chargad to the income statement and is included within
the total charge to the ncome staterment of 126,000 (2020 £251 000) disclosed above,

22.Share-based payments

The Group recogmised the following charges/{credit) related to equity-settled share-based payment transactions

2921 2020

£'000 £'000
2019 SAVE 40 47
LTIPs awarded n 2021 56 -
[ TIPs awarded in 20202 year vesting) 485 220
LTIPs awardad 1n 2020 270 181
LTIPs (incorporating the CSOP) awarded in 2019 175 261
LTIPs (incorporating the CSOP) awarded in 2018 47 445
L1iPs (incorporating the CSOP) awarded in 2017 a1 272
Total 1.062 1.376

Awards made to eligible emplovees under the | TIP schemes are nil cost options with an award period of three years, unless stated.

2019 SAYE

The 2019 SAYE Scheme is open Lo all UK employees, giving Lhem the opportunity to participate in the future growth of the Company via
shaie option arrangements.

Eligible employees were invited to subscribe for options cver Ordinary Shares of 5p of the Company with an exercise price of 58.2
pence, a 10% discount to the closing average market price of the Ordinary Shares from 3 September 2019 to b September 2015 The
options have & contract atart date of 1 November 2019 and are exercisable between 1 November 2022 and 30 April 2023. As at 31
December 2021 19,329 pptions had been exercised by employees deemed as good leavers.

LTIPs awarded in 2021

New awards in 2021 to Mark Pickett (275,510} and Diane Melntyre (204 081) wilt vest equally over the next 3 years. These awards were
granted subject to performance conditions based on the Group's Adjusted Operating Profit for the years ended 31 December 2021,
2022 and 2023,
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22. Share-based payments continued
LTIPs awarded in 2020

New awards in 2020 to Mark Pickett (482,14 3) will vest equally over the next 3years. These awards were granted subject to
performance condilions based on the Group's Adjustled Operating Profit for the years ended 31 December 2020, 2021 and 2022,

Eligible employees an Lhe Executive Board also received 1,876,000 awards under the LTIP Scheme. These will vest equally over the next
thiee years, These awards were granted subject Lo performence conditions based nn the Group's Adjusted Oparating Profit for the
years ended 31 Devember 2020, 2021 and 2022,

In addition 1,920,000 options were granted to eligible employees under the LTIP Scheme. These awards were granted subject to time
limit conditions. 50% of the options can be exercised from 1 July 2021 and 50% from 1 July 2022, During the year 509,000 options
were exercised.

LTIPs awarded in 2019 (including the CSOP)

New awards in 2019 to Mark Pickett (760.563) will vest equally over the next three vears. These awards were granted subject to
porformance conditions based on the Group's Adiusted Operating Profit for the years endad 31 December 2019, 2020 and 2021,
During 2020 44 011 shares lapsed as part of the 2019 performance condition was not met.

Eligible employees receved awards under the CSOP scheme on 7 June 2019 and on 16 September 2019, Those granted in June 2019
canonly be oxercisod after a three-year peiiod If the sharc price is above 71p, and those granted in September 2019 can only be
exercised after a three-year period if the share price is above 61 .5p.

LTIPs awarded in 2018 (including the CSOP)

Awards in 2018 were made to Mark Pickett (251,266). These awards were granted subject to performance conditions based on
the Group's Adjusted Operating Profit for the vear ended 31 December 2018 and continucd employment. These awards vested on
22 May 2021 and were exercised in June 2021,

Ehgible employees received awards under the CSOP scheme on 26 March 2018. These can only be exercised after a three-year period
if the share price is above 73.6p. The options met the three-year vesting condition on 26 March 20271, During 2021 1,596,415 options
were exercised.

LTIPs awarded in 2017 (including the CSOP)

Awards in 2017 wore made to Mark Pickett (247 678). Thosc awards were granted subject to a time-limit condition and continued
employment. These awards vested on 29 June 2020 and were exercised in Apn| 2021,

Awards in 2017 undor the new CSOP scheme (as part of the 2010 LTIP Plan) can only be excrcised al ter a three-year period and if the share
price is above 80p. The options met the three-year vesting condition on 2 July 2020. Dunng 2021 2,011,386 options were exercised.
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LTIPs awardedin 2016

Awards in 2016, to eligible employees. vest according to = target share price. The amount of awards that will vest will range between
0% and 100% of those granted based on a target share price between 60p end 80p which could be met at any point over a three year
peniod. These awards have now vested. During 2021 160,000 options were exorcised.

Options outstanding during the year arc as follows.

LTIP - nil cost (2 yoars) LTIP - nif cost (3 years) LTIP (inc CSOP) SAYE
Weighted Weighted Weighted Waighted
Number average Number average Number average Number average
of options exercise ofoptions exercise ofoptions exercise ofoptions exercise
thousands price* thousands price” thousands price thousands price
Outstanding at 1 January 20271 1920 £0 05 3769 £006 787H e0.77 1.029 £0.58
Exercised during the year (509) £nns (49) epDbL (4,008) £080 (19) £0h8
Granted duning the year - - 449 £005 - - - -
Lapsed during the year (100) £0.05 (400 £0.05 (1.278) £075 {133) £058
Outstanding at 31 December 2021 1311 £0.05 3.229 £0.05 2639 e073 877 £0 58
Exercisable at 31 December 2021 427 coos 75 £005 SBY O8O - -
Weighted average remaining contractual
life (years) 05 - 05 - 67 - 0b -
Weighted average share price at date of
oxercise - €100 - £100 - £102 - £0.97

* Under Compamies Act 2006 rules a nominal value must be paid10155ue new shares. however under the rules of the L TIP and Matching Share Schemes the Company will
pay the nominal value to the participants as abonus,

Share aptions outstanding at the year-end have the following exercise prices: LTIP: £0.05, C50P £0.80, £0.71 and £0.616 and
SAYE £0.6B2.
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22.Share-based payments continued
The Group has used a Monte-Carle valuation modsl for the | TIPs awarded in 2016 and an adjusted Black-Scholes valuation modet for the
2017,2018.72019 2020 and 2021 LTIP awards {including tha new CSOP plan)and 2019 SAYE n order toincorporate discount factors
into the fair value to reflect the performance conditions of tha LTIP grants. The following table sets out the information abeut how the
fair value of the grants are calculated

Date of grant 28 June 2016 30 June 2017 2July 2017 26 March 2018 22 May 2018 7 June 2019
Type of grant [TIPs LTIPs  LTIPs (inc CSOP) LTIPs {Inc CSOR) LTiPs LTIPs
Share price £0505 £0838 £0.78 £0796 envs eovl
Exercise price £005 005 £080 20796 £0.05 £0 05
Expected dividend vield 0% 0% 0% 1% 1% 157%
Risk-free interost rate 0.14% 0.14% 0.14% 0.14% 0.14% 1.04%
Expected volatility 68% 61% 61% 61% 74% 26%
Term (years) 30 3.0 5.0 50 50 50
Option farr value £0.316 £0748 £0407 £03%4 20664 £061
Expiry date 27June 2026  30June 2027 2July 2027 26 March 2028 22May 2028  06June 2029
No of options 1ssued 3551020 1936361 3535.000 3975.000 590,452 760,663
No of options outstanding 75.000 - 112,675 844169 - 716,662
Date of grant 7June 2019 16Sept2019 1O0ctober2019 7 July 2020 7 July 2020*  28.June 2021
LTiPs (Inc
Type of grant LTIPs (inz CS0P) C30P) SAYE LTIPs LTIPs L11Ps
Share price £071 Nelh £0.647 e0b6 £06R% £0o8
Lxercise price en71 £0616 £0b82 £0.0b £0.05 £0.05
Expected dvidend yiald 157% 179% 179% 212% 212% 2.28%
Risk-free interest rate 1 .04% 1.04% 104% 0A0% 040% 086%
Expected volatility 26% 26% 24% 26% 24% 26%
Term (years) 50 5.0 30 50 20 50
Option fair value fu3e £028 0108 £046 £051 083
Fxpiry date 06Junc 2028 158ept 2029 30 April 2023 06July 2030 30June 2030 28 June 2031
No of optiongissued 2.600.000 300,000 1.116.87% 2,368,143 1,520,000 479551
No of options outstanding 1.381.820 300,000 876,512 1958143 1311000 4795691

*

Thess swards have no market based performance conditinns

The expected term (the penod from grant date to the estimated exercise date) used in the models has been adjusted, based on
management’s best estimate. for the effects of non-transferability, exercise restrictions and behavioural considerations.

Fxpected volatility was determined by calculating the historical volatility of the Group's share price over the term commensurate with
the expected term immadiately prior to the date of grant.
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23. Share capital
2021 2021 2020 2020
number £'000 number £'000
Allotted, called up and fully paid
At beginning of the year 205,698,309 10,285 169579784 9979
lssued during the year 4676064 734 6118526 306
At gnd ol the year 210,374 373 10519 205,698,309 10,285

The Company has one class of Ordinary Shares of Bp eachwhich carry noright to fixedincome.

4,676,064 shares were issued during the year in order to satisfy exercises of share-based payment schemes. The exercise costs of bp,

79 6p and 80p per share for the LTIPs resulted in cashreceipts of £3.2m.

24. Other reserves

Share-based

Capital Merger Own share payment
raserve reasarve reserve resarve Total
£:000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
At 1 January 20520 9h45 11.304 (856) 6.036 26.029
Movement inielation te share-based payment (net) - - - 897 897
At 31 Deceinber 2020 and 1 January 2021 9545 11,304 (8b6) 6,933 26926
Transfer betwoen reserves - - 530 (530 -
Movement in relation to share-based payment {net) - - - 1052 1,082
At 31 December 2021 PASTES 11,304 (326) 7455 27978

The capital ragerve of £8.5m (2020: £9.5m) resulted from a share exchange when Tnbal Group ple was listed n February 20071

The merger reserve of £11.3m (2020: £11.3m) relates to the premium ansing on shares issued subject to the provisions of section
612 of the Companies Act Y006 (previously section 131 of the Companias Act 1985), net of cumulative goedwill impairment of

£587m (2020 £587m) inrespect of related acquisitions deemed to be impaired.

The own share reserve of B{0.3)m (2020 £(0.9)m) represents the cost of 318,692 shares (2020: 827692) in Tnbal Group ple held by
the Cmployes Share Ownership Trust (EBT) to satisfy certain options under the Group's share option schemes, During 2021 509,000

shares wore sold from the EBT to satisfy options granted in 2020 under the LTIP Scheme (see note 22).

The share-based payment reserve represents the reserve arising trorn Lthe application of ITRS 2.
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25.Leases
As alessep
The Group's leases represent land and buildings. Information about leases for which the Group 1s a lessee is presentad below:

Right-of-use assets

2021 2020
2000 £'000
Balance at 1 January 3342 4110
Additions to nght-of-use assets 445 268
Deprecialion charge for year (5985) (1,059)
Disposals during the year (439) (76)
Exchange differences (54) 65
Balance at 31 Decomber 2309 3342
Lease liabilities
2021 2020
Maturity analysis £'000 £'000
Less than ong year 931 1.0%6
One to five years 1,301 2,367
More than five years 215 279
Total undiscounted leass liabilities at 31 December 2447 3732
Current 8BY8 1.020
Non-current 1449 2551
Lease liabilities included in the consolidated balance sheet at 31 December 2327 35671
2021 2020
£'000 £'000
Balance at 1 January 3571 4219
Additions 262 449
Lease payments (986) (580)
interest expense {100) {112}
Misposals dunng the year 455) (©9)
Exchange differences 34 64
Balance at 31 December 2,327 3571
2021 2020
£000 £'000
Amounts recognised in the consolidated income statement
Interest onlease hablines 100 123
Interest received on leasad asssts (&) (8)
Depreciation onright-of-use assets 985 1089
['xpensesrelating to short term lsases b 43
Expensestelating to leasas of low-value assets 25 34
11568 1.2653
Amounts racognised in the consolidated cash flow statement
Interest 100 112
Principal GRY 980

Total cash outflow for leases 1.087 1.062
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[he Croup has lcase contracts for office properties invanious countrias that the Group operates in. Leases of office proparties
generally have lease terms between two and ten years. The Group's abligations under sts leases are secured by the lessor's title to
the leasehold properties. The Group has several lease contracts that nclude exlension and termination cptions. These options are
negotiated by management to provide flexibility in managing the leased-asset portfolio and align with the Group's business needs.
Managsment exercises judgement in determining whether these extension and termination options are reasonably certain to be
exercised. As at 31 December 2021, management does not intend to exercise termination options (i.e., break clauses)in the existing
leases. Total lease payments of £31,000 (2020 £32,000) were potentially avoidable had the Group exercised break clauses at the
earliest opportunity.

The Group also has certain leases of office properties with lzase terms of 12 months or less and leases of vehicles and office
equipment with low value. The Group applies the ‘short-term lease’ and 'lease of low-value assets recognition exemptions for
these leases.

Lease payments tar some property leases are subject Lo annual fixed mcrease. The totallease payments subject Lo annual fixed
increase are £406 000(2020 £397.000) compared to total lsase payments of £1,087000{2020 £1.092,000}

As alessor
Lease income from lzase contracts mwhich the Group acls as a lessor 1s as balow:
2021 2020
£'000 £'000
Finance income on the net nvastment in the lease 52 b2

During 2021 the Group sub-leased an of fice bullding and classified the sub-lease as afinance lease inDecember 2021 the tenant
exercised thair right to break the sub-lease.

2021 2020
Maturity analysis £'000 £'000
Less than one year - b2
One to five yearg - 182
Total undiscounted lease payments racsivable at 31 December - 234
Current - 46
Non-curient - 174
Net investment in the leasa at 31 December - 220

26. Retirement benefit schemes

The Group nperates a number of defined contribution and defined benefil pension schemes within individual subsidiaries and
contributes to certain employees’ personal pension plans. The pension charge for the year ended 31 December 2021 was £2.0m
(2020.£1.7m), of which £2 0m (2020. £1.7m) related to defined contribution schemes and £nil {2020 Cnil) to defined benefit schemes.
Contributions amounting to £0Am (2020: £0.3m) were payable to the funds at the year end and are included in current labilities.

Defined benefit schermes

At 31 December 2021, the Group operated two defined benefit pension schemes for the benefit of certain deferred employees of its
subsidiaries in the UK. These schemes are administered by separate tunds that are legally sepsarated from the Company. The trustees of
the pension funds are required by law to act n the interest of the funds and of all relevant stakehalders in the schemes. The trustees of
the pension funds are responsible for the investment policy withregard to the assets of the funds.

Scheme 1 - the Prudential Platinum Pension Fund

Tribal Education Limited, a Group subsidiary, participates in the Prudential Platinum Pension Fundg (PPF), which 1s a detined
benefit arrangement. The last full actuarial valuation of this schame was carnied out by a gualified independent actuary as at
31 December 2018,

The Tribal Education section of the Prudential Platinum Pension Fund had five deferred members at the year-end. The weighted average
duration of the Defined Benefit Obligation is 31 years (2020, 32 years). Employer contributions amounting to £52,000 were paid in the
year ended 31 December 20271 (2020: £63.000). The accounting figures have been calculated using the valuation as at 31 December
2018. updated cn an approximate basis to 31 December 2021 by a qualified independent actuary.
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26. Retirement benefit schemes continued
Scheme 2 - the Federated Pension Plan

Tribal Education Limited, a Group subsidiary. participates in the Federated Pension Plan (FPF). whichis a defined benefit arrangement.
The Ofsted empioyees wore transferred back to Ofsted in March 2017 and Lhe plan closed to tuture accrual. The last full actuarial

valuaticn of this scheme was carned out by a qualifed independent actuary as at b April 2018

The Tribal Education section of the Federated Pension Plan had 80 deferred members and 81 pensioners/dependents at the year-end.
The weighted average duration of the Defined Benefit Obligation s 23 years (2020: 23 years). Employer contnbutions amounting to £nil
were paidin the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020 £nil). The accounting figures have been calculated using the valuation as at

5 April 2018, updated on an approximate basis to 31 December 2021 by a qualified independent actuary.

The schemes are exposed to 2 number of risks, ncluding:

« Investment nsk- movemant of discount rate used aganst the return from plans:
= Interestrate risk decreasas/increases in tha discount rale used will increasce/decrease the defined benefit abligation; and
= Longevilyrisk changes nthe estimation of the mortality rates of current and former employees.

= Theagsets of the funds have been taken at market value and the actuarial assumptions used to calculate scheme habilites under
1519 Employee Benefits” for both schemes are:

2021 2020
%o per annum % per annum
Inflation 250-350 210-3.30
Salary Increases N -
Rate of discount 18 14
Pensioninpaymant ncreases 250-850 210-3.30
The selary increase assumptionis nil ag both the FPP and PPP only have deferred members.
The mortality assumptions adopted at 31 December 2021 imply the following ife expectations:
Males Females
Aged&0in 2021 868 889
Aged 60in 2041 884 8056
The mortality assumptions adopted st 31 December 2020 imply the following life expectations
Males Females
Aged 6002020 867 8388
Aged 6010 2040 883 904
The anzlysis of the schermes’ assets at the bafence sheet date was as follows
2021 2020
£000 £'000
Fquities 5569 5,240
Corporate Bonds 2969 2790
Cilts i78 158
Cash 34 79
Total farr value of scheme assets 8790 8.267

Allequities and corporate bonds are quoted on active markets,

The sensitivities regarding the principal assumptions used to measgure the schemes' liabilities are set out below:
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Assumption Change in assumption Impact on scheme [abilities
Discountrate Increase by 05% Decrease by 13%
Rate of inflation Increase by 0b% Increase by 11%
Rate of mortalty Increase by one year Increase by 2%

The above sensitivity analyses are based on a change in an assumption while helding zll other assumptions conslant. o practice, this
15 unlikely to oceur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated When caleulating the sensitivity of the defined benefit
obligation to significant actuarial assumptions the same method (present value of the defined benefit obligation calculated with the
projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period} has been applied as when calculating the pension liability recognised
within tho statoment of financial position.

[he mathods and types of assumptions used in prepanng the sensitivity analysis did not change compared to the previous period.

The amount included in the balance sheet arising from the Group's obligation inrespect of iLs defined benefit schemes is as tollows:

2021 2020
£'000 £000
Prasont value of defined benefit abligations (5,005) (9.275)
Fair value of scheme assets 8,760 8.267
Deticit in schemes {216) (958)
Liability recognised in the balance sheaat {21%) (9B8)
Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of the fair value of scheme agsets.
2021 2020
£000 £'000
Fair value of scheme assets at beginning of year 8267 7745
Expectedreturn on assets 116 146
Actuarial gains due to investment returns dif ferent froim the return implied by the discount rate 503 493
Contributions by employer 52 53
Benefits paid (124) (147)
Administration expenses 23 (23)
Fair value of scheme assets at end of year 8790 8267
Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of the presont value of the defined benefit obligations.
2021 2020
£000 £'000
Defined berefit obligation at beginning of year 5225 8285
Interest cost 129 156
Actuanal gain - experience 10 (6)
Actuanalloss - demographic assumptions 3U 26
Actuanalloss - financial agsumptions (265) s08
Benefits paid (124) (147)
Defined benefit cbligation at end of year 9005 92726

The Croup's contribution rete lor 2021 and 2020 tor the Prudential Platinum Fund and for the Federated Pensicn Plan was 0%

The Group expects to make contributions of £52.000 to the detined benefit schemes during the next fimancial year.
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26. Retiroment benefit schemes continued

Analysis of amounts recognised in the consolidated income statement for the defined benefit schemes is as follows:

2021 2020

£'000 £:000
Administration expenses 23 23
Recoyised inuniving st opsrating profit 23 283
Other finance costs/lincome)
Intarest on pension scheme liabilities 129 156
Expected return on pension scheme assets (115) (1486)
Net finance exponse 14 10
Total charge to income statement 37 33
Analysis ot actuarial gains and losses in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income:

2021 2020

£'000 £'000
Actual return less expected return on pension scheme assets 503 493
Experience gains and losses arising on the scheme liabilities (1 6
Changes in assumptions underlying the present valus of scheme liabilities 236 (937)
Total actuarial gainsf{losses) recognised in the conscelidated statement of comprehensive income 728 (438)

Cumulative actuarial losses in the year to 31 December 2021 recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
since 1 April 2004 are £166,000 (In the year Lo 31 December 2020 cumulalive losses of £893,000). The history of experience

adjustments is as follows:

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
£'000 £'000 £000 £000 £'000
Present value of deflined benefit obhigations (9.006) (9226) (8.2856) (7848) (12731)
Fair value of scheme assets 8'/90 8267 7745 6,846 11,013
Deficit n the scheme (215) (958) (540} (1,002} (1.718)
Experience adjustments ansing on scheme agsets.
Amount b03 493 812 (663) 484
Percentage of the scheme assets 6% 6% 10% (9%) 4%,
Experience adjustments ansing on scheme
liabilities.
Amount (10 6 780 98 118
Percentage of the present value of the scheme
liabilities - - 5% 1% 1%

No assets are investad in the Group's own financial nstruments. properties or other assets used by the Group.
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2021 2020
£'000 £'000
Operating profit rom continuing operations B.868 9108
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 650 734
Depreciation of nght-of-use assets 986 1,069
Amortisation and impairment of other mtangible assets 1980 2289
Share-based payrments 1078 1.339
Movement in contingent deferred consideration (67) (815)
Rescarch and development tax credit (204) (214)
Net pension credit (29) {30}
Other non-cash items 874 bh2
Operating cash flows before movements inworking capital 14155 14,022
Increase inreceivables 13093 (2BB)
Increase/{decrease) in payables 4472 (7.461)
Net cash from operating activities before tax 15534 6306
Net tax paid (1645) (845)
Net cash from operating activities 13889 5461
Net cash from operating activities before tax can be analysed as follows
2021 2020
£'000 £'000
Continuing operations 165534 6,306
2B. Analysis of net cash
2021 2020
£'000 £'000
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 17) 5924 5520
Net cash 5,924 5520
2021 2020
Analysis of changes in net cash £°000 £'000
Opening net cash 9620 16463
Net decreass in cash and cash eguivalents (3.430) (6.976)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes (166) 33
Closing net cash 5524 9520
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29. Contingent liabilities

The Company and its subsidiaries have provided performance guarantees issued by its banks onits behalf, in the ordinary course of
business, totaling £1.2m [2020: £0.1m). These are not expected to result inany material financial loss and the likelihood of uging these
quarantees is assessed as remote.

As disclosedin Note 33, Tnbal Holdings Lirmited, Tribal Dynamics Limited , Tnibat Dynarmics Holdings Limited, Semestry Limited and
International Graduate Insight Group Limited have taken advantage of the exemption available under Section 394A/4794A of the
Companies Act 006 mrespect of tho requirements [waudil. As a condition of the exemption, the Company has guarantead the
year-end Labilities of these subsidianes unti they are settled in full. The liabilities of the subsidiaries at the year-end were £60736.000
(2020, 046027000}, These aie inclusive ol ntercompany lisbiities.

30. Financial instruments
Capital risk management

The Group manages its capital to ensure the entities in the Group will be able to continue as going concern, while maximising the return
to stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The capital structure of the Group consists of cash and cash
equivalents (sec Note 17) and aquity attributable to equity holders of the parent. comprising 1ssued capital. reserves and retained
earnings as disclosed in congolidated statement of changes in equity and Notes 23 and 24,

Gearing ratio
The gearing ratio at the year-end is as follows:

2021 2020
£'000 £°000
Net cash 5924 5520
Equity 46,340 38,218
MNet cash to aguity ratio 12.8% 24 9%

Significant accounting policies

Details of the significant aceounting policies and methods adopted, including the entenia for recegnition. the basis of measurement
and the basis on which income and expensas are recognised, inrespect of each class of linancial asset, financial fabifity and equity
nstrument are disclosedn Note 1 to the financial statements.

Categories of financial instruments

The Directors consider that the book value of the financial assets and liabilities 15 equal to their fair value.

Financial Financial Financial
assets Liabilities Liabilities
measured at measured at measured
amortised cost amortised cost at FVTPL Total
31 December 2021 £'000 £'000 £'000 £000
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 5524 - - 5524
Trade recevables and other recoivables” 6136 - - 6,135
12.0569 - - 12059
Financial liabilities
Trade payables and other payables™ - 1.576 - 1576
Accruals - 8253 - 9263
Delerred contingent consideration - - 1.083 1.083

- 10829 1,083 11912
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Financial Financial Financial
assets Liabilities Liabilities
measured at measured at measured
amortised cost amortised cost at FVTPL Total
31 December 2020 £'000 £'000 £000 £'000
Financial assets
Cashand cash equivalents 9520 - - 9520
Tiade recevables and other recaivables® 7883 - - 7883
17403 - - 17403
Financial liabilities
Trade payables and othor payables** - 2138 - 2138
Acoruals - 7480 - 7480
Deferred contingsnt consideration - - 1352 1.392
- 5618 1,362 11,010
* Cxcluding amonnts thatrelate to nen-Ninancalinstrumoents of tax, piepayments and contiact assoeta
Excluding amounts that relate to non financiabingtruments of tax
The above tsbles have becn stated at undiscounted values with the exception of the 2021 and 2020 contingent deferred
consideration amounts. The undiscounted value of the contingent deferred consideration is £1,267.000 (2020: £1,476,000)
versus adiscounted value of £1,083,000(2020: £1,352.000).
In addition the Group's linancial liabilities held at farr value. are categorised by the following valuation methedology.
»  tevell fair value derived from quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or llabifities
* devel? fairvalue derived from observable inputs other than quoted prices inciuded inLevel 1
= lavel3 far value derived from inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data
Levell Level 2 Level 3 Total
31 Dacember 2021 £'000 £°000 2000 £°000
Financial liabilities at fair value
Defetred contingent consideration - - 1083 1.083
- - 1,083 1,083
Levell Level 2 Level 3 Total
31Dacember 2020 £°000 £000 £'000 £'000
Financial liabilities at fair value
Deferred contingent consideration - - 1392 1392
- - 1352 1362

Fer the movement in deferred contingent consideration please refer to note 20

There ara no financial assets hald at fair valug (2020 £ni).
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30. Financial instruments continued

Financial risk management objectives

Treasury management 1s led by the Group finance team, which 18 responsible for managing the Group's exposure to financial risk.

It operates within a defined set of policies and procedures reviewed and approved by the Board. This includes both foreign exchange
risk and interest rate risk. The Group's exposure to interest rate fluctuations onils interest-bearing assets and liabilities is selectively
managed, using Interest rate swaps where appropriate. This rs an ongong nsk and the Board will continug with this policy. The Group
does not enfer into or trads financial instruments, including denvative financialinstruments, for speculative purpuses. No interest rate
swAps were inplace at 31 Deveniber 2021 (2020 none).

Market risk

As the Group's iInternational activities grow, its exposure Lo overseas markets also increases in nen-core Lerritories cutside of the UK
and Austratasia. There have been no other significant changses Lo the Group's exposure to market risk, or the manner inwhich it manages
and measures the risk.

Foreign curreney risk management

The Group undertakes anncieasing number of transactions denominated in foreign currencies Hers, exposures to exchange rate
fluctuations arise. Fxchange rate exposures are managed within approved policy parameters and the Group enters into forward foreign
exchange contracts where appropriate. No forward contracts were in place at 31 December 2021 (2020: none).

The carrying amounts of the Group's foreign currency denominated monetary assets and monetary abilities at the reporting date are
as follows:

Assets Liabilities

31December 2021  31December 2020 31 December2021 31 December 2020

£'000 £000 £'000 £°000

Luros 333 163 1 8]
Australan dollsr 2051 4666 13 -
Urited States dollar 1212 hi2 262 149
Saudi Arabian nyal 89 838 - -
South African rand - 84 - -
New Zealand dollar 671 1.008 - 2
Canadiandollar 78 722 - 2
Philippine peso 185 256 - 1
United Arab Frmirates dirham 931 265 - -
Malaysian ringgit 424 479 - -
Bahrain dinar 207 350 - 8
Singapore dollar G726 19 1515 -
7107 B.672 331 168

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis

The Group is primarily exposed to the following currencies: US dollar, euro, Australian dollar, New Zealand dollar, Singapore dollar,
Canadian dollar, United Arab Emirates dirtham, Philippine pese, Bahraini dinar and Malaysian ringgit.

If sterling were to strengthen or weaken by 10% against the relevant foreign currencies. the balances in the table above would give rise
to enincreasefreduction in profit of £738,000 (2020, £847.000). This sensilivity analysis includes only outstanding toreign currency
denominated monetary items and adjusts their translation al the penod-end for a L0% change in foreign currency rates.

10% reprasents management's assessment of the reasonably pessible change in foreign exchange rates.
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Interest rate risk management

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk because entities hold cash deposits. Hedging activities are evaluated regularly to align with
interest rate views and defined nsk appetite, ensuring the most cost-effective hedging strategies are apphed. There are no hedges in
place as at 31 December 2021 (2020 nil).

The Broup's exposure to nterest rates on financial assets and financial habilities are detailed In the liquidity risk management section of
this note.

Credit risk management

The Group's principal financial assets are cash and cash equivalents and trade and other receivables. The Group's credit nisk is relatively
low because a high propartion of trade and other receivables have a sovereign or close to sovereignrating. Of the total trade receivables
balance at the end of the year there were three customers (2020 nil) who held balances outstanding of more than 5% (2021 £1.2m;
2020: £nil).

Trade receivables and contract assets
The Group applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance
for all trade receivables and contiact assets.

To measure the expected credit losses, trade roceivables and contract assets have been grouped based on shared credit rigk
charactoeristics and the days past due. The contract assets relate to unbillad wark in progress and have substantially the same risk
characteristics as the trade receivables for the same type of contracts. The Croup has therefore concluded that the expected loss
rates for trade recaivables are a raasonable approximation of the loss rates for the contract assets.

The expected loss rates are based on the payment profiles of sales over a period of 36 months before 31 December 2021 or

31 December 2020 1espectively and Lhe corresponding histoncal credit losses experienced within this period. The histoncal loss rates
are adjusted to reflect cunent and forward-inoking infurmation affecting the ability of the customers to settle the recevables Inthe
absence of any seasonality to the business, 2% increase in defaults was considered appropriate and supportable as the risk of credit
lossesis relatively low.

Before applyng the expected loss rate percentage to each respective ageing category of trade recewvabies an aggessment of specific
customers has occurred and these amourits have baen excluded from the general loss allowance. The expected credit loss for these
customers i separately assessed (using the same logic as above) and relates to customers where the probability of default is higher.

On that basis, the loss allowance as at 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020 was delarmined as follows for both trade
receivables and conlract agsets:

31 Decoember 2021 £'000 Current 30-60 61-20 91-180 180+ Total
Expected loss rate 1% 8%, 33% 16% 36%

Trade receivables 5024 241 123 134 107 5,625
Contract assets 7373 - - - - 7373
General loss allowanco 68 15 41 21 38 187
31 December 2020 £'000 Current 30-60 61-90 91-18BD 180+ Total
Expected loss rate 1% 4% 5% 7% 26%

Trade receivables 566G 760 206 801 266 7701
Contract assets 3973 - - - - 3573
Generalloss allowance 6/ 26 13 5h &7 231

The expected credit losses on trade recevatles and contract assets have been caloulated using the simplified approach,
Araconcilistion of closing loss allowances for trade receivables and contract assets as at 31 December 2021 to the opening loss
allowances is inNote 16.

Impairment losses on trade receivables and contract assets are presented as net impairment losses within operating profit.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited aganst the same Iine item.



Tribal Group plc Annual Report & Accounts 2021
Sirategic Report

116 GCovernance
Financial Statements

Notes to the Financial Statements continued

30. Financial instruments continuad
Other financial assets at amortised cost

Other financial assets at amortised cost include, loans to related parties and key management personnel and other recevables.
The loss allowance for other tinancial assets at amortised cost as at 31 Docember 2021 was €nil (2020 £nil).

Contract risk management
Contract assets inherently have some contractual risks agsociated with them related to the speailic and ongoing nisks in each individual
contract with a customer.

Liquidity risk management

The Group manages liquidity nsk by maintaining adequate cash reserves and banking facilities, and by continuiously monitoring
forecast and actual cash flows. The Group has access to committed financing facilities; being a short-term UK overdraft facility of
£2 0 and a short-term AUS overdraft facility of $2 Om. The total unused amount was £2.0m and $2 0m at the balance sheet date
and no interest is being incurred on this balance (2020 £nil). The Group expects to meet its cbligations from operating cash flows.
The Group also had cash balances at 31 December 20271 of £6.9m (2020 £5.5m) as detailed inNote 17 Interest s received on this at
applicable bank rates.

On 21 January 2020 Lhe Group entered into a three-year £10m mult-currency revolving facility with HSBC with the option to extend to
a further two years. The first aplion Lo extend was approved by HSBC on 15 March 2021, the second extension was approved by HSBC
on s January 2022, effective 21 January 2022, The loanwas Tully drawn down in 20271 and repaid in Tull before 31 Decermber 2021
The facility was put in place to cover general corporate and warking capital requirements of the Group.

31. Related party disclosures
Transactions between the Cormpany and its subsidiaries. which are related partias, have beeneliminated on consoelidation and are not
disclosed in this note.

On 28 June 2021, Tribal Group pl; (the Company) granted ni-cost options over a total of 479,591 Ordinary Shares (representing

approximately 0.20% of the Company’s 1ssued shares) to Mark Pickett (275 5100 and Dianc Mcintyre (204,081} under the terms of
its 2010 Long-Term Incentive Plan This award has been granted subject to performance conditions based on the Group's Adjusted
Operating Profit for the years ending 31 Decembor 2021, 2022 and 2023. The options may not be exercised before 28 June 2024.

The romuneration of the key management personnel of Lthe Group is set out below in aggregate for each of the categories specified
in IAS 24 'Related Party Disclosures’. The members of the Group Board and the Group's Executive Board are considered to be the key
management parsonnel of the Group.

Remuneration of key management personnel

202t 2020
£'000 £'000
Salaries and short-term employee berefits 2524 2,874
Termination benefits 26 70
Share-based payments 32 901
3.282 38456

Includsd within Directurs’ salaries and short-term employee benefits are pension costs of £26,000(2020 £26,000) inrespect of
accruals and payments made to one (2020: one) Director's individual defined contribution pension schemes. Included within share-
based payments are amaunts paid on dividends on share options that have met performance conditions. Disclosures on Directors’
remuneration, share options, long-termincentive schemes, and pension contributions are containedin the Directors’ remuneration
section within the audited part of the Remuneration report on peges 51 1o 55 and torm part of these audited financial statements.
Arrangements with the Group's pension schemes are set out in Note 256,
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32. Acquisition of subsidiary

On'1 April 27021, Trbal Group ple acquired 71 25% of the issued share capital of Semestry Limited (Semestry), 2 company incorporated
in the UK that is a leading supplier of cloud based scheduling and timetabling software to the higher education market On 4 May 2021,
the Group acquired the remaining 28 75 %.

The Acauisition expands Tribal’s praduct portfolio, adding Scheduling and Timatabling capability to the Group’s Tribal Edge ecosystem of
Higher Education solutions; this provides additional upsell opportunity to the Group's existing and new customers as well as cross-sell
opporfunities for [ribal's oxisting apphcations mlo Semestry’s existing customer base.

This transaction has been accounted for by the acquisition method of accounting. This comprises aninitial cash consideration of
£4.bmand g defened contingent cash consideration of €1.5m (the discounted figure at acauisition being €1 1m) which is payable on
the annual recurning revenue (ARR) growth of the acquired business. As per the Sale and Purchase agreement, deferred contingent
consideration can be satisfied over a two ysar pencd from completion. The first payment of £854 000 was made in October 2021 after
review of the ARR growth in the period to September 20271

The carrying amount of each class of Semestry Limited's assets before combination 1s set out below

Fair value Acquisition Provisional
Book value adjustments adjustments fair valus
£'000 £000 £'000 £'000
Intangible agsets 871 - 2.874 3745
langible assets 14 (14) - -
Trade and athar recavabies 3687 46 - 403
Cashand cash equivalents 317 - - 317
irade and cther payables (173 (62) - (225)
Contract liabilities (466} - - (466)
Deferred Lax liabilities - - (546) (bas)
Net assets/(habilities) acquired 920 (20) 2,328 3.228
Goodwill arising on acquisition 2.383
Consideration - Satisfied by
Initial cash consideration 4466
Defarrad contingent consideration 1145
5611

The initial consideralion paid to Semestry was salished through existing cash balances. The acquisition led to & net cash out-flow taking
into account the cash acquired of £4,149 000.

Intangible assets ansing onacquisition are inrespeact of customer relationships and contracts £1.0m and software £1.9m, together
with £0.9m of assets that relate to the net book value of the capitalised development costs of the Semestry product.

The goodwiil ansing on acquisition s attributable to synergres, the assemblod workforee, and potential relationships.

Sermestry Limited contnbuted revenue of £1.1m and operating profit of £0.7m to the Group for the period between the date of
acquisition and the balance sheet date. Acquisition related costs amounted to £0.7m and have been expensed through the mcome
statement.

Had the actymsition occurred on 1 January 2021, the Group's revenue would have increased by £0.3m and its operating prehit increased
by £0.1rm.

Tribal Group incorporated a Dutch legal enfity on 14 September 2021 (Semestry Netherlands BY) for the purpose of acquiring the
assets and business of Fvech BY on 1 Dotober 2021, Fvech BY 1s a supplier of cloud timetabling software to the higher education
market. The software allows institutions to publish persenalised student and staff timetables, via the web or their mobile device and is
currently In use at more than forty institutions in Furope and the UK.

The software will be integrated with the recently acquired Semestry timetabling and scheduling solutions and will be applicable across
Tribal's axtensive customer base, as unvarsities soek Lo increase engagemant with their students and of fer more personalised
expernences.
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32. Acquisition of subsidiary cortiind

The transaction has been accounted for by the acquisition method of accounting. This comprises an initial cesh consideration of £0.1m
and a deferred contingent cash consideration of £0.7m (the discounted figurs at acquisition being £05m) which is payable on the
annual recurring revenus (ARR) growth of the acqured business. Deferred contingent consideration is expected to be satisfied in 2021

and 2022

The carrying amount of eech class of Fveoh BY assets hefore combination 1o sot out below

Fair value Acquisition Provisional
Bookvalue adjustments  adjustments fair value
£000 £000 £'000 £'000
Intangible assets - - 720 720
Tangible assets 9 9 - -
Trade and other payables (17} - (17)
Contract habilities (126} - - (126)
Deterred tax habilties - - {197) {197)
Net assets/{lishilities) acquired (117 (26) 523 380
Goodwill ansing on acguisition 160
Consideration - Satisfied by
Initial cash consideration 46
Deferred contingent consideration 494
540

The initial consideration paid was satisfied through existing cash balances. The scguisttion led to a net cash out-flow.

Intangible assets arising on acquisition are in respect of customer relationships and contracts £298,000 and software £422,000.

The goodwill arising on acquisition s attnbutable to synargies, the assembled workforce, and potential relationships.

Semestry Netherlands BV contributed revenue of £74,000 and operating loss of £25.000 to the Group for the period between the
date of acquisition and the balance sheet date. Acouisition related costs amounted to £145,000 and have been cxpensed through

the income statement.

33.Subsidiaries

The Group consists of a Parent Company (lmited by shares) Inbal Group ple, Incorporated and domiciled in England and Wales
and a number of subsidianes held directly and indirectly by Tribal Group ple, which operate and are incorporated arcund Lhe world.
Tribal Education Limited operates branches in New Zealand, Hungary, and Abu Bhabi. fribal Group Pty Limited operates a branch out

of Singapore.

Tribal Group plc has guaranteed the liabilities of Tribal Holdings Limited. Tnbal Dynamics Limited, Tribal Dynamics Holdings Lim ted,
Semestry Limited and International Graduate Insight Group Limited in order that they qualify for the exemption from audit under
Section 354A/479A of the Companies Act 2006 inrespect of the year ended 31 Decembar 2021
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Information about the composition of the Group al the end of the reporting period is as follows,

Proportion Proportion
of Ordinary  of Ordinary
Shares held Shares
directlyby  held by the
Name of entity Address of the registered office Nature of business Parent (%) Group (%)
Tribal Education Kings Orchard. 1 Queen Street, Bristol, BS? OHQ. UK Educationrelated systems T00% 100%
[ imited and solutions
Inbal Holdings Limited  Kings Orchard. 1 Queen Street, Bristol, BS2 OHO. UK IP holding Company 100% 100%
international Graduate  Kings Orchard. 1 Queen Street, Bristol, BS2 OHO, UK Mducational consultancy - 100%
insight Group Limited SBIVICeS
Tribal Dynamics Limited  Kings Orchard, 1 Queen Street, Bristol, B52 OHQ, UK Education related systems - 100%
and solutions
Tribal Dynamics Kings Orchard. 1 Queen Street, Bristol, BS2 DHQ. UK Dormant Company 100% 100%
Holdings Limited
Semastry Limited Netherdale Industrial Estale. Galashels. TD1 3EY. UK Educationrelated systoms 100% 100%
and solutions
Semestry Netherlands  Lulotsstraat 55, Unit 39, The Hague, NL Educationrelated systems 100% 100%
Bv and solutions
Human tdge Software  West 7-8 Federal Mills Park, 3-35 Mackey Street, Geelong, Educationrelated systems - 100%
Corporation PTY North Victoria, 3215, Australia and solutions
Limited
Tribal Campus Wast 7-8 Federal Mills Park, 3-35 Mackey Street, Geelong, Education related systems - 100%
PTY Limited North Victoria, 3215, Australia and solutions
Tnbal Group West 7-8 Federal Mills Park, 3-3b Mackey Streel, Geelong, Educationrelated systems - 100%
PTY Limited North Victoria, 3215, Australia and solutions
Callista Software West 7-8 Federal Mills Park, 3-35 Mackey Street, Geelong. Educationrelated systems - 100%
Services PTY limited  North Victona, 3215, Australia and solutions
Tribal Middle East Municipality 3467 Building 1398, Road 4626 Area 346, 30a  Educationrelated systems 100% 100%
WLL Limited Front, Manama. Kingdom of Bahran and solutions
Tribal Group 12th floor, Menara Symphony, No 5. Jalan Professol Educationrelated systems - 100%
(Malaysia) SDN Khoo Kay Kim, Seksyen 13, 46200 Petaling Jaya, and solutions
Selanger Darul Fhsan, Malaysia
Tribal Systems 1750-1755 West Georgia Slreet, POBox 11126, Vancouver,  Educationrelated systems - 100%
Canada Limited BCVBE 3PE, Canada and solutions
Human Edge Software  Units 1001,1008,1006, 10th floer Cyberpod One, Eton Educationrelated systems - 100%
Philippines INC Centns, Barangay Pinahan, Quezon City. Philippines 1100 and solutions
Clags Measuie Inc 100 Tower Park Drive, Sute A, Wobur MA D801, USA Educational - 100%
consultancy services
Class Measures Kings Orchard, 1 Queen Street, Bristol, B52 UHO, UK Dormant Company - 100%
Limited
Tribal Group Asset West 7-8 Federal Mills Park, 3-3b Mackey Street, Geelong, Dormant Company - 100%
Co Pty Limited North Victoria, 3271h, Australia

34. Post balance sheet events
On 27 January 2020 the Group entered into a three-year £10m mulii-currency revalving facility with HSBC with the option to extend to
afurther two years. The first option to extend was approved by H3BC on 16 March 2021, the second extension was approved by HSBC
on B January 2022, effective 21 January 2022 The loan was fully drawn down in 2021 and repaid in fullbefore 31 December 2021.

The facility was put In place to cover general corporate and working capital requirements of the Gioup.
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As at 31 December 2021

2021 2020

Note £'000 £'000
Fixed
Investments 37 B4762 197774
Right of use assets 169 -
Total fixed assets £4.03] 75774
Current assets
Debtors 38 7705 6732
Deferred tax assets 39 1279 878
Cash at bank and in hand o 23
Total current assets 8989 7633
Total assets 93520 85407
Creditors: amounts [alling due within one year 40 (43 534) (35,76}
Net current liabifities (34564E) (28,134)
Total assets less current liabilities 50,3826 49640
Creditors: amounts falling due after one ysar 40 (108) -
Net assets 50,278 46640
Capital and reserves
Called up share captal 41 105619 10,285
Share premium 47 18961 16961
Merger reserve 42 11304 11.304
Own share reserva 42 (326) 856)
Share-based payment resarve 42 7455 £933
Refained earmnggs
At 1 January 49 6,023 59145
Loss for the year attributable to the owners 42 (1.230) (G19
Fousty dividend paid 42 {2606) (2,764)
Other changes inretained sarnings 42 77 51
At 31 December 42 2365 6,023
Equity shareholders’ funds h0.278 49640

Notes 85 to 4b form part of these financial statements.

The financial statements on pages 120 to 126 of Tribal Group plo (1egistered number 04128860} were approved by the Board of

Directors and authorised for issue on 16 March 20272, They were signed on its behalf by:

N Mt

Richard Last Mark Pickett
Director Director
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Share-
Called based
up share Share  Merger Ownshare  payment  Retained Total
capital premium  reserve reserve reserve earnings squity
Note £'000 £:000 £°000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £:000
At 1 January 2020 9979 15539 11304 (BLE} 6,036 5145 51147
Loss and total comprehensive expense
tor the year - - - - - (919) (916}
Issue of share capital 23 239 - - - - _ 239
Share options exercised 67 412 - - {479) - -
Equity dividend pard 11 - - - - - (2254) (2.254)
Credit to equity for share-based payments 22 - - - - 1.339 - 1,339
Foreign exchange differences on
share-based payments 22 - - - - 37 - 37
lax oncredit to equity for
share-based payments - - - - - bl 51
Contributiens by and distributiens to owners 306 412 - - BY7 (2.203) (588)
Ar 1 January 2027 10285 15951 11304 (856) 6933 6023 48640
Loss and total comprehensive expense
for the year - - - - - (12300  (1.230)
Issue of share capital 23 234 3010 - - - - 3244
Share options exercised - - - 530 (B30} - -
Cquity dvidend paid 11 - - - - - (2b05) (2,605}
Credit to equity for share-based payments 22 - - - - 1.078 - 1.078
Foreign exchange dif ferencas on
share-based payments 22 - - - - (26} - {26)
Tax onicredit to equity for
share-based payments . - - _ _ 77 77
Contributions by and distributions to ewnors 234 3.010 - 530 522 (2.428) 1,868
At 31 December 2021 10815 18961 11304 (326) 7455 2365 BG278
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35. Significant accounting policies
Tribal Group pleis & public imited company incorporated and domiciled in England and Wales.

The separate financial statements of the Company are presented as required by the Companies Act 2006, The Company meets
the definition of a qualifying entity under FRS 100 (Financial Reporting Standard 200 issued by the Financial Reporting Council.

Ag permitted by FR3 101, the Company has taken advantage of the disclosure oxomptions avallable under that standard in relation
to share-based payment. financialinstruments. capital maragemsnt, presentation of comparative information in raspact nf crrtain
assets, presentation of a cash flow statement and certainrelated party transactions.

Where required, equivalent disclosures are given in the consaolidated financial statements.

The financial information has been prepared on the going concern and historical cost basis. The principal accounting policies adoptad
are the same as those setout in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements excapt as noted below.

Investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less, where appropriate, provisions for impairment.

36. Loss for the year

As permitted by section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, the Company has elected not to present its own profit and loss account for
the year. The loss for the Company (before dividends paid} amounted to £1.2m (2020: £0.9m). Dividends paid amounted to £2,505,000
(2020 £2,264,000). The independent auditors’ remuneration for audit services to the Company was £161,000 (2020 £150.000).

37. Investments

Shares in subsidiary Long-term

undertakings loans Total
£'000 £'000 £000

Jost
At 1 January 2020 22687 54 218 76.530
Capital contribution relaling to share-based payments 626 - 626
Additionalinvestment in subsidiary 218 - 218
At 31 December 2020 and at 1 January 2021 235626 54 218 77774
Capital contnbutionrelating to share-hased payments 741 - 741
Acquisition of subsidiary ' 6.151 - 6.151
Additional investment insubsidiary 96 - 96
At 31 December 2021 30514 54,248 84,762

Long-termloans are treated as investments as they are non repayable.

As Tribal Group ple grants share options to employees in subaidiary companies, a notional capital contribution is created in the books of
the relevant subsidiary undertaking. [his is treated as an investmeant by Inbal Group ple.

The Directors have considered the value of the above investments and are satistied that the aggregate value of each investment is not
less thanits carrying velue. The investments in subsidiaries are all stated at cost leas provision.

Details of the Cormpany's subsidiaries are given in Note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.
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38. Dabtors
2021 2020
E'G00 £000
Amounts owed by Group undertakings 7A72 6.449
Other debtors 233 180
Current tax - 103
7706 6732

Allamounts nwed by Group undertakings are unsecured and have no fixed repayment date. No nterest is charged and amounts are
repayable ondemand. All debtors fall due within one year

The Company has applied the IFRS 9 simplilied approach to measuring expected credit losses using a lifetime expected credit loss
provision for Group receivables. The Parent Company has guarantees in place forits UK subsidiaries, and management have assessed
cachentity's ability to repay amounts owed. As a result. no expected credit loss has been recognised.

39. Deferred tax asset

2021 2020

£'000 £'000
Deferred taxation
At start of year 878 2]515)
Charge toincome statement Risle) 38
lterns taken directly to equity 45 (15)
At end of year 1.279 878
The deferred tax asset is analysed as follows

2021 2020

£'000 £°000
Share schemes 194 148
Other temparary differences 1,086 730

1279 878

Included in other temporary differences are deferred tax assets of £1,047000 (2020 £'/14.000) relating to tax losses carried forward
and other timing differences of 38,000 (2020: £16,000).

Deferred tax assets are all non-vurrent assets.

40. Creditors

Amounts falling due within one year
2021 2020
£'000 £'000
Amounts owed to Group undertakings 41778 33772
Trade and other creditors 161 199
Accruals 425 404
Lease liabilities 87 -
Contingent deferred consideration provision (sce note 20) 1,083 1392
43534 38767

Allamounts owed tn Group undertakings are unsscured and have no ixed repayment date Nointerest s chargad and amounts are
repayable on gemand.
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40. Creditors continued
Amounts falling due after one year

2021 2020
£°000 £'000
Lease habilities 85 -
{Other habilities 14 -
108 -

41, Called up share capital
2021 2021 2020 2020
number £000 number £'000

Allotted, called up and fully paid

At beqinning of the yaar 205,698,309 10,285 199579784 8579
lssued during the year 4676064 234 6118625 306
At and of the year 210374 373 105619 205,658,309 10,285

The Compeany has one class of Ordinary Shares of bp each which carry no right to fixed income.

4,676,064 shares were 1ssued during the yaar in order Lo satisfy exercises of share-based payment schemes. The exercise costs of bp,

79.6p and B0p per share for the LTIPs resulted in cashrecepts of £3.2m.
Details of options inrespect of shares cutstanding at 31 December 2021 are as fullows.

Number outstanding

Exarcise price

Data from which

Employee share option schemes: ‘00D payable exercisable
2016LTiP 7h £0G5 June 2019
20191TIP 716 £0.05 June 2022
2020LTIP 1968 £0.086 July 2023
2020LTIP 1.311 £o0L July 2021
2021LTIP 479 F0.05 June 2024
4539
2017 L TIP {inc CSOP) 1127 £0.80 July 2020
2018 LTIP (inc CSOP) 844 £0796 March 2021
2019 LTIP inc CSCP) 1,382 071 June 2022
2019 LTI (inc CSOP) 300 0616 September 2022
3.6b3
2019 SAYT 877 f0E82 Novermber 2022
Total Tribal Group pic share option schemes GOeY

Detalls of share-based payments are given in Note 22 to the consolidated financial statements.
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42. Share premium and other reserves

Share Ownshare Share-based

Merger premium reserve payment Retained

reserve reserve reserve earnings

£000 £'000 £'000 £:000 £:000

At 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020 11,304 15539 (856} 6,036 9,145
Loss Toi Uie year - - - - (919)
Equity dividend paid -~ - - - (2.204)
Share options exarcised - 412 - (1479) -
Charge to equity for share-based payments - - - 1.339 -
Foroign exchange differences on share-based payments - - - 37 -
Tax on charge te cquity for share-based payments - - - - 51
At 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021 11,304 165,551 (Bb6) 6,533 6,023
Loss for the yvear - - - - {1.230)
lssue of share capital - 3,010 - - -
Equity dividend paid - - - - (2.605)
Share options exercised - - 530 (L30} -
Charge Lo equity for share-based payments - - - 1,078 -
Toreign exchange dillerences on share-based payments - - - (26) -
Tax on charge to equity for share-based payments - - - - 7Y
At 31 December 2021 11.304 18961 {326) 7455 2,365

The merger reserve of £11.3m{(2020: £11.3m) relates to tha premium ansing on shares issued subject to the provisions of
saction 612 of the Companics Act 2006.

The own share reserve of £(0.3)m (2020. £(0.8)m) represents the cost of 318,692 shares (2020 827.692) in Tribal Group ple held by
the Employee Share Ownership Trust (EB1) Lo satisfy certan options under the Group's share option schemes, During 2021 509,000
shares were sold from the EBT to satisly optiens grantedin 2020 under the LTIP Schemsa (see nole 22).

| he retained earnings reserve 15 distributable.

43. Contingent liabilities
A cross-guarantea exists between Group companies inrespect of bank facilities which was £nil as at 31 December 2021 (2020: £nil).

In addition the Company and its subsidiaries have provided perforrance guarantees issued by its bank onits behalf in the ordinary
course of business, totalling £1.2m (2020: £0.1m). They are not expected to result in any matenal financial loss These are not expected
to result in any material financialloss and the likelihood of using these guarantees 1s assessed as remote.

As disclosedin Note 33, Tribal Holdings Limited. Tnibal Dynamics Limited. Tnbal Dynamics Holdings Limited, Semestry Limited and
Internationsl Graduate Insight Group Limited have taken advantage of the excrmption available under Section 39447 479A of the
Companies Act 2006 inrespect of the requirements tor audit. As a condition of the exemption, the Company has guaranteed the
year-and liabilities of these subsidiaries until they are settled in full. The liabilities of the subsidiarias at the year-end were
CE0.735.758(2020: £46.026 750). These are nclusive of intercompany liabilihies.
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AllCompany risks are aligned to those of the Group. Details of the risks relating to the Group are given inNote 30 to the consolidated

financial statements,

Financial assets

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities

measured at measured at measured at
amortised cost amortised cost FVTPL Total
31 December 2021 £'000 £'000 £000 £'000
Financial assets
Lash 5 - - 5
Debtors* 7607 - - 7502
Y0y - - 750Y
Financial liabilities
Creditors - 42461 - 42451
Deferred contingent consideration - - 1.083 1.083
- 47451 1.083 435634
Financial assets Financial liabilities Financial lishilities
measured at measured at measurad at
amortised cost amortised cost FVTPL Total
31 December 2020 £000 £°000 £'000 £'000
Financial assets
Cash 23 - - 23
Debtors” 6465 - - 6469
6457 - - 6,492
Financial liabilities
Creditors - 34375 - 34,375
Deferred contingent consideration - - 1,392 1,392
- 34375 1,392 36767

-

45, Staff numbers and costs

Excluding amounts that relate to non-financialinstruments of prepaymonts

The average monthly number of persons employed (including all Directors) under contracts of service by the Company during the year

was a5 follows:

2021 2020
Number Number
3 3

The aggregatc payroll costs of these persons were as follows
2021 2020
£°000 £000
Wages and salares 1,034 849
Social secunty costs 81 5143
Other pension costs 37 25
Share option charge 387 369
1534 1.299

Cost of Drectors empoluments were incurred by the Company and are mcluded in the Remuneration report on pages 51 to 65,
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Company Information continued

Registrars

Link Group

Unit 10

Central Square

29 Wellington Street
Lcods

LS14DL

E-communications

As analtemative to recaiving documents through the post, shareholders canreceive important infermation online, including annual and
half-year reports and notices of meetings. Registering for e-communications alse enables shareholders to obtain secure online access
to personal shareholding details, change address details and check dividend payments.

To register for o-communications, please visit
https:/fwww.signalshares.com

Duplicate accounts
If you receve two or mors copies of the Annual Report and Accounts andfor multiple cheques for each dvidend payment,
it means that you have more than one shareholder account.

Toreceve just one Annual Report and Accounts and one chaque for each dividend payment, please contact the Company’s
registrars, Link Group, on (3371 664 0445, and ask for your accounts to be amalgamated.

(Calls are charged at the standard geographic rate and will vary by provider. If you are outside the United Kingdom, please call
+44 371 664 0445, Calls outside tha United Kingdomwill be charged at the applicable international rate. We are open between
8.00 am - 4.30pm, Monday to Friday excluding public holidays in England and Wales }

Financial calendar
Annual Generat Meeting

4 May 2022
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